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Corporate Profile
BERBN

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (together with its

subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a Hong Kong-based retail operator that
specializes in the operation of mid to upper-end department stores
through its two retailer brand names, SOGO and Jiuguang, in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The Group owns two SOGO stores in Hong
Kong including the flagship store in Causeway Bay (“SOGO CWB"),
the largest and leading department store in Hong Kong, as well as
the Tsim Sha Tsui store, which features a slightly different format
that targets a younger group of customers. Our Shanghai Jiuguang
Store was established with a similar business format to that of

our flagship SOGO CWB, and has gained considerable popularity
and become one of the most preferred shopping destinations in

Shanghai since its grand opening in September 2004.

The success of the Group’s SOGO CWB and Shanghai Jiuguang
Store over the years has enabled the Group and its management
team to develop concrete retail brand building and management
expertise, which is leveraged on to further expand its business into
other cities in China. Suzhou Jiuguang and Dalian Jiuguang were
opened in January and May 2009 respectively. Both stores have
been gathering strength and delivering satisfactory growth. While
Tianjin Lifestyle Plaza, the Group's first shopping mall in the PRC
had a grand opening in December 2010 and received encouraging
market response. The Group also has new project in the pipeline
to fuelling the growth. The construction work of the up and coming
Shenyang Jiuguang store building is in good progress and the

store is scheduled for launch before the middle of 2013. Riding

on the Group's solid foundation that has embodied an impressive

track record, the new project will further fuel the Group’s growth

momentum in the future.
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Corporate Information
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

20th Floor, East Point Centre
555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

AUDITORS
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

SOLICITORS
Richards Butler

in association with Reed Smith LLP
Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE (BRANCH REGISTRAR)
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE (REGISTRAR)

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited

Butterfield House, 68 Fort Street

P.0. Box 609

Grand Cayman KY1-1107

Cayman Islands

SHARE INFORMATION

Place of listing: Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited

Stock code: 1212

Board lot: 500 shares

Financial year end: 31st December

Share price at 31st December, 2010: HK$19.14

Market capitalization at 31st December, 2010: HK$32,136 million

WEBSITE ADDRESS
www.lifestylehk.com.hk
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

OPERATING RESULTS

NN M
B

2009 2008 2007 2006
HK'000 T 7T —TTNF ZTITNF ZTTEF ZTITRF
Sales proceeds $4E FT1S R 9,832,734 8,399,095 7,674,699 6,780,518 5,531,552
Turnover & %8 4,317,465 3,756,208 3,521,633 3,112,368 2,581,962
Profit before taxation & % A1 4 71 1,896,256 1,498,442 1,324,637 1,241,953 862,435
Net profit 4fi F| 1,407,534 1,142,468 927,226 1,024,085 740,170
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) & A ZF GE1L) 83.9 685 54.5 60.2 437
Total dividends per share (HK cents) &% A% S 4858 (1) 33.7 28.0 24.0 24.0 17.8
for the year ended 31st December HZE2+ —A=+—HILtFE
TURNOVER GROWTH
LERFEER
HKS Million o
ks Wil CAGR 13.71%
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GROSS PROFIT
EF

CAGR 14.95%
FiEAREE
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2010 SALES PROCEEDS BY MARKET
—TTEmmBED L HEREHE

HONG KONG CHINA
BB X

Sales Proceeds Growth in Hong Kong Sales Proceeds Growth in China
BEBEBHEMGIIELR NEBIHEFMSRIEE R

+13.7% +25.6%

e Market leader e Future growth driver

e High customer loyalty e EXpansion in good progress
o EBEEAWMER o MEREERI
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Managing Director's Message
ERAKERE

Managing Director & FAB#5 1%

The year 2010 saw Asia leading the way in recovering from
the global financial crisis. China fared particularly well with a

remarkable 10.3% GDP growth amid robust domestic consumption

and exports growth. In addition, China’s consumption-friendly
policies, rising income of urban dwellers and the middle class,

and accelerating urbanisation were key factors contributing to the

strong growth in the retail market.

Lifestyle International was able to capitalise on such positive
economic developments and the return of consumer confidence
and spending. During the year, the Group stayed focused on
leveraging on its business and industry strengths. Our efforts
culminated in an impressive set of financial results for the year
2010 with the turnover and profit shot up by 14.9% and 23.2%
respectively over the previous year. This was also signified in
particular by record-high sales revenue and profit that marked
the sixth consecutive year of growth, with the 6-year CAGR for
turnover and profit at 17.9% and 22.6% respectively.

The remarkable results stemmed in part from the favourable
retail environment but more importantly, they reflected also the
ingenious strategies the Group has implemented, as well as the
operating leverage that we enjoy from our self-owned model,
especially in light of constant increase in rentals and growing
scarcity of prime retail locations. All these have been made
possible by the Group’s unrivalled experience and expertise in

managing retail and property businesses in Hong Kong and China.
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Leading the industry and
Building for the future
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With such impressive earnings achieved in 2010, the Board is
pleased to recommend the payment of a final cash dividend

of Hong Kong cents 19.0 per share. Together with the interim
dividend of Hong Kong cents 14.7 paid during the year, total
dividends for 2010 amounted to Hong Kong cents 33.7. Since the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange in 2004,
the Group has remained committed to generating good and steady
returns to our shareholders, and we have managed to deliver that
promise through a consistent dividend payout of around 40% of
our earnings to shareholders. During the period from 2005 to 2010,
including the proposed final dividend this time, we would have
distributed a total of approximately HK$2.4 billion cash dividend to
our shareholders.

Our Hong Kong operations delivered double-digit sales growth in
2010 on the back of strong domestic consumption and a significant
rise in tourist arrivals, mostly mainland Chinese who benefited
from their robust economic growth at home and currency
appreciation. Sales growth also stemmed from the Group's
meticulously planned marketing and promotion campaigns, as
well as its continued efforts to strengthen customer loyalty. As
the leading department store operator in Hong Kong, Sogo Hong
Kong posted a 13.7% sales growth for the year, accounting for
approximately 21.4% of the department store sales and 2.2% of
the retail sales of Hong Kong.

In mainland China, our businesses also performed solidly.
Shanghai Jiuguang seized on the post-crisis retail boom, achieving
a sales growth of 17.9% year on year. Indeed, the store is growing
in significance in terms of its contribution to the Group'’s sales
revenue and profit. Widely recognised as one of the most sought-
after shopping locations in Shanghai, the store came third in terms
of total sales revenue during the year among all department stores
in Shanghai.
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Managing Director's Message (continued) B B4R IRE (@)

The Suzhou and Dalian Jiuguang store started to gather
momentum during the year and were able to deliver 69.3% and
66.7% sales growth respectively. The two stores were launched

at a relatively challenging time, and we were aware and prepared
for the fact that they need some time to take off. The latest results
not only confirmed that belief but also indicated that both stores
have already opened up a path that will lead to greater market
recognition and bigger market share.

Renovation at the Tianjin Lifestyle Plaza, the Group's first
shopping mall in the PRC, was completed and the premise had

a grand opening in December 2010. Market response has been
encouraging and met our expectation, with over 80% of the space
having been taken up.

The Group's equity investment in Beiren Group, a leading retailer
based in Shijiazhuang, also reported satisfactory results in 2010,
with the sales revenue and profit increased 28.9% and 97.3%
respectively over the previous year. For the whole year, this
investment contributed approximately HK$100.6 million (2009:

HK$25.2 million) in profit to the Group.

Meanwhile, the development work of the Shenyang Jiuguang
store building is in progress. The Group will closely monitor the
construction progress and ensure a smooth launch of the store,
which is scheduled before the middle of 2013.

Over the past few years, the Group has been able to build up

a portfolio of quality properties for fulfilling its operation and
investment objectives. With our strong operating cash flow and
healthy financial position, as well as our proven track record of
creating value for our properties, we will continue to be on the
lookout for lucrative opportunities. We will adhere to our growth
strategy in the mainland by way of enlarging our property portfolio,
which we believe will bring greater value to our shareholders in
the long run.

TO
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The recent stabilization of the general property price in China

will provide better opportunity for the Group in negotiating

new projects. The Group’s self-built self-owned model should
particularly be advantageous when pitching government projects
as the retailing operations we subsequently put up at the premises
will be able to create employment and provide stable tax revenue
to the government. To continue our expansion plan in China, it is
the intention of the management to commit new projects in the
current year. To better leverage on the Group’s human resources
and the network built on our Shanghai Jiuguang, the locations we
target on will be in the Yangtze River Delta region.

Looking ahead, the Group’s management will be vigilant about the
impact of economic uncertainties on the retail markets in mainland
China and Hong Kong. That said, we remain positive, as we believe
the recovery in the global economy saw in 2010 will be continuing
into 2011, and that China will continue to maintain relatively high
growth in the year to come. As the ongoing process of rebalancing
from export-led to domestic demand-led growth is gathering
momentum in China, Lifestyle International will stay in the forefront
to capture growth in domestic demand. We will also further widen
our client base by virtue of our sound business strategies and high
brand equity.

We will strive to maintain our market leadership position in Hong
Kong through ingenious business and marketing plans. In mainland
China, the Group's platform for pursuing its long-term business
goals, we will spare no effort to drive growth for all our Jiuguang
stores. While focusing on sustaining Shanghai Jiuguang's growth
momentum, we will continue to roll out effective marketing and
promotion plans to ramp up performance of the young stores of
Suzhou Jiuguang and Dalian Jiuguang.

Last but not the least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank
our team members for their dedicated work throughout the year.
We are also grateful to our customers, business partners and
shareholders, as we owe much of our success to your relentless
support. We look forward to your continued trust and support in
the many years to come.

Lau Luen-hung, Thomas
Managing Director

28th February 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

MARKET OVERVIEW

The year 2010 saw the global financial system get back to a firmer
foundation following the global financial crisis. Economies around the
globe have seen some kind of recovery, with the emerging nations
growing at a much faster pace, whereas developed countries, in
particular in Europe, continued to struggle with their economic woes.

Having undergone a V-shape recovery, and having become the world’s
second largest economy after surpassing Japan in the third quarter

of the year, China had played a particularly vital role in driving the
economic upturn during 2010. Following the timely launch in 2009

of coordinated stimulus government measures and policies to keep
the rebound on track, China introduced a host of credit tightening
and austerity measures in the latter part of the year, as a necessary
step to address the expansionary credit growth and hence fears of
overheating. Notwithstanding these conflicting policies and measures,
China logged a staggering 10.3% GDP growth for the whole of 2010,
with retail sales of consumer goods increasing by 18.4% year-on-year.

In Hong Kong, the economy also rebounded vigorously in 2010,
outperforming most analysts’ forecasts. The annual GDP expanded

at a faster-than-expected 6.8% on the back of the global economic
recovery, which has led to dramatic expansion in private and public
consumption and growth in export trade. Consumer sentiment was
robust, thanks in part to the wealth effect created by the buoyant
property market. In addition, inbound visitors in 2010 surged 21.8%
year-on-year to reach an all-time high at 36.03 million, which included
some 22.68 million, or 62.9%, of mainland Chinese tourists. The
increasing international conventions and exhibitions held in Hong Kong
during the year also helped to boost inbound international tourists.
Meanwhile, conditions in the labour market have improved, with
unemployment falling to a two-year low of 4.1% in the fourth quarter.
This further prompted a spurt of growth in the retail market. For the
whole of 2010, total retail sales revenue in Hong Kong was up 18.2%
from 2009.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 2010

Lifestyle International once again delivered a pleasing performance

in 2010. Right from the start of the year, the market was able to
continue its growth impetus carried forward from the second half of
2009. As the global economic headwinds were gradually replaced

by the tailwinds of recovery, the Group, which remained focused on
implementing its sound business strategies, managed to maintain
rather strong sales and profit growth momentum throughout 2010.
For the whole year, the Group's aggregate sales revenue increased by
17.1% year-on-year.

Sogo Causeway Bay (SOGO CWB) and Sogo Tsim Sha Tsui (SOGO TST),
Lifestyle International’s Hong Kong operations, continued to leverage
on their brand equity and delivered double-digit sales growth during
the year. The two operations achieved a significant 13.7% growth in
sales revenue, which continued to account for more than one-fifth of
the gross sales revenue of Hong Kong's department store sector.

The Group’s operations in mainland China also fared well during the
year. Shanghai Jiuguang continued to outperform the market average
in terms of sales growth, and saw growing significance in terms of its
contribution to the Group's overall sales and profit. Meanwhile, Suzhou
Jiuguang and Dalian Jiuguang showed persistent improvement and
performed solidly as they gradually gathered strength.

TURNOVER AND SALES PROCEEDS

The year 2010 marked a year in which the Group achieved record-high
sales turnover, up 14.9% to HK$4,317.5 million from the previous year.
Total sales proceeds (net of VAT) from both direct and concessionaire
sales transactions expanded 17.1% to reach HK$9,832.7 million from
HK$8,399.1 million in 2009. The increase stemmed mainly from strong
same-store sales growth of the Group's three established stores, as
well as sales revenue from the two new stores in Suzhou and Dalian.

The Group's operations in Hong Kong and mainland China respectively
generated HK$7,170.9 million and HK$2,661.8 million in sales proceeds,
accounting for 72.9% and 27.1% of the Group's total sales proceeds.

GROSS PROFIT AND NET PROFIT

The Group's gross profit margin as a percentage of turnover amounted
to 57.5%, compared with 56.7% in 2009. Gross profit reached
HK$2,481.2 million, up 16.4% from HK$2,131 million recorded in the
previous year. The gross profit margin improved slightly during the year
was a result of improving average concessionaire rates and increased
sales contributed from the concessionaire sales arrangement.

Profit attributable to shareholders for the year amounted to HK$1,407.5
million, up 23.2% from the previous year. The higher net profit

was mainly coming from the operating leverage at the three more
established stores coupled with the narrowing of loss of the two new
stores.
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SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Selling and distribution expenses for the Group’s Hong Kong operations
remained stable and the slight increase was mainly the full-year effect
of the two new stores as well as the kicking in during the year of the
turnover rent, in addition to the fixed rental, payable to the property
Joint venture by Shanghai Jiuguang. Selling and distribution expenses
accounted for approximately 8.9% (2009: 9.6%) of total sales revenue
of the Group.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses remained stable across the board and the
significant decrease compared with last year was the saving on the
staff share option charges and the absence this year of the one-off
consultancy fee of HK$34 million related to the Group’s acquisition of
further interests in the Beiren Group last year.

STAFF COSTS

Staff costs (excluding directors) slightly increased 3.5% to HK$304.8
million during the year as a result of the saving on the staff share
option charges, coupled with a relatively stable number of headcounts
and moderate wage rise during the year. Staff costs accounted for 3.1%
(2009: 3.5%) of total sales revenue of the Group.

OTHER INCOME

The decrease in other income this year was due to absence of the
HK$60 million one-off guarantee profit which was recognised last year.
Others include management fee income and other miscellaneous
charges received from the concessionaire counters and tenants. The
amount included also a government subsidy of RMB15 million (2009:
RMB15 million) and tax refund of approximately RMB5.7 million (2009:
nil) for our Suzhou store.

INVESTMENT INCOME

This comprises mainly interest income from the Group’s surplus cash
and net investment income, including the mark-to-market gain and
loss, on a portfolio of yield enhancement financial products, mainly
comprising fixed income, which forms part of the Group’s treasury
functions.

FINANCE COSTS

Total finance costs, which mainly consisted of interest expense on
the Group’s bank loans and other finance charges, dropped slightly to
HK$35.8 million (2009: HK$38.4 million). The decrease was due to the
fact that while the interest environment remained largely the same

as 2009 throughout the year, the average loan level was also stable.
During the year, some HK$4.8 million (2009: HK$4.8 million) of interest
expense has been capitalised as property under development, mainly
for the Shenyang Jiuguang store project.
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FAIR VALUE CHANGES ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The amount comprises mainly fair value gain (before tax) in respect
of the Group's investment properties situated in the PRC. The
significantly high amount in 2009 arose mainly from the revaluation
gain of a property-under-development project in Shenyang which
acquisition was completed right before the end of 2009. This portfolio
of investment properties is currently held for capital appreciation and
investment purposes and the Group will consider disposing them in
due course.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at the end of 2010, the Group was in net cash position, before
counting the investment portfolio valued at approximately HK$786
million (2009: HK$351 million), with cash at banks amounting to
approximately HK$3,761 million (2009: HK$2,890 million) and bank
loans at approximately HK$3,398.2 million (2009: HK$3,186.7 million).
Of the cash at banks, approximately 64.9% is denominated in US dollar
and HK dollar and 35.1% is denominated in renminbi. Bank loans
include a HK dollar-denominated secured loan of HK$2,700 million,
repayable semi-annually, with final payment due in December 2011
as well as a US dollar secured loan in the amount of US$20 million.

As at 31st December, 2010, the Group had committed un-drawn loan
facilities of US$5 million available. This HK dollar and US dollar secured
loan facility bears interest calculated with reference to the HIBOR and
LIBOR respectively. The remaining bank loans are RMB loans bearing
interest calculated with reference to the PBOC lending rate. The
returning to net cash position, even with a larger investment portfolio,
during the year was a result of the strong operating cash inflows from
the stores with relatively smaller capital expenditures during the year
which amounted to approximately HK$216.3 million (2009: HK$772
million).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December, 2010, the Group's certain leasehold land

and buildings in Hong Kong with a carrying value of approximately
HK$1,547.3 million (2009: HK$1,591.6 million), together with certain
shares of the Company’s subsidiaries, have been pledged to secure
the banking facilities of HK$4,000 million (2009: HK$4,000 million)
granted to the Group of which HK$4,000 million (2009: HK$3,350
million) has been utilised. In addition, certain of the Group's property,
plant and equipment in the PRC and Group's financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss with carrying values of approximately
HK$1,500.8 million (2009: HK$1,317.2 million) and HK$154.4 million
(2009: Nil) respectively have been pledged to secure loan facilities in
the amount of approximately RMB390 million (2009: RMB390 million)
and US$20 million (2009: Nil) respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &3 8 5150 & 254 (@)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The significant improvement in the economic and retailing environment
during 2010 set the stage for the Group’s growth. This favourable
setting, coupled with the Group's solid business foundation and brand
equity, leading industry status and well-crafted business strategies,
helped to achieve remarkable results for the Group’s operations in
both Hong Kong and mainland China.

HONG KONG

SOGO CWB

SOGO CWB remained the biggest contributor to the Group'’s revenue
and profit in 2010. A reliable indicator of the local economic vitality,
SOGO CWB performed in line with the market upturn during the
year. With a relatively low base in 2009, the first half of 2010 saw a
significant 13.9% sales increase to HK$2,957.5 million. Buoyed by
strong consumer sentiment, the growth momentum continued into
the second half of the year and in particular the growth in the fourth
quarter was much stronger than expected, resulting in a 13.6% year-
on-year expansion in sales revenue for the second half of the year.
During the year, both the average ticket size and the total traffic
footfall were the drivers for the sales growth. Sales of high-ticket
items, including jewellery and watches, were particularly strong. On
balance, the store raked in total annual sales revenue of approximately
HK$6,464 million, up 13.7% year-on-year.

During the Thankful Week event in November, the store once again set
another new sales record with a record-breaking 185,700 customers
drew to the store on the second day of the event. On the whole, the
event generated approximately HK$487.4 million in sales revenue, up
21.6% from the same event in 2009.

As part of the effort to maintain SOGO CWB's established market
position and to strengthen client loyalty, the Group will continue to
carry out regular maintenance and renovation work on the premise
S0 as to provide new attractions and make the store an even more
pleasant shopping destination.

SOGO TST

SOGO TST also delivered solid results despite a fall in traffic footfall
in the store’s surrounding area following the closure of the adjacent
New World Centre. Total sales revenue went up 13.5% year-on-year,
reaching approximately HK$706.9 million.

After years of impressive growth, SOGO TST now follows a less
dramatic but stable path of development. Having established itself as
a competent industry player with a good track record, it consistently
delivers solid results on a steady footing. This reflects the store’s
status as a widely popular shopping destination in Kowloon. During the
year, we further upgraded our product mix, bringing in a number of
up-market brands that helped improve the average ticket size.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &% /B 5 15R & 247 (&)

MAINLAND CHINA

SHANGHAI JIUGUANG

During 2010, Shanghai Jiuguang had benefited from the retail boom
across mainland China which stemmed partly from the surge in pent-
up demand of the more affluent group and middle class consumers
after the global financial crisis.

Total sales revenue (net of VAT) went up by 17.9% year-on-year,
reaching approximately RMB1,844.5 million. As one of the most
preferred stores in Shanghai, it continued to demonstrate above
average growth momentum and ranked third in terms of total sales
revenue among all department stores in Shanghai in 2010. Positioning
as a mid-to-high end full-fledged department store and in view of the
growing sophistication of consumers and demand for discretionary
and luxury goods, Shanghai Jiuguang made effective use of the Group's
strong brand equity and a vast array of brand and merchandise mix
that translated to higher average ticket size and stay-and-buy ratio in
2010. The latter suggested greater customer loyalty for the store and
traffic footfall at the store is still on the up-trend.

SUZHOU JIUGUANG

Suzhou Jiuguang, in full operation for over a year, performed solidly
during 2010 as it gradually gained traction amid an improved retail
environment. We have seen gradual improvement in both the average
traffic footfall and ticket size. Net sales revenue jumped approximately
69.3% to RMB370.7 million and the store’s loss has narrowed to
approximately RMB58.3 million for the year. The steady improvements
reflected a persistent growth trend and the gradual build-up of
clientele.
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DALIAN JIUGUANG

As with its Suzhou counterpart, Dalian Jiuguang also delivered
satisfactory growth for the year 2010, with net sales revenue
increased by approximately 66.7% to RMB99.4 million. While the sales
revenue in absolute term is still relatively small, the growth suggested
Dalian Jiuguang, launched into operation in May 2009, is gradually
gaining recognition and building up its market presence. In light of
Dalian Jiuguang's prime location and the growing brand equity, the
management believes that given more time, the store will attract a
wide range of customers.

TIANJIN LIFESTYLE PLAZA

Renovation work of Tianjin Lifestyle Plaza, the Group’s first shopping
mall in the PRC, was completed and had a grand opening in
December 2010. Market response has been encouraging and met our
expectation, with over 80% of the space having been taken up. The
Group will continue its marketing efforts to increase the traffic footfall

in the months to come.

Positioned as a trendy shopping destination for young people, Lifestyle
Plaza sits at Binjiang Road, a renowned pedestrian walk in Tianjin.
Measuring 33,500 sg. m. in gross floor area the 11-storey premise

offers a wide selection of brands and a diverse product mix.

INVESTMENT IN BEIREN GROUP, SHUIAZHUANG, CHINA

The Group increased further its equity interests in February 2010 in
Beiren Group, a leading retailer based in Shijiazhuang that currently
operates 8 department stores, 17 supermarkets and a number of
outlets specialising in electrical appliances, consumer electronic items
and jewellery. The move was an attempt to enhance the Group's
involvement in Beiren Group so that it can play a more active role on
both its corporate and operational fronts. Operations of Beiren Group
during the year have shown much improvement with sales increased
by 28.9% and profit up 97.3%, according to the PRC accounts. The
Group’s share of results (before non-controlling interest) from Beiren
Group this year increased to approximately HK$100.6 million from
HK$25.2 million in 2009.

PROJECT IN THE PIPELINE

Located at the well-known pedestrian walk of Zhongjie Lu, Shenhe
District, the construction work of this up and coming Shenyang
Jiuguang store building is in good progress. Measuring an approximate
120,000 sg. m. in gross floor area, the store is scheduled for launch
before the middle of 2013 and the Group will closely monitor the
progress and ensure a smooth launch of the store.
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OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

Visibility to the world’s economic growth in 2011 remains low due

to lingering economic uncertainties in the United States and some
parts of Europe. The Chinese economy, which has been playing a vital
role in lifting the world from recession, will also face some kinds of
challenges. Rising commodity prices and labour costs and excessive
liquidity in the money market will contribute to inflationary pressures.
In response, the Chinese government will continue to implement
macroeconomic measures and tighter monetary policies which believe
would marginally weaken the Chinese economy in 2011.

In Hong Kong, while the employment market should remain stable, the
implications of growing inflationary pressures and the impact of the
latest round of property cooling measures on the overall wealth effect
remain to be seen. While staying positive, the management believes
there is reason to be vigilant about the pace of the global economic
recovery and the outlook of the retail market in 2011.

However, there are also rays of hope. The two-speed global economic
recovery saw in 2010 is expected to persist in 2011, with Asia and
other emerging markets outpacing developed countries. China

will maintain relatively high growth, provided that macroeconomic
measures remain moderate and under control. Continual urbanisation
and expansion of the Chinese middle class mean consumer spending
in China will continue to hold up well which may become a major
contributor to the GDP growth. Meanwhile, the Chinese government’s
12th Five-Year Plan period, which begins in 2011, will give a push

to the ongoing process of rebalancing from export-led to domestic
demand-led growth. All these will bode well for the retail markets of
mainland China and Hong Kong.

Into 2011, the Group is well prepared to tackle challenges and seize
opportunities by virtue of its sound and sensible business strategies,
solid financial position and high brand equity. We will maintain the
momentum in our well-crafted marketing and promotion initiatives,
with a view to fostering growth and safeguarding our solid business
foundation. Continual efforts will be put to maintain our leading
position in Hong Kong, while robust plans will be rolled out to ramp
up performance of the younger establishments in Suzhou, Dalian and
Tianjin. We will continue efforts in enhancing our product ranges and
carrying out renovation work where necessary, in order to bring fresh
shopping experiences to inspire customers and capitalise on the retail
bhoom brought by China’s growing middle class and rise in disposable
income.
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We will be on the lookout for strategic investment opportunities and
other retailing formats that may compliment our growth strategy. With
the Group's strong operating cash inflows and financial position, we
are ready to continue pursuing our goals. In the past years, the Group
has been able to build up a portfolio of quality non-core properties
and we shall continue to grow this portfolio when opportunities arise.
We are confidence that this strategy will bring greater value to our
shareholders in the long run. The recent stabilization of the general
property price in China will provide better opportunity for the Group
in negotiating new projects. The Group's self-built self-owned model
should particularly be advantageous when pitching government
projects as the retailing operations we subsequently put up at the
premises will be able to create employment and provide stable

tax revenue to the government. To continue our expansion plan in
China, it is the intention of the management to sign up new projects
which will likely be located in the Yangtze River Delta region, in order
to leverage on the Group's scarce human resources pool and the
business network already built from our Shanghai Jiuguang store.

In sum, Lifestyle International will in 2011 continue to focus on
upholding its leading marketing position and profitability in order to
safeguard its leading status in the industry and to sensibly expand its
property portfolio with the aim to becoming a leading retail player in
the PRC.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (“Board”) and the management of the
Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasise a quality Board, sound
internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31st December, 2010.

THE BOARD

(1) Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of
ten Directors, including two Executive Directors, four Non-
executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive
Directors. More than one-third of the Board is represented
by Independent Non-executive Directors with one of whom
being a certified public accountant. The Board believes that
the balance between Executive and Non-executive Directors
is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient checks and
balances that safeguard the interests of shareholders and
the Company. Each Director has different professional and
industrial qualification and experience, which enable them
to make valuable and diversified advice and guidance to the
Group's business activities and development.
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Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
“Corporate Information” to this Annual Report. The Directors’
biographical information and the relationships among the
Directors are set out in the “Profile of Directors” to this
Annual Report.

The independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is assessed according to the relevant rules and
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Company has
received written confirmation of independence from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors and the Company
is of the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

Chairman and Managing Director

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for setting and
leading the overall strategic plan and development of the
Group whereas the Managing Director is responsible, in
addition to assisting in setting the Group’s strategic planning,
for implementing the Board's decisions, monitoring and
supervising the Group's overall performance, ensuring
adequate capital and managerial resources to implement
the business strategies adopted, setting out and monitoring
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targets, plans and direction for the senior management,
reporting to the Board on the Group'’s overall performance
and proposing business plans and future strategic directions
for the Board to evaluate and to conclude.

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the
Managing Director are currently held by separate individuals
for the purpose of ensuring an effective segregation of duties
and a balance of power and authority.

Responsibilities )
The Board is charged with promoting the success of

the Company by directing and supervising its affairs in a
responsible and effective manner. The Board steers and
oversees the management of the Company including,
establishing the strategic direction and setting long-term
objectives for the Company, monitoring the performance
of management, protecting and maximizing the interests of
the Company and its shareholders, reviewing, considering
and approving the annual budget, managing results

and performance against annual budget. The Board has
delegated senior management, under the leadership of the
Managing Director, with authority and responsibility for the
day-to-day operations and administration of the Group.

Each Director has a duty to act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company. The Directors are aware of their
collective and individual responsibilities to all shareholders
for the manner in which the affairs of the Company are
managed, controlled and operated.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect
interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board. If a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the
Board has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt
with in accordance with applicable rules and regulations
and, if appropriate, an independent Board committee will be
set up to deal with the matter.

All Directors have full access to and are provided with
adequate, reliable and timely information of the Group and
its operation so as to enable them to make timely decision.
Such information analysis can be accessed directly through
briefing and reporting by the Executive Directors and
senior management. The Company Secretary can arrange
independent professional advice at the expense of the
Company should such advice be considered necessary by
any Director for carrying out his/her duties.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment of
new Directors. Under the Company's Articles of Association,
the Board may from time to time appoint a Director either to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any such
new Director shall hold office until the next following general
meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board)

and shall then be eligible for re-election at the same general
meeting.

All Directors (including Non-executive Directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
are subject to re-election in accordance with the Company’s
Avrticles of Association and the Code.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board meets regularly and held four meetings during
the year ended 31st December, 2010 to review the quarterly
operating performance of the Group and to deliberate and
approve the interim and final results announcements and
financial statements, to recommend or declare dividends as
well as to discuss strategic business issues and operations
of the Group.

Board members attended either in person or through
telephone conferencing means in accordance with provision
in the Company's Articles of Association. During the year,
Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas, Mr. Doo Wai-hoi, William, Ms.
Lau Yuk-wai, Amy, Mr. Cheung Yuet-man, Raymond and The
Hon. Shek Lai-him, Abraham attended all the four physical
Board meetings; Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon and Mr. Hui Chiu-
chung, Stephen attended three of the said meetings; Dr.
Cheng Kar-shun, Henry attended two of the said meetings,
Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Joseph attended one of the said
meetings; while Dato Dr. Cheng Yu-tung did not attend the
said meetings.

Practices and Conduct of Board and Board
Committee Meetings

The Company Secretary ensures the proper convening and
conducting of the Board and Board Committee meetings,
with relevant notices, agenda and Board and Board
Committee papers being provided to the Directors and
Board Committee members in a timely manner before the
meetings.
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The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all Board
and Board Committee meetings. Board and Board committee
minutes are available for inspection by Directors and Board
Committee members.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions on the Company's
shares.

Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code for the year ended 31st December, 2010.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing

the financial statements of the Group for the year ended

31st December, 2010. The Directors ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared as to give a true and fair
view of the Group's state of affairs, the results and cash flow for
the year, and on a going concern basis in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting and financial
reporting standards.

The Directors also ensure the publication of the financial
statements of the Group is in a timely manner.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding its
reporting responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2010 is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” to this Annual Report. The Board
takes steps to ensure the continued objectivity and independence
of the external auditors. For the year ended 31st December, 2010,
the external auditors of the Company received approximately
HK$3.7 million for audit services provided to the Group.

The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance and position in all
shareholder communications.

The Board is aware of the requirements under the applicable

rules and regulations about timely disclosure of price-sensitive
information or matters regarding the Company and will authorise
the publication of such announcements as and when the occasion
arises. The Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of
the Company work closely and in consultation with legal advisers
to review the materiality and sensitivity of transactions and
proposed transactions and advise the Board accordingly.

AREAMEFTREXHEFTRIEETZEEKE
SR EFERMEBETZEGERLEATH
EXRHEBETZREERBEMN -

BEECEHFRY
AABICEHM ETARBIMER10FTE FTHARIES
EITEERSMEETA(MEEFA]))  fEAX
BT ERAA TR ITESR SR EE) o

AMTNE SWERRR -

ERHPBHmR BT

EEMANSAEAREARERE_T—TF

TZA=+T—BLEFEZHBERSE - %%%Z\;ﬁ
HERZBEEREMER ST R BREER
EERNFHERAEERFAZUBRR - FER
RERE  REFEQKLERFRMBRE

ERWRRASE P IFREERT TIATIE -

ARBGEMHAEEBEE—_T—TF+ A
=t EI&EEEM‘%?&?%Z?&:.EE&EEZ%
PRENAFRBLZBEMBRES - EERDHER
Mﬁﬁ@\\%?%ﬁ(ﬁﬁim%%ﬁ&ﬁili CHE_E
—EEFT-A=+—BILFE  RRAFIMEER
A A A1 AN SR BER (HAZ BUIR A% YRR 493,700,000 7T

EXRHEEMERRBATHAEEZEER
FORABHT ~ FERZRIEEN T A RE -

EFERMEEM AR LR A RER N ERE
PRAER K AR FHEEEENRE ]UHEL“D*
RHETIRERAM - ARRMHAE R AR
ERMRHFRAMNERRHINER KBRS
FREANER  UBRMEREEBRELRS -

MEREREEBRAR —T-TFER

37



Corporate Governance Report (continued) &4

=)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established two Board Committees, namely,

the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee with
specific terms of references to assist the Board in discharging it
responsibilities.

M

32

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely,

Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon, Mr. Cheung Yuet-man, Raymond,
The Hon. Shek Lai-him, Abraham and Mr. Hui Chiu-chung,
Stephen, all are Independent Non-executive Directors.

None of themis, or has previously been, the partner of the
Company's current or previous external auditors. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon, who is a
certified public accountant. The Audit Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee setting out
the committee’s authority and duties, which follow closely
the requirements of the Code Provisions and being modified
from time to time and adopted by the Board, are available
from the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1. consider the service and appointment of the
Company's external auditors, nature and scope of
auditing, and the related audit fee;,

2. review and approve changes in accounting policies
and practices, to review the effectiveness of the
financial reporting system and process, its compliance
with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal
requirements;

3. oversee the adequacy of the Group's financial
reporting process, internal control procedures and risk
management system;

4. review internal control programme and to ensure
adequate responses to internal audit functions, to
consider and discuss audit findings, for any significant
or unusual terms thereof, directly with external
auditors; and

5. assist the Board in overseeing the proper preparation
of the Group's financial statements and reports.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31st December, 2010. Save for Mr. Hui Chiu-chung,
Stephen who has attended one of the said meetings,

all committee members attended both meetings. In the
meetings, the Audit Committee (i) reviewed and discussed
with the external auditors on the Group's financial
statements before they were submitted to the Board for
consideration and approval; and (i) reviewed the external
auditors’ audit findings.

On 24th February, 2011, the Audit Committee met to review
the Group's audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31st December, 2010 (“2010 Consolidated
Financial Statements”), including the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with
the Company’s external auditors. The Audit Committee
recommended the 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements
for the approval of the Board.

The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the
re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the Company’s external auditors for the year ending 31st
December, 2011 and that the related resolution shall be put
forth for shareholders’ consideration and approval at the
2011 annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

In compliance with the Code, the Remuneration Committee
members comprise as majority three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon, The
Hon. Shek Lai-him, Abraham and Mr. Hui Chiu-chung,
Stephen, and one Executive Director, Mr. Lau Luen-hung,
Thomas, who is the Managing Director and Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee

is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
setting out the committee’s authority and duties, which
follow closely the requirements of the Code Provisions and
being modified from time to time and adopted by the Board,
are available from the Company’s website.
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The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is

to provide advice and recommendation to the Board

on the remuneration package of Directors and senior
management, on any specific remuneration package with
reference to market conditions, performance of the Group
and the individuals against preset goals and targets as set
by the Board from time to time, and if necessary, on any
compensation policy for termination of office of Directors or
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during

the year ended 31st December, 2010, with all committee
members attended the meeting. In the meeting, the
Remuneration Committee determined the remuneration
package of Executive Directors and senior management, and
reviewed the remuneration package of the Non-executive
Directors.

DIRECTORS" AND OFFICERS' LIABILITIES
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in
the execution of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto,
the Company has arranged insurance cover for this purpose.

INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

(1) Internal Controls
The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining a
sound and effective internal control system for the Group to
safeguard investments of the shareholders and assets of the
Company at all times.

The Group's system of internal control includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, is designed
to help the achievement of business objectives, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation
and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of
the Group's objectives.
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Management has conducted regular reviews during the year
on the effectiveness of the internal control system covering
all material factors related to financial, operational and
compliance controls, various functions for risk management
and physical and information systems security. Audit
Committee had been reported during the Audit Committee
meetings key findings identified by the Company's external
auditors, discussed findings and actions or measures

taken in addressing those findings relating to the Group'’s
internal controls. No material issue during the year has been
reported to the Board by the Audit Committee.

The Board also sets targets for and has conducted an annual
review on plans and progress for continuous improvement
work of the internal control system of the Company and its
subsidiaries, working in conjunction with senior management
and the Audit Committee.

Internal Audit Function

The Group's internal audit team is headquartered in Hong
Kong and shares if necessary resources of the finance team
for conducting regular review of the Group's internal control
procedures, including accounting system and operational
procedures, and will make recommendations to the
relevant department management for necessary actions.
The management considers the present arrangement

is effective having taking into account the current
organizational structure, lines of responsibility, authority of
the management team and the risks associated with the
operations of the Group. The senior management and Audit
Committee however are reviewing and monitoring closely
the situation, and are committed to strengthening the
functions of the Group's internal auditing team.

The extent of work the internal audit team had performed
during 2010 and its findings and results was reported to the
Audit Committee during the Audit Committee meeting on
24th February 2011. The internal audit team carries out risk
assessment in the beginning of each year on major operating
department and area for the purpose of deriving the annual
audit plan. The audit plan for 2011 has been reviewed by the
Audit Committee during the meeting. In addition to its agreed
schedule of work, the internal audit team may conduct other
review and investigative work on an ad hoc basis when it is
required.
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COMMITMENT TO TRANSPARENCY

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of
transparency through timely disclosure of relevant information on
our activities to our shareholders, investors, media and investment
public, through regular press releases, analysis's briefings, press
conferences, as well as timely updating of the Company’s website,
availability of designated investor relationship agent to handle
enquiries. Our Executive Director and senior management, who
look after the business operation, are committed to response to
enquiries from regulators, shareholders and business partners.

INVESTORS' RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential
element in building successful relationships with its shareholders.
The Company always seeks to provide relevant information to
existing and potential investors, not only to comply with the
different requirements in force but also to enhance transparency
and communications with shareholders and the investing

public. This is part of a continuous communication program

that encompasses meetings and relevant announcements to

the market in addition to periodic written reports in the form of
preliminary announcement of results and interim and annual
reports.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information about the Group is provided. Regular
meetings are also held with institutional investors and research
analysts to provide them with timely updates on the Group's latest
business developments and non-price sensitive information. These
activities keep the public informed of the Group’s activities and
foster effective communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and forums
organized by leading investment banks during the year in order

to enhance the awareness of the investing public of the Group’s
vision and strategies.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully compliant
with disclosure obligations stipulated under the Listing Rules and
other applicable laws and regulations, and that all shareholders
and potential investors have an equal opportunity to receive and
obtain externally available information that is released by the
Group.
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Profile of Directors
EEEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. LAU LUEN-HUNG, THOMAS (BA, MBA)

Managing Director

Mr. Lau, aged 56, is the Managing Director of the Company who
leads and manages the whole Group. He is also the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Lau holds a
Bachelor degree and a Master degree of Business Administration.
Mr. Lau is responsible for setting and implementing policies and
strategies, and monitoring results and targets of the operations of
the Group. Mr. Lau is a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee, a director of
Shanghai Chinese Overseas Friendship Association, a member

of the Board of Directors of Shanghai Jiao Tong University and
also an Independent Director of AutoChina International Limited,
a NASDAQ listed company. He is the younger brother of Mr. Lau
Luen-hung, Joseph and Ms. Lau Yuk-wai, Amy.

MR. DOO WAI-HOI, WILLIAM (JP)

Mr. Doo, aged 66, joined the Group in March 2005. He is the Vice-
Chairman of New World China Land Limited, the Deputy Chairman
of NWS Holdings Limited, and an Independent Non-executive
Director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited and Shanghai Industrial
Urban Development Group Limited. He was previously an Executive
Director of Tai Fook Securities Group Limited (now known as
Haitong International Securities Group Limited). All the companies
mentioned above are listed companies. Mr. Doo also acts as a
Director of New World Hotels (Holdings) Limited and Fung Seng
Diamond Company Limited. Mr. Doo has served as a Governor of
the Canadian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong since 1995. In
addition, Mr. Doo is a Member of the Standing Committee of the
Eleventh Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in
Shanghai, and the Convener of the Shanghai Committee in Hong
Kong and Macau. He has been appointed as the Honorary Consul
of the Kingdom of Morocco in Hong Kong since June 2005. Mr. Doo
is the son-in-law of Dat6 Dr. Cheng Yu-tung and brother-in-law of
Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry.
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Profile of Directors (continued) EZE &7 @@

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

DATO DR. CHENG YU-TUNG (DPMS, LLD (Hon),
DBA(Hon), DSSC(Hon), GBM)

Chairman

Dato Dr. Cheng, aged 85, is the non-executive Chairman of the
Company. He joined the Group in March 2004. Dato Dr. Cheng is
also the Chairman of New World Development Company Limited
and Melbourne Enterprises Limited, a Non-executive Director of
Shun Tak Holdings Limited and SJM Holdings Limited, all being
listed companies, the Chairman of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited and New World
Hotels (Holdings) Limited, and a Director of Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings) Limited and Centennial Success Limited. Dr. Cheng was
awarded Grand Bauhinia Medal by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region in 2008. Dato Dr. Cheng is the
father of Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry and the father-in-law of Mr.
Doo Wai-hoi, William.

DR. CHENG KAR-SHUN, HENRY (BA, MBA, DBA(Hon),
LLD(Hon), GBS)

Dr. Cheng, aged 64, joined the Group in May 2001. Dr. Cheng is
also the Managing Director of New World Development Company
Limited, the Chairman and Managing Director of New World China
Land Limited, the Chairman of NWS Holdings Limited, New World
Department Store China Limited and International Entertainment
Corporation, and an Independent Non-executive Director of HKR
International Limited. He was previously the Chairman of Tai Fook
Securities Group Limited (now known as Haitong International
Securities Group Limited). All the companies mentioned above are
listed companies. Dr. Cheng is also a Director of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited,
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Centennial Success
Limited, and the Managing Director of New World Hotels (Holdings)
Limited. Dr. Cheng is a Standing Committee Member of the
Eleventh Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of The
People’s Republic of China. He was awarded the Gold Bauhinia
Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in 2001. Dr. Cheng is the son of Dat6 Dr. Cheng Yu-tung
and the brother-in-law of Mr. Doo Wai-hoi, William.

MR. LAU LUEN-HUNG, JOSEPH

Mr. Lau, aged 59, joined the Group in May 2001. Mr. Lau is the
Chairman and Managing Director of Chinese Estates Holdings
Limited, a Hong Kong listed company. He has over 35 years of
experience in corporate finance, manufacturing and property
investment and development. Mr. Lau is the elder brother of Mr.
Lau Luen Hung, Thomas and Ms. Lau Yuk-wai, Amy.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

MS. LAU YUK-WAI, AMY

Ms. Lau, aged 57, joined the Group in March 2004. Ms. Lau holds a
Bachelor degree in Science and a Doctor degree in Dental Surgeon
from the University of Toronto in Canada. She is a Non-executive
Director of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company. Ms. Lau is the sister of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas and
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. LAM SIU-LUN, SIMON (BA, ACA, FTIHK)

Mr. Lam, aged 61, joined the Group in March 2004. He is

the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated
from the University of Hong Kong in 1973. After graduation, he
worked at KPMG Peat Marwick London and Hong Kong and
obtained his qualification as a Certified Public Accountant from
HKICPA in 1979. Mr. Lam has been a practicing accountant

for over 21 years and is the proprietor of Messrs. S.L. Lam &
Company. He has served as a member of the Insider Dealing
Tribunal on a number of occasions. He is an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of Le Saunda Holdings Limited and Kiu
Hung Energy Holdings Limited, all being listed companies.

MR. CHEUNG YUET-MAN, RAYMOND

Mr. Cheung, aged 56, joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Cheung
was an entrepreneur and has over 18 years of experience in the
textile and garment manufacturing industries and has over 17
years of experience in property investment.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

THE HON. SHEK LAI-HIM, ABRAHAM (BA, DIP. ED., JP)
Mr. Shek, aged 65, joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Shek
obtained his Bachelor degree of Arts in 1969 and has extensive
experience in the property development field. Mr. Shek is a
member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong and Court of The
University of Hong Kong. He is an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the audit committee of each of Midas
International Holdings Limited, Paliburg Holdings Limited, Chuang's
Consortium International Limited, NWS Holdings Limited, ITC
Corporation Limited, Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited, Country
Garden Holdings Company Limited, Regal Portfolio Management
Limited as the manager of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust,
Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited as the manager of
Champion Real Estate Investment Trust, China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited, SIM Holdings Limited and Kosmopolito Hotels
International Limited; the Vice Chairman, an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of the audit committee of ITC
Properties Group Limited; and the Chairman and an Independent
Non-executive Director of Chuang's China Investments Limited.
He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Hop Hing
Group Holdings Limited, Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. and
MTR Corporation Limited. He was previously an Independent Non-
executive Director of See Corporation Limited (resigned on 1st
October, 2008). All the companies mentioned above are listed
companies. Mr. Shek is also a Director of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited and the Vice Chairman of Independent Police
Complaints Council.

MR. HUI CHIU-CHUNG, STEPHEN (/P)

Mr. Hui, aged 63, join the Group in July 2005. Mr Hui is currently
the Chief Executive Officer of OSK Holdings Hong Kong Limited.
He has 40 years of experience in the securities and investment
industry. Mr. Hui had for years been serving as a Council Member
and Vice Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, member
of the Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission, Director of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited, member of the Listing Committee of the Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an appointed member of
the Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal, member of Standing
Committee on Company Law Reform and also a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Investigation
Panel A. Mr. Hui was appointed by the Government of the HKSAR
a Justice of the Peace in 2004 and was also appointed member of
the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in 2006. He is at present a member of
the Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission and a member of Government
“Appointees” (independent member) of Appeal Panel of the
Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Hui also serves as an
Independent Non-executive Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited, Jiuzhou
Development Company Limited, Chun Wo Development Holdings
Limited and Frasers Property (China) Limited, all being listed
companies.
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Directors’ Report
EEREE

The Directors of the Company present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2010 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are the operation
of "lifestyle” department stores and other retailing format, and
property development and property holding. Particulars of the
Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2010
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 70.

An interim dividend of HK cents 14.7 per share was paid during
the Year. The Directors have recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK cents 19.0 in cash per share to the shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company
on Wednesday, 27th April, 2011, amounting to a total of HK cents
33.7 in cash per share for the Year.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements during the Year in the property, plant
and equipment and investment properties of the Group are set
out in note 17 and 18 respectively to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements during the Year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.
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Directors' Report (continued) EEFRE @)

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas (Managing Director)
Mr. Doo Wai-hoi, William

Non-executive Directors:

Dat6 Dr. Cheng Yu-tung (Chairman)
Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry

Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Joseph

Ms. Lau Yuk-wai, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon

Mr. Cheung Yuet-man, Raymond

The Hon. Shek Lai-him, Abraham

Mr. Hui Chiu-chung, Stephen

In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of the Company, Mr.
Lau Luen-hung, Thomas, Dato Dr. Cheng Yu-tung, Mr. Cheung
Yuet-man, Raymond and The Hon. Shek Lai-him, Abraham shall
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The term of office of each Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Director is appointed for a specific term of one

year and is subject to retirement and re-election at annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas (“Mr. Lau”) and Mr. Doo Wai-hoi,
William (“Mr. Doo"), both executive Directors, has a service
contract with the Company for the period from 1st April, 2010

to 31st March, 2013 and 2nd March, 2008 to 1st March, 2011
respectively in respect of their respective directorships. The three-
year term under Mr. Lau'’s service contract expired on 31st March,
2010 and as no prior termination notice was served by either party,
the service contract of Mr. Lau has already been automatically
renewed for another term of three years commencing from 1st
April, 2010 pursuant to the terms thereof. There is no specific
clause in both service contracts providing for the amount of
compensation in case of early termination of office.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st December, 2010, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which are required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or are required pursuant to

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Z e

TR

Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

()  Long positions in the issued shares of the Company (i)

EERTHRARN RS K EE RO

RIB-ZEF+-_A=+—H BFERARFT
BARENARRREECABABEE(EELES
REE RO ([ 5 R G &G ) EXVER) Z B fn
EHF - HHEEREERRAEED
FEXVEFETREDHAGARBRBEHARZS
FRERAR (B MERELAR (BIRERE
RIBES R ROIIZFECREFERRREE
eigm SR A) ¢+ IRIEE S5 R BB 5P 5 352
ARBNZIGINL 2 BRMz R ORE - R
B AT s LT ARRI(T LR R L) B8R 10 P
B2 LMBETAESETESRRXZNRETRIA
HEARR LB s JORRIAT

RABEBRITRO 2R

Approximate percentage of
interest in the issued share
capital of the Company

Name of Director Nature of interest and capacity Number of shares (Note 3)
ERATERITRA
EazBAEI
Exns BRMERSS RBEE (PfH5E3)
Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,080,000,000 64.33%

("Mr. Thomas Lau") XA Al (M)
Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2) 41,000,000 2.44%

PSR R (5 2)
Beneficial owner 52,803,500 3.14%

EREBA
P -

Real Reward Limited (“Real Reward"), which is jointly

owned by United Goal Resources Limited (“United Goal”)

and Go Create Limited (“Go Create”) in equal shares, holds
1,080,000,000 shares. United Goal, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is ultimately owned by Mr.
Thomas Lau and a family trust with certain family members
of Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Joseph (“Mr. Joseph Lau”) as eligible
beneficiaries. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed
to be interested in the 1,080,000,000 shares held by Real
Reward.

Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic Castle”), which is wholly-
owned by Mr. Thomas Lau, holds 41,000,000 shares. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed to be interested in the
41,000,000 shares held by Dynamic Castle.

As at 31st December, 2010, the issued share capital of the
Company was HK$8,394,925.00 divided into 1,678,985,000
shares of HK$0.005 each.

1. £ United Goal Resources Limited ([ United
Goall) } Go Create Limited ([Go Create |)
# [ ¥ 5 # B ZReal Reward Limited
([Real Reward]) # 7 1,080,000,000 %
United Goal A7 2 8 4 B L B S aE it Sz
ZNE BRISBEEREERIRAR
RS A (TR E LA DB TREKE
ZRGERREER - BEZEHFRBAEK
1 - 2208 % A& w5 4R 1E 7 Real Reward FfT
£ 1,080,000,000 A% 7 % & 2 ©

2. M2 & %L 4+ 2 B A ZDynamic
Castle Limited ([Dynamic Castle!) # &
41,000,0000% - R1%EH LG & - 2
B8 % A 4 48 VB 7 Dynamic Castle AT ¥
41,000,000 & # A 2 o

3 R-ZE—ZFF+_-_A=+—H  AQ7
2 BTN 58,394,925.00/8 T8 » H A&
1,678,985,000 A% & i [ & 0.005 7% 7T 2 X
e

MEREREEBRAR —FT-TFFR

13



Directors' Report (continued) EEFRE @)

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS ESRTHAFMNKR 7 KB R 75

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)  Z 1% ()
(i) Long positions in associated corporations (i) REBZEz2HE
Nature of interest and Total number of Percentage of
Name of Director Name of associated corporation  capacity shares held interest
BEpH BB EEER EREERED s oA ERES
Mr. Thomas Lau Real Reward Interest in controlled 1 50%
2B RE corporation (Note 1)
REHIA A (ME)
Crystal Key Investment Limited Interest in controlled 1 100%
corporation (Note 2)
REHIA A (MEE2)
Grandville Venture Corp. Interest in controlled 50,000 100%
corporation (Note 2)
REHIA A (MEE2)
Global Centre Investments Limited Interest in controlled 1 100%
corporation (Note 2)
RPEHIA A (MEE2)
Leeson Limited Interest in controlled 1 100%
BEERAH corporation (Note 2)
RPEHIA A (EE2)
Wise Ocean Limited Interest in controlled 1 100%
BEFERATE corporation (Note 2)
REHIA A (HEE2)
Notes: BeE
1. United Goal, a company incorporated in the BVI and ultimately 1. United Goal A58 5 & # A m B S it it Ak Sz
owned by Mr. Thomas Lau and a family trust with certain Z A&+ ¥ A Real Reward 50% # & © I
family members of Mr. Joseph Lau as eligible beneficiaries, HRAAEBEEREERTRARREES
has 50% interest in Real Reward. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. EETFREXE 2 KIRELTREHEE - R
Thomas Lau is deemed to be interested in the one share in BREAFREAREN - RISSEEWRER
Real Reward. Real Reward — & s 1 R A 125 o
2. United Goal, a company incorporated in the BVI and ultimately 2. United Goal & X B R R B ST K

owned by Mr. Thomas Lau and a family trust with certain
family members of Mr. Joseph Lau as eligible beneficiaries,

has 50% interest in Real Reward. Crystal Key Investment

Limited, Grandville Venture Corp., Global Centre Investments
Limited, Leeson Limited and Wise Ocean Limited are, either
direct or indirect, wholly-owned subsidiaries of Real Reward.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed to be

interested in the shares held by Real Reward in Crystal Key
Investment Limited, Grandville Venture Corp., Global Centre
Investments Limited, Leeson Limited and Wise Ocean Limited.

All the interests stated above represented long positions.

As at 31st December, 2010, none of the Directors and chief
executives had any short positions recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352

of the SFO.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 31st December, 2010, so far as is known to any Director or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other than
a Director or the chief executive of the Company) had an interest
or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares and the underlying shares of

the Company

FERREDR

RIB—Z2F+-_A=+—H BEFHLRQA
TREHAA - THAL(TBEEFLERF
TREE)RARR 2RO REEROS - #E
IERIEE S M EDIEXVESE2 M350 #8215
NRAARRRIEE EIAR

RRBARODEEERSD 2HR

Approximate
percentage of interest

in the issued share capital

of the Company
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest and capacity = Number of shares (Note 4)
EERATE BT
R R
ZERBE ST
BRREE ERMtERSS R EE (B 4)
Real Reward Beneficial owner (Note 1) 1,080,000,000 64.33%
=t TINUEND
United Goal Interest in controlled 1,080,000,000 64.33%
corporation (Note 2)
Syl A Rl (M5 2)
Asia Prime Assets Limited Interest in controlled 1,080,000,000 64.33%
(“Asia Prime”) corporation (Note 2)
Syl A w5 2)
Go Create Interest in controlled 1,080,000,000 64.33%
corporation (Note 3)
Al A Rl (M5 3)
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Interest in controlled 1,080,000,000 64.33%

Limited ("CTF")
AXEEERRAR(EAAR])

corporation (Note 3)
PR Al (PHEE3)
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Directors' Report (continued) EEFRE @)

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)
Long positions in the shares and the underlying shares of

the Company (continued)
Notes:

1. Real Reward is a company jointly owned by United Goal and Go
Create in equal shares. United Goal is ultimately owned by Mr.
Thomas Lau and a family trust with certain family members of Mr.
Joseph Lau as eligible beneficiaries. Go Create is wholly owned
by CTF of which family members of Dato Dr. Cheng Yu-tung have
controlling interests. Mr. Thomas Lau, Mr. Joseph Lau and Dr. Cheng
Kar-shun, Henry, being Directors, are also directors of Real Reward.

2. Asia Prime, a company wholly owned by Mr. Thomas Lau, holds
more than one-third of the entire issued share capital of United Goal,
a 50% shareholder of Real Reward. By virtue of the SFO, Asia Prime
and United Goal are deemed to be interested in the 1,080,000,000
shares held by Real Reward. Mr. Thomas Lau and Mr. Joseph Lau,
being Directors, are directors of United Goal and Mr. Thomas Lau is
also the sole director of Asia Prime.

3. Go Create, a company incorporated in the BVI and wholly owned
by CTF of which family members of Daté Dr. Cheng Yu-tung have
controlling interests, has 50% interest in Real Reward. By virtue of
the SFO, CTF and Go Create are deemed to be interested in the
1,080,000,000 shares held by Real Reward. Dato Dr. Cheng Yu-tung
and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry, being Directors, are directors of CTF
and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry is also a director of Go Create.

4. As at 31st December, 2010, the issued share capital of the Company
was HK$8,394,925.00 divided into 1,678,985,000 shares of HK$0.005
each.

All the interests stated above represented long positions. As

at 31st December, 2010, the substantial shareholders of the
Company had no short positions recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

0]

The 2004 Share Option Scheme

The Company'’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted for a period of 10 years commencing 27th March,
2004 pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
selected full-time employees and Directors for their
contribution to the Group.

Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options to
selected full-time employees and Directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant
share options to eligible advisors and consultants to the
Company and its subsidiaries at the discretion of the Board
of Directors.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme and any other scheme of the
Company is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of the commencement
of dealings in the shares on the Stock Exchange, being
144,000,000 shares of HK$0.005 each after the share
subdivision in 2007, which represented approximately 8.60%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date

of this report. The Company may seek approval from its
shareholders in general meeting to renew such limit provided
that it must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of approval of the renewed limit.
The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other scheme must
not exceed such number of shares as shall represent 30%
of the total number of issued shares of the Company from
time to time. The number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed

1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
to substantial shareholders, Independent Non-executive
Directors, or any of their respective associates (including a
trustee of a discretionary trust of which they or any of their
family interests are discretionary objects) in excess of 0.1%
of the Company'’s share capital and with a value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be also approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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Directors' Report (continued) EEFRE @)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

0]

(i)

The 2004 Share Option Scheme (continued) (i)
Option granted must be taken up within the time limit
specified in the offer letter (which shall not be later than

5 days from the date of offer), upon payment of HK$1 per
option. Options may be exercised at any time during a period
commencing on or after the date on which the option is
accepted and deemed to be granted and expiring on a date
to be notified by the Board to each grantee which shall not
be more than 10 years from the date on which the option is
accepted and deemed to be granted. The exercise price is
determined by the Directors of the Company, and will not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price

of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the nominal value of the
Company's share.

The termination of the Scheme was conditionally approved
by the shareholders of the Company in an extraordinary
general meeting held on 3rd March, 2009. No further options
will be offered under the Scheme, but all options granted
prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the Scheme.

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (i)
The adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2009

Share Option Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders

of the Company in an extraordinary general meeting held on

3rd March, 2009 for a period of 10 years commencing from

3rd March, 2009 as incentive or reward for the contribution

of the eligible participants to the growth of the Group and to
provide to the Group with a more flexible means to reward,
remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the

eligible participants.

Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme, the Company may
grant options to (a) any full-time or part-time employee of the
Company and/or any subsidiary; (b) any Director (including
Executive, Non-executive and Independent Non-executive
Director) of the Company and/or any subsidiary; and (c) any
consultant or adviser (whether professional or otherwise

and whether on an employment or contractual or honorary
basis or otherwise and whether paid or unpaid), distributor,
contractor, supplier, service provider, agent, customer and
business partner of the Company and/or any subsidiary who,
at the sole determination of the Board, have contributed or
will contribute to the Company and/or any subsidiary.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for
which an option must be held or the performance targets
which must be achieved before an option can be exercised
under the terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme. However,
the Board may offer to grant any options subject to such
terms and conditions in relation to the minimum period of
the options to be held and/or the performance targets to
be achieved before such Options can be exercised and/or
any other terms as the Board may determine in its absolute
discretion.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options which may be granted under the 2009
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 166,860,950
shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 3rd March, 2009, the date on which the 2009
Share Option Scheme was approved by the shareholders of
the Company. The Board may seek approval by shareholders
in general meeting to renew such limit provided that it must
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
at the date of approval of the renewed limit. The maximum
aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme must not exceed such number of shares

as shall represent 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options under the
2009 Share Option Scheme) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Where any further grant of options to an eligible participant
would result in excess of such limit, such further grant must
be subject to the approval of the shareholders at general
meeting with such eligible participant and his associates
abstaining from voting.

Options granted to a connected person of the Company
or any of its associates must be approved by all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
(excluding any Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company who is the grantee of the options).
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Directors' Report (continued) EEFRE @)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii)

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Where options are proposed to be granted to a substantial
shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company or any of their respective associates, and the
proposed grant of options will result in the total number

of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in

the 12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the issued
share capital of the Company on the date of offer and
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million,
such grant of options must be subject to the approval of
the shareholders taken on a poll at general meeting. The
connected person involved in such proposed grant of
options and all other connected persons of the Company
must abstain from voting in such general meeting (except
that any connected person may vote against the proposed
grant provided that his intention to do so has been stated in
the relevant circular to the shareholders).

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit
specified in the offer letter (which shall not be later than

5 days from the date of offer), upon payment of HK$1 on
acceptance of the offer. Options may be exercised at any
time during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee which shall not be more than 10 years from the
date of the offer. The exercise price is determined by the
Directors of the Company, and will be at least the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company's share.
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DETAILS OF OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE RARRTHBREZFE
COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2010, options to subscribe for an aggregate RZE—ZEF+_A=+—80 #HWOLEXHAE
of 32,821,000 shares of the Company granted to a Director (as B ARRIRBZAEN—REERAETEBIE
disclosed above) and certain full-time employees pursuant to the BT a4 ££32,821,000 AR &) i B
Scheme remained outstanding, details of which were as follows: AT 2 BRSSO
Number of share options
BRERE
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat Subscription
1st January, during during during during 31st December, price per
Date of grant 2010 theYear theYear theYear the Year 2010  Option period share
R=Z-%F R-Z-%%
-A—H +=A=+-H
B¥EH HATHE FRART FATE FAXN  FREH HATHE BREDR SRABE
Director
=
Mr. Thomas Lau 31/08/2007 17,020,000 — — - — 17,020,000 01/10/2008 - HK$18.50
BEEE s TR 26/03/2014 18.50757T
NA=+-H (Note 2)
ZETNE
+A—RZE
—T-mE
=A=+H
(BE2)
Employees 07/10/2005 1,290,000 —  (596,000) - - 694,000 07/10/2006 - HKS6.16
EE ZTThE 26/03/2014 6.16787T
+AtR (Note 1)
—ZEREF
+AtAE
“E-mE
=A-tXAH
(W31
02/02/2009 19,960,000 — (4,769,000 (84,000) — 15,107,000 07/02/2010 - HK$6.40
ZTThE 26/03/2014 6407 TT
~“R=H (Notes 3 &4)
—2-Z
—AtAZE
—T-mE
=A-tXH
(BsE3 R4)
Total 38,270,000 — (53650000 (84,000) — 32,821,000
@t
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Directors' Report (continued) EEFRE @)

DETAILS OF OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE
COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

The options, granted on 7th October, 2005, are exercisable from 7th
October, 2006 to 26th March, 2014 (both days inclusive) subject to
the following vesting period:

(i) up to 40% of the options commencing 7th October, 2006;

(if) up to 70% of the options (including the options not exercised
under the limit prescribed for in the previous period)
commencing 7th October, 2007; and

(i) up to 100% of the options (including the options not exercised
under the limit prescribed for in the previous periods)
commencing 7th October, 2008.

The options, granted on 31st August, 2007, are exercisable from 1st
October, 2008 to 26th March, 2014 (both days inclusive) subject to
the following vesting period:

(i) up to 40% of the options commencing 1st October, 2008;

(if) up to 70% of the options (including the options not exercised
under the limit prescribed for in the previous period)
commencing 1st October, 2009; and

(i) upto 100% of the options (including the options not exercised
under the limit prescribed for in the previous periods)
commencing 1st October, 2010.

The grant of the options to Mr. Thomas Lau was subsequently
approved by independent shareholders on 25th September, 2007.

On 3rd March, 2009, the outstanding options previously granted to
employees of the Group on 31st August, 2007 (which entitled such
employees to subscribe for an aggregate of 20,400,000 shares) were
cancelled and replaced by new options granted by the Company
entitling them to subscribe for the same number of shares at an
exercise price of HK$6.40 per share (the “2009 Employee Options”).
The 2009 Employee Options are exercisable from 7th February, 2010
to 26th March, 2014 (both days inclusive) in the following manner:

(i) 40% as from 7th February, 2010;

(if) 30% (in addition to the 40% mentioned in (i) above) as from
7th February, 2011; and

(i) remaining 30% (in addition to the 70% mentioned in (i) and (ii)
above) as from 7th February, 2012.
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DETAILS OF OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE
COMPANY (continued)

Notes: (continued)

4.

According to the Black-Scholes pricing model (the “Model”), the
fair value of the options granted in 2009 was estimated at HK$19.9
million. The variables used in the model were as follows:

Exercise price HK$6.40
Share price on HK$5.53 closing price on 3rd March,
grant date 2009
as defined in
accordance
with HKFRS 2
Expected volatility — 55.26% historical volatility of the
Company's share price over
previous years
Expected life 1.5-3.5years based on management’s
best estimation, taking into
account non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and other
behavioural considerations
Risk-free rate 0.57-1.27% reference to yield of Exchange
Fund Notes in accordance with
expected life of the option
Expected dividend  4.34% based on historical dividend

yield

yield of the shares of yield
the Company over 12-month
period

This Model was developed to estimate the fair value of publicly
traded options that have no vesting restriction and are fully
transferable. As the Company's share options have characteristics
significantly different from those traded options, and the value of
the share options varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions, any change in the variables so used may materially
affect the estimation of the fair value of the share options.
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Directors' Report (continued) EEFRE @)

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the section “Details of options
granted by the Company”, at no time during the Year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, no contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions of the Group constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transactions (“Continuing Connected
Transactions”) for the Company during the financial year ended
31st December, 2010 under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”):

(1)  Shanghai Ongoing Department Store's tenancy
agreement
On 26th November, 2004, the Group’s 65% owned Shanghai
Ongoing Department Store Limited (“Shanghai Ongoing”)
entered into a tenancy agreement with the Group’s 50%
owned BN ETES AR AT (“CityPlaza Co”) in
respect of the lease of the entire building of Shanghai
Joinbuy CityPlaza (“Joinbuy CityPlaza") of approximately
92,000 square metres (“sg.m.”), for a period of 20 years
commencing from 1st October, 2004 (“Tenancy Agreement”),
at a basic annual rental of RMB125 million, with adjustment
for additional rental at the rate of 3.5% on the amount
over and above the annual turnover of RMB1,500 million
generated from the sales at the whole Joinbuy CityPlaza.
Management fee was on a cost incurred basis.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Q)

Shanghai Ongoing Department Store’s tenancy
agreement (continued)

On 30th December, 2004, independent shareholders of the
Company had approved the Tenancy Agreement together
with annual caps of RMB125 million for rental and of RMB65
million for management fee for each of the three years
ended 31st December, 2005, 2006 and 2007. As stated in the
Company's circular dated 13th October, 2008, the annual
caps for both the rental and management fee was set at
RMB155 million and RMB44 million respectively for each

of the three years ended 31st December, 2008, 2009 and
2010. During the year, rental of RMB150,735,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$173,346,000) and management fee of
RMB34,239,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$39,375,000)
were paid by Shanghai Ongoing pursuant to the Tenancy
Agreement.

As stated in the Company’s circular dated 31st December,
2010, the annual caps of the rental were renewed and set

at RMB168 million, RMB183 million and RMB202 million for
each of the three financial years ending 31st December,
2011, 2012 and 2013 respectively, and the annual caps of the
management fee were renewed and set at RMB41 million,
RMB46 million and RMB52 million for each of the three
financial years ending 31st December, 2011, 2012 and 2013
respectively.

The Tenancy Agreement was arranged for the leasing of the
retailing space as necessary for the operation of the Group’s
Shanghai Jiuguang Department Store (“Shanghai Jiuguang
Store”).

The Group's 65% owned Shanghai Ongoing is owned as to
5% by B8 NE (£E) AR AR (“Joinbuy Group”) and 30%
by EENERMDBRZA A (“Joinbuy Co”). The Group’s 50%
owned Cityplaza Co is owned as to 12% by Joinbuy Group
and 38% by Joinbuy Co. Joinbuy Group is the controlling
shareholder of Joinbuy Co. Thus, Joinbuy Group and Joinbuy
Co, being substantial shareholders of Shanghai Ongoing,
are connected persons of the Company. In view of Joinbuy
Group and Joinbuy Co have substantial equity interest

in Cityplaza Co, Cityplaza Co is an associate of Joinbuy
Group and a connected person of the Company. Thus, the
transaction under the Tenancy Agreement constituted a
continuing connected transaction for the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BFERERS @)

(continued)

(2) Leasing of the premises for the Sogo Tsimshatsui (2) RABEZEXIEMHEBE
Store

On 24th February, 2005, the Group’s 100% owned Sogo Hong
Kong Company Limited (“Sogo HK") entered into a lease
agreement as tenant with Hong Kong Island Development
Limited (“HK Island”) as landlord for the leasing of portion of
ground floor, portion of podium 1 and the entire podium 2 of
The Amazon at No. 12 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
to Sogo HK for a term of 15 years commencing from 30th
September, 2005 (“Lease”), at a turnover rent based on sales
generating within the leasing premises at a rate of 6% for the
1st to the 10th year and 7% for the 11th to the 15th year.

The annual caps of the aggregate of the rental, air-
conditioning charges, management fees, government rates
and other outgoings were renewed and set at HK$64.2
million for each of the three financial years ended 31st
December, 2008, 2009 and 2010. During the year, a total

of HK$54,212,000 for rental, air-conditioning charges,
management fees, government rates and other outgoings
were paid by Sogo HK, and such sum was within the
annual cap of HK$64.2 million as stated in the Company’s
announcement dated 9th April, 2008.

As stated in the Company’s announcement dated 16th
December, 2010, the aforesaid annual caps for each of the
three financial years ending 31st December, 2011, 2012 and
2013 were renewed and set at HK$61.8 million, HK$69.8
million and HK$78.9 million respectively.

The Lease was negotiated as at an arm’s length with general
commercial terms. This leased premise is occupied by the
Group for its necessary operation of the Tsimshatsui lifestyle
department store in Kowloon side.

HK Island is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of New
World Development Company Limited. Go Create Limited,
a company wholly-owned by Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited (“CTF"), is directly interested in 50% of Real Reward
Limited (“Real Reward"), the direct controlling shareholder
of the Company. By virtue of its indirect shareholding in
the Company, CTF is a connected person of the Company.
As an associate of CTF, HK Island is a connected person of
the Company. Therefore, the transaction under the Lease
constituted a continuing connected transaction for the
Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

©)

Watches Dealership Agreement at the Suzhou
Jiuguang Store

0On 22nd September, 2009, the Group’s 100% owned
Ongoing (Suzhou) Department Store Limited (“Suzhou
0Ongoing”) entered into a dealership agreement with & X%&
IRE £ 17 (BRI B IR A A (“CTF Suzhou”) for a consignment
arrangement of a retailing counter of approximately 590.1
sg.m. on the first floor of Suzhou Jiuguang Department Store
("Suzhou Jiuguang Store”) for selling watches for a period
commencing from 29th April, 2009 to 28th February, 2012
("Suzhou Watches Consignment”). Under the arrangement,
Suzhou Ongoing would receive a monthly commission
charging on certain percentages of the gross turnover at
the said counter subject to a minimum monthly commission
of RMB147,525, RMB177,030 and RMB236,040 for the
respective years.

The Suzhou Watches Consignment was entered into

in the ordinary course of business of the Group as the
merchandises to be sold by CTF Suzhou in the Suzhou
Jiuguang Store can enhance the product mix and branding of
the available merchandises in the Suzhou Jiuguang Store and
fulfil the Group's customers’ demand.

During the year, Suzhou Ongoing received a total of
RMB2,535,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,916,000)
for commission, management fee and other charges
from CTF Suzhou, and such sum was within the cap of
RMB7,056,000 as stated in the Company’s announcement
dated 22nd September, 2009.

As CTF is a connected person of the Company and its
associate, CTF Suzhou, is also deemed to be a connected
person of the Company, the transaction under the Suzhou
Watches Consignment constituted a continuing connected
transaction for the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(4) Jewellery Dealership Agreement at the Shanghai
Jiuguang Store
On 22nd September, 2009, Shanghai Ongoing entered into
a dealership agreement with B ARIKE 17 (BRI B
R~ &]_E& 5 AR (“CTF Shanghai”) for the consignment
arrangement of a retailing counter of approximately 96
sg.m. on the second floor of the Shanghai Jiuguang Store
to CTF Shanghai for exhibiting and selling jewellery under
the brand name of “Chow Tai Fook” for a period of 2
years commencing from 1st September, 2009 (“CTF SH
Consignment”). Shanghai Ongoing would receive a monthly
commission charging on certain percentages of the gross
turnover from sales generating at the said counter subject to
a minimum monthly commission of RMB86,400.

The CTF SH Consignment was entered into in the ordinary
course of business of the Group as the merchandises to
be sold by CTF Shanghai in the Shanghai Jiuguang Store
can enhance the product mix and branding of the available
merchandises in the Shanghai Jiuguang Store and fulfil the
Group's customers’ demand.

During the year, Shanghai Ongoing received a total of
RMB2,570,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,955,000)
for commission, management fee and other charges from
CTF Shanghai under the CTF SH Consignment, and such
sum was within the cap of RMB3,065,000 as stated in the
Company'’s announcement dated 22nd September, 2009.

As CTF is a connected person of the Company and its
associate, CTF Shanghai, is also deemed to be a connected
person of the Company, the transaction under the CTF SH
Consignment constituted a continuing connected transaction
for the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(5

Watches Dealership Agreement at the Shanghai
Jiuguang Store

0On 23rd November, 2009, Shanghai Ongoing entered into a
dealership agreement with CTF Shanghai for a consignment
arrangement of a retailing counter of approximately 12
sg.m. on the second floor of the Shanghai Jiuguang Store for
selling watches for a period of 2 years commencing from
25th September, 2009 (“Shanghai Watches Consignment”).
Under the arrangement, Shanghai Ongoing would receive

a monthly commission charging on certain percentages of
the gross turnover at the said counter subject to a minimum
monthly commission of RMB14,400.

The Shanghai Watches Consignment was entered into

in the ordinary course of business of the Group as the
merchandises to be sold by CTF Shanghai in the Shanghai
Jiuguang Store can enhance the product mix and branding of
the available merchandises in the Shanghai Jiuguang Store
and fulfil the Group's customers’ demand.

During the year, Shanghai Ongoing received a total of
RMB254,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$292,000) for
commission, management fee and other charges from CTF
Shanghai under the Shanghai Watches Consignment, and
such sum was within the cap of RMB580,000 as stated in the
Company'’s announcement dated 26th April, 2010.

As CTF Shanghai is a connected person of the Company,

the transaction under the Shanghai Watches Consignment
constituted a continuing connected transaction for the
Company. The above transaction falls into “de minimis
transaction” within the Listing Rules. However, when this
transaction is considered together with other dealership
agreements entered into between the Group and the
associates of CTF, this transaction constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transaction as stated in the Company’s
announcement dated 26th April, 2010.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(6)

Jewellery Dealership Agreement at the Sogo CWB
Store

On 27th March, 2008, Sogo HK entered into a dealership
agreement with Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited
("CTF Jewellery”) for a consignment arrangement of a
counter of 1,107.40 square feet on the first floor of the Sogo
Causeway Bay Store (“Sogo CWB Store”) for exhibiting and
selling fine jewellery under the brand name of “Chow Tai
Fook” (“Sogo Jewellery Arrangement”) for a period of two
years commencing from 1st March, 2008 to 28th February,
2010 (2008 CTF Consignment”). Sogo HK would receive a
monthly commission charging on certain percentages of
the gross turnover at the said counter subject to an annual
minimum commission of approximately HK$4 million.

During the period from 1st January, 2010 to 28th February,
2010, Sogo HK received a total of approximately HK$2.71
million for commission, management fee and other charges
from CTF Jewellery under the 2008 CTF Consignment, and
such sum was within the cap of HK$4.4 million as disclosed
in the Company'’s announcement dated 9th April, 2008.

Upon expiry of the 2008 CTF Consignment, on 26th April,
2010, Sogo HK entered into another dealership agreement
with CTF Jewellery to continue the Sogo Jewellery
Arrangement for a period of two years commencing

from 1st March, 2010 to 29th February, 2012 (“2010

CTF Consignment”). Sogo HK would receive a monthly
commission charging on certain percentages of the gross
turnover at the said counter subject to an annual minimum
commission of approximately HK$4 million.

During the period from 1st March, 2010 to 31st December,
2010, Sogo HK received a total of approximately HK$11.46
million for commission, management fee and other charges
from CTF Jewellery under the 2010 CTF Consignment, and
such sum was within the cap of approximately HK$12.59
million as disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
26th April, 2010.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(6)

Jewellery Dealership Agreement at the Sogo CWB
Store (continued)

Both the 2008 CTF Consignment and the 2010 CTF
Consignment were entered into in the ordinary course of
business of the Group as the merchandises to be sold by
CTF Jewellery in Sogo CWB Store can enhance the product
mix and branding of the available merchandises in the Sogo
CWB Store and fulfil the Group's customers’ demand.

As CTF is a connected person of the Company and its
associate, CTF Jewellery, is also deemed to be a connected
person of the Company, the transactions under the 2008 CTF
Consignment and the 2010 CTF Consignment constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company.

Jewellery Dealership Agreement at the Suzhou
Jiuguang Store

On 14th January, 2009, Suzhou Ongoing entered into a
dealership agreement with CTF Suzhou for the consignment
arrangement of a retailing counter of approximately 102
sg.m. on the first floor of the Suzhou Jiuguang Store for
selling fine jewellery under the brand names of * J& A 4&

or “Chow Tai Fook” (“Suzhou Jewellery Arrangement”)
commencing from 16th January, 2009 to 31st August, 2010
("2009 Suzhou CTF Consignment”). Under the agreement,
Suzhou Ongoing would receive a monthly commission
charging on certain percentages of the gross turnover at the
said counter subject to a minimum monthly commission of
RMB51,000.

During the period from 1st January, 2010 to 31st August,
2010, Suzhou Ongoing received a total of RMB597,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$687,000) for commission,
management fee and other charges from CTF Suzhou under
the 2009 Suzhou CTF Consignment, and such sum was
within the cap of approximately RMB1.3 million as stated in
the Company's announcement dated 14th January, 2009.

Upon expiry of the 2009 Suzhou CTF Consignment, on

7th October, 2010, Suzhou Ongoing entered into another
dealership agreement with CTF Suzhou to continue the
Suzhou Jewellery Arrangement for a period of two years
commencing from 1st September, 2010 to 31st August,

2012 (“2010 Suzhou CTF Consignment”). Suzhou Ongoing
would receive a monthly commission charging on certain
percentages of the gross turnover at the said counter subject
to a minimum monthly commission of RMB51,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

7)

Jewellery Dealership Agreement at the Suzhou
Jiuguang Store (continued)

During the period from 1st September, 2010 to 31st
December, 2010, Suzhou Ongoing received a total of
RMB345,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$397,000) for
commission, management fee and other charges from CTF
Suzhou under the 2010 Suzhou CTF Consignment, and such
sum was within the cap of RMB487,000 as disclosed in the
Company'’s announcement dated 7th October, 2010.

Both the 2009 Suzhou CTF Consignment and the 2010 CTF
Consignment were entered into in the ordinary course of
business of the Group as the merchandises to be sold by
CTF Suzhou in the Suzhou Jiuguang Store can enhance the
product mix and branding of the available merchandises in
the Suzhou Jiuguang Store and fulfil the Group'’s customers’
demand.

As CTF Suzhou is a connected person of the Company, the
transactions under the 2009 Suzhou CTF Consignment and
the 2010 Suzhou CTF Consignment constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Company.

Jewellery Dealership Agreement at the Dalian
Jiuguang Store

On 7th October, 2010, the Group’s 100% owned Lifestyle
Plaza (Dalian) Co., Ltd (“Dalian Lifestyle”) entered into a
dealership agreement with dt REAKBHRE L ITERA

&) ("CTF Beijing") for the consignment arrangement of a
retailing counter of approximately 107 sg.m. on the first floor
of the Group’s Dalian Jiuguang Department Store (“Dalian
Jiuguang Store”) to CTF Beijing for selling fine jewellery
under the brand names of “ J&X#& " or “Chow Tai Fook”

for the period commencing from 2nd September, 2010 to
31st August, 2012 (“Dalian Jewellery Consignment”). Dalian
Lifestyle would receive a monthly commission charging on
certain percentages of the gross turnover at the said counter
subject to a minimum monthly commission of RMB32,100.

62 Lifestyle International Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2010

BEBRERXS @)

7)

8)

FINA K BEERE SRS E 15 (8D

R_E-—TEAF—AE-_ZT—TE+_
A=Z+—B8HE  #MNAXRE=-ZF—F
FHMAREBTELHBEARBEHIMNK
BAe EEBREMKESLARE
345,000 7T (49 #8 & 7 397,00078 7T ) + M #%
CENTARGABMAEZZS—EF+ AL
A2z AFTiEEE 2 R AR 487,000 T2
HERX o

—EENFHMNEARRTELH R _F—
ZEHMARNBTELH IRARERE
EBBEPIIL - P EEMEERATE
EREZEGRRAEES  ARRAEHE
BEZFER -

BARBEHMNRBARB ZBEAL - Bt
—EENEHRMNEARETELHR T —
ZEHMBARBTERHF T 2R HBAAR
RAZFHERRER S

REAXBEEHREEREE S

W_E—ZF+ AL AEFH2EWE
ARz AEEE(RE)BERAE ([FEX
HEEIFAARERESTERAR(E
ABRIERDREERHIT L —HEBL
B BREAEE I REALBEAT
([REBEAXBEEE]) —EEBEHNI107FH
K EME - 1ESEE [ A KR4E] =k [Chow Tai
Fook| MM BB H-_T—TFNA
THEZE——FNA=+—HK&EK
EHELH]) c MREANESKBAK LS
BraaEBEAETELKREAES  mE
A&EMAE A AARE32,1007T °



CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(8) Jewellery Dealership Agreement at the Dalian
Jiuguang Store (continued)
The Dalian Jewellery Consignment was entered into
in the ordinary course of business of the Group as the
merchandises to be sold by CTF Beijing in the Dalian

Jiuguang Store can enhance the product mix and branding of

the available merchandises in the Dalian Jiuguang Store and
fulfil the Group's customers’ demand.

During the period from 2nd September, 2010 to 31st
December, 2010, Dalian Lifestyle received a total of
RMB274,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$315,000) for
commission, management fee and other charges from CTF
Beijing under the Dalian Jewellery Consignment, and such
sum was within the cap of RMB470,000 as stated in the
Company'’s announcement dated 7th October, 2010.

As CTF is a connected person of the Company and its
associate, CTF Beijing, is also deemed to be a connected
person of the Company, the transaction under the Dalian
Jewellery Consignment constituted a continuing connected
transaction for the Company.

(9) Leasing of the shop at the Tianjin Lifestyle Plaza
On 17th November, 2010, the Group's 100% owned Li Hua
Jia Commercial Building (Tianjin) Co., Ltd (“Tianjin Property
C0o") entered into a tenancy agreement with CTF Beijing
in which Tianjin Property Co agreed to lease a shop of
approximately 974 sg.m. on the first floor of the Group'’s
Tianjin Lifestyle Plaza (“Tianjin Mall”) to CTF Beijing for selling
fine jewellery under the brand names of “ J&X4& " or “Chow
Tai Fook”, gold and watches for a period of 36 months
commencing from 3rd December, 2010 (“Tenancy”). Tianjin
Property Co would receive a monthly rental charging on
certain percentages of the gross turnover at the said shop
subject to a minimum monthly commission of RMB149,800,
RMB224,700 and RMB299,600 for the respective years of the
Tenancy.

The Tenancy was entered into in the ordinary course of
business of the Group as the merchandises to be sold by
CTF Beijing in Tianjin Mall can enhance the product mix and
branding of the available merchandises in Tianjin Mall and
fulfil the Group's customers’ demand.
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Directors' Report (continued) EEFRE @)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(9) Leasing of the shop at the Tianjin Lifestyle Plaza
(continued)
As CTF Beijing is a connected person of the Company, the
transaction under the Tenancy constituted a continuing
connected transaction for the Company. The transaction
under the Tenancy for the financial year ended 31st
December, 2010 falls into “de minimis transaction” within
the Listing Rules. However, transactions under the Tenancy
for the three financial years ending 31st December, 2013 are
expected to constitute non-exempt continuing connected
transaction as stated in the Company’s announcement
dated 17th November, 2010.

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been
reviewed by the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company who have confirmed that for the year ended 31st
December, 2010 the Continuing Connected Transactions have
been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company; (i) either on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available to
(or from) independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the auditors of the Company to perform certain factual
finding procedures in respect of the Continuing Connected
Transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has reported the factual findings on these procedures
to the Board of Directors and confirmed that for the year ended
31st December, 2010 the Continuing Connected Transactions (i)
have received approval of the Board of Directors of the Company;
(i) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company,
where applicable; (iii) have been entered into in accordance with
the terms of the agreements governing the transactions; and (iv)
have not exceeded the respective cap amounts for the year ended
31st December, 2010 as set out above in respect of each of the
Continuing Connected Transactions.
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REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration policy of the Group is set on basis of the
employees’ merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments package of the Directors of the Company are
reviewed and concluded by the Remuneration Committee, with
consideration to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set
out under the section headed “Share Option Schemes” above.

COMPETING BUSINESS INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed below, as at 31st December, 2010, none of the
Directors nor their respective associates had any interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with any business of the Group.

During the Year, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited (“CTF"), of
which the family members of Datd Dr. Cheng Yu-tung (including
Dato Dr. Cheng Yu-tung himself and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry,
both non-executive Directors of the Company) had controlling
interests, owned about 37.01% of the issued share capital of New
World Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 0017) (“NWD")
which in turn owned about 72.29% of the issued share capital of
New World Department Store China Limited (Stock Code: 0825)
("NWDS"). Both NWD and NWDS are companies whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. NWDS, which was founded in 1993 and listed in
July 2007 currently operates and/or manages a department store
business selling merchandise, from direct purchase and through
concessionaire counters. As at 31st December, 2010, NWDS
operated and managed 32 department stores with an aggregate
gross floor area of about 962,570 square metres in seventeen
cities in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") (namely Wuhan,
Shenyang, Wuxi, Harbin, Tianjin, Ningbo, Beijing, Shanghai, Dalian,
Kunming, Lanzhou, Xiamen, Chongaing, Changsha, Chengdu,
Anshan and Nanjing). As such, the business of NWDS may
compete directly or indirectly with the business of the Group in
Hong Kong and the PRC.
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Directors' Report (continued) EEFRE @)

COMPETING BUSINESS INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

The senior management of NWDS is currently led by Mr. Cheung
Fai-yet, Philip (“Mr. Philip Cheung"), the executive director and
managing director of NWDS. Dat6 Dr. Cheng Yu-tungis not a
director of, and is not involved in the daily operations of, NWDS.
Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry, chairman and non-executive director
of NWDS, also is not involved in the day-to-day operations of
NWDS which are supervised and run by Mr. Philip Cheung. The
management of NWDS and the management of the Group are
separate and distinct. There has never been any exchange of
information nor communication between the two managements.
The management of NWDS only participates in the management
and operations of NWDS but not that of the Company. In relation
to NWD, two of its directors, Dato Dr. Cheng Yu-tung and Dr.
Cheng Kar-shun, Henry, are also the non-executive Directors of
the Company. Since the completion of the acquisition of Sogo
Hong Kong Company Limited in May 2001, neither CTF nor any
of these two directors has participated in the daily operations
and management of the Group. As non-executive Directors, it is
not intended that they will participate in the daily operations and
management of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S SECURITIES

For the year ended 31st December, 2010, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles although there are no restrictions against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December, 2010, the Group employed a total of 983
employees in Hong Kong and 1,549 employees in the PRC. Staff
costs (excluding directors” emoluments), including employees’
share option charges of HK$6.2 million (2009: HK$23.1 million),
amounted to HK$304.8 million (2009: HK$294.5 million) for the
year. The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees
are competitive and in line with market trend and its employees
are rewarded on a performance related basis within the general
framework of the Group's salary and bonus system. For the year
ended 31st December, 2010, no share options (2009: 20,400,000
shares) were granted to employees of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group is principally involved in retail business. The five largest
customers and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for less than 30% of the Group's turnover and purchases
respectively during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as of the date of this
report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$105,000 (2009: HK$241,000).

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). A
resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
reappoint Deloitte as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Luen-hung, Thomas
Managing Director

28th February, 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BUREMBES

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFESTYLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 163,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31st December 2010, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms

of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st
December 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28th February 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEETEWER

for the year ended 31st December 2010 EE —F—ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-B2F | —TTNEF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
hFsa FHET FHET
Turnover | 7 4,317,465 3,756,208
Cost of sales SHEKAR 7 (1,836,222) (1,625,231)
Gross profit EF 2,481,243 2,130,977
Other income HAbA 9 172,614 203,939
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SHRK AR (876,827) (807,705)
Administrative expenses ITEFAX (204,659) (273,395)
Investment income KERA 10 58,079 48,355
Fair value changes on investment properties & &% N\ L (EEE) 63,154 178,756
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity FE(E—R LRI T
S Al 24,252 12,341
Discount arising on acquisition of additional U B8 — KB A BRI
interest in an associate RmEY 7 ITE 40 114,556 —
Share of profits of associates JERES & N R A 99,632 25,360
Reversal of impairment loss on loan receivable FEU E FUR (B &5 18 # (O] 13 — 18,180
Finance costs EhE R AR " (35,788) (38,366)
Profit before taxation R 75 A A 1,896,256 1,498,442
Taxation 18 12 (330,410) (303,547)
Profit for the year IR T 13 1,565,846 1,194,895
Other comprehensive income HibZ2EUA
Exchange differences arising on translation HME G HINETS R EE A
of foreign operation ZIEH =% 159,428 28,488
Share of exchange differences of associates — JE(LEE& /A RIEH =58 20,240 3,861
Share of exchange difference of a jointly JEAE —RERIEHIEES
controlled entity MEH =R 7,931 1,403
Transfer of properties to investment ) EEE RIS E
properties ES
— surplus on revaluation — EhAKR — 159,948
— deferred tax relating to revaluation —EBREHEHKZ
surplus RIERE TR — (39,987)
Change in fair value for available-for-sale A EREATE
investments o — (18,487)
Reclassification upon impairment of At E S E R E R
available-for-sale investments Eb iRl — 18,487
Other comprehensive income for the year REFEMPEBA
(net of tax) (FBRBEIE) 187,599 153,713
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFZEPRALLEE 1,753,445 1,348,608
Profit for the year attributable to: REEEEF] :
Oowners of the Company KRARIER A 1,407,534 1,142,468
Non-controlling interests JEPE AR A 2 158,312 52,427
1,565,846 1,194,895
Total comprehensive income attributable to:  fE(E 2 TE UL A 4258 -
Oowners of the Company VIN/NETEF DN 1,577,723 1,294,136
Non-controlling interests IR AR = 175,722 54,472
1,753,445 1,348,608
Earnings per share BIREF)
— basic —BEK 16 HK$0.8392 HK$0.6849
— diluted — 16 HK$0.8340 Hk$0.6812
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBMRRE
at 31st December 2010 A= E—ZEF+_-_A=+—H
2010 2009
—E-ZTF | —ZTTNF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FET F&TT
Non-current assets EMENEE
Investment properties LB 17 1,609,018 1,411,108
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEMEE 18 3,815,144 3,895,014
Prepaid lease payments TERHAENIE 19 1,334,765 1,407,190
Long-term deposits paid EHEH@? 20 3,083 237,391
Interests in associates RESE R T*fé 21 1,348,828 720,442
Interest in a jointly controlled entity 5/\\ RERNEHEREREE 22 467,929 502,298
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 23 — 9,688
Club debenture TGS 12,737 10,756
8,591,504 8,193,887
Current assets MBNEE
Inventories 78 25 61,611 60,513
Prepaid lease payments TENHEERIE 19 21,721 9,952
Trade and other receivables JEWERR R KA eI GRIE 26 214,012 163,924
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity FEU — K LR 4 T a2
FRIE 27 — 47,484
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEEFAERZ
profit or loss SREE 24 786,370 341,457
Loans receivable FEWCE R 28 — 157,583
Pledged bank deposits BRI TIER 29 — 120,203
Bank balances and cash RITEEFRIAS 30 3,760,829 2,769,490
4,844,543 3,670,606
Assets classified as held for sale DIEAFENEEE 31 436,909 436,909
5,281,452 4,107,515
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables FERTBR IR K E A BT 3R 32 2,009,463 2,145,163
Amount due to a jointly controlled entity FEft—ZK LR34
BEEIE 27 29,934 —
Tax payable r%#%ﬁﬂlﬁﬁ 166,742 114,084
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITIEE — —FAEH 33 2,985,200 1,043,290
5,191,339 3,302,537
Net current assets MEVEEFE 90,113 804,978
8,681,617 8,998,865
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Bank borrowings — due after one year HRITEE — —F1& 25 33 413,000 2,143,430
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEAE 34 198,576 168,983
Amount due to a non-controlling XS EPNE]
shareholder of subsidiaries —Z IR AR R 2 X 35 166,987 3,445
778,563 2,315,858
7,903,054 6,683,007
MNEBRBREBBRAR —T—TFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) 47 BAFE AR 3% (@)

at 31st December 2010 A= ZE—ZF+_-A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-2F | —EThHF
NOTE HK$°000 HK$'000
Pt FHET FAT
Capital and reserves BRI E
Share capital f& 7 36 8,395 8,368
Reserves Gl 7,208,489 6,113,101
Equity attributable to owners of the Company XA &1#HE AE(hER 7,216,884 6,121,469
Non-controlling interests eI 686,170 561,538
7,903,054 6,683,007
The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 163 were FIOE1BELRAVBRREZEZERN - ——
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on FZAZTNASERERETE - YR TIES
28th February 2011 and are signed on its behalf by: REEZF:
Lau Luen-hung, Thomas 2|&e Doo Wai-hoi, William HES
Managing Director EEX b Executive Director HiTEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

for the year ended 31st December 2010 &% —

—EET A=t HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAERAREDS
Share-
Capital Asset hased Non-
Share Share redemption revaluation  Exchange  payment Investment  Retained controlling
capital  premium  Reserve  reSeve  reserve  reSeve  reserve  resenve profits Total  interests Total
EAEE  EEE( Rtz
Ra  BOEE L] L] B ELRE B RERE  RER &t FEREE it
HSO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HS00  HKSO00 KRS0 HKS000
Tin Tén Tém Thn Thn ThL T TEn Tién Tén Tén Tén
(Note (38)
()
At st January 2009 HN-EENE-F-H 830 2297583 - 166 3680 212615 123448 — 230 5 o 5898
Bxchange diferences arsngon— BEBNEREEZEY
translation of foreign operations 2% - - - - - %738 - - - %738 1790 2488
Shareofexchange diferences of  FERRAATIES 28
ass0ciates - - - - - 356 - - - 356 %% 381
Shareofexchange diferenceol  FEE—FARSIEE
ajoinly controlld entity ER %ﬁ - - - - - 1408 - - - 148 - 143
Translerof properties to imestment H2EAZRENE
properties
—Surplus on revelugtion —E[RR% - - - - 159% - - - - 15998 - 15998
— Gefered ax eating o —jiEtRG BT
revaluation Surplus - - - - (39%7) - - - - (39987) - (39%7)
Change infairvalie for vallable- TR HEREZATEES
for-sale nvestments - - - - - - - (18487) - (18487) - (18487)
Reclassfication upon impaimentof - A EREHERERAE
avaladlefor-sale investments - - - - - - - 18487 - 18487 - 18487
Othercomprehensiencome. A ERBAERA
forthe year - - - - 119961 30 - - - 191,668 2085 153713
Proftforthe year KERET - - - - - - - — 10 110 D00 119085
Tolcomprehensieincome. AEE2ENALE
forthe year - - - - 119961 307 - - 10468 1294136 M 1308808
Recogniion o equityseted share - BZRELERR(E
based payments - - - - - - 81 - - 8170 - 810
Acouistion o addonal inerestin - - BAT  B5hiER
asubsiday - - - - - - - - - — (016 (1916
Share repurchiase hEE
— repurchase of shares —E0Rh (t2 - - - - - - - - 62 - (62
—pemumonrepurchaseof  —EBRRZEE
shares - 90937) - - - - - - - 90937 - (90937)
— transfer —#3 - - - ) - - - - (] - - -
Brercise and lapse of share optons. ERER RN 0 B - - - - ) - IE VR Y1) — T
Divdends pad tononcontioling ~ RER FHERERRS
nterests - - - - - - - - - - 210 2100
Dividens paid BEfRE - (08 - - - - - - - [0 — 8
Transfr of resenes 2Rk - - 1315 - - - - S AL - - -
At 315t December 2009 REETAETZAZH-A 838 191641 B W W W e —360B eM9 WIER s30T
Bctnge diferencesarsingon— MES) EREE ZEN 2
transation offoreign oerations - - - - - 1188 - - - 15188 7545 159428
Shereofexchange diferencesof BB ATIES 28
as00ates - - - - - 1037 - - - 10375 9865 040
Srareofchenge diferenceof  E-FARIEERES
ajointy controlld entity £ - - - - - 7931 - - - 7931 - 7931
Otercompretienshenome.——~ AEERB2ERA
forthe year - - - - - 170,189 - - - 1707189 17410 18759
Profitfor e year KERRT - - - - - - - — s 1407 198312 156586
Tolcomprehensiveincome. - REE2EMN L8
forthe year - - - - - 170189 - — s 15mIs 72 1753448
Recognition of equity-setted share - B ALERRBRR
ased payments - - - - - - 15,365 - - 15,365 - 19,365
Brercie and lapse ofshare optons. ERERE R i 168 - - - - (60 - AR TN - u®
Dividends paid tononcontroling 2 EA T ARERRS
interests - - - - - - - - - - b B
Dividencs paid B[RS - [ - - - - - - - [ - 3%
Transferofresenves B - - 18219 - - - - - 629 - - -
At 315t December 2010 H-E-FFt2A=1- 83% 1421 B33 m 12360 Hesm 199,144 — 507400 72688 06170 7903054
FREREEMBRAT —T-TFER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMER

for the year ended 31st December 2010 EE —F—ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-FF | —TThF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
BfsE F&T FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES PSS
Profit before taxation B 250 A g ) 1,896,256 1,498,442
Adjustments for: KAER AT A% -
Interest income on bank deposits RITFRZF BUA (12,384) (13,466)
Loan interests and other interest income ERFIE REAT S
A (6,066) (11,735)
Finance costs BhE R AR 35,788 38,366
Depreciation of property, plant and W - WEREREITE
equipment 209,068 200,671
Release of prepaid lease payments FERHEEREE 10,357 19,854
Dividend income from financial assets at AT EGFABRZZ
fair value through profit or loss SREEZRBWA (23,183) (1,551)
Dividend income from available-for-sale AHERE ZRE
investments WA — (3,100)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BE L& E
equipment &8 445 34
Fair value changes in respect of financial LAV ERABRE S
assets at fair value through profit or loss BMEEZ AT EEZE (16,446) (36,990)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale B ERE 2RE
investments =g — 18,487
Change in fair value of investment properties & & ¥ % 2 A F(EE (63,154) (178,756)
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity FEAE — R LRI
B ELH T (24,252) (12,341)
Share of profits of associates JE (R H & N B A (99.632) (25,360)
Write-down of obsolete inventories 5 ST EHIUR 1,012 193
(Reversal of) impairment for trade and other  FEL& BR 7 [z E b FE UL
receivables FIERE (B B]) s (71) 1,800
Waiver of non-current other payable e HAMIETRBNER
RIB 9 — (60,000)
Share-based payment expense BRI 1 R 2 15,365 48,170
Reversal of impairment loss on loan FEW & FOR B E5 18 B
receivable — (18,180)
Discount arising on acquisition of additional Uit B — SR B N R R A
interest in an associate HEmEY TR 40 (114,556) —
Discount arising on acquisition of associates ~ UgBEEt & N RIESE 2
ik - 8752
Operating cash flows before movements in LEEeEFHILERS
working capital mE 1,808,547 1,460,836
(Increase) decrease in inventories Fa (8 Rk (2,110) 1,969
Increase in trade and other receivables JFEE LAt B 5 R L At U R TR
=0 (50,017) (19,642)
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits B2 IR $R7 717 205 4 (1241) 120,203 (120,203)
Increase in trade and other payables JEAST BR SR R EL A FE A 3R IR
20 105,187 380,672
Increase in amount due to a jointly controlled Bt — K K RIfEHI &2
entity SRIAIE N 29,934 —
Cash generated from operations REEEMBIRE 2,011,744 1,703,632
Interest received BUF & 18,450 25,201
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BREEFEH (216,640) (165,994)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB ERSH (33,503) (65,254)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded BEBFIETHRT 1,984 141
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEBMBSEEFHE 1,782,035 1,507,726
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2010 2009
—E-FF | —TTHhF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
FfaE FET FAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATESAER
through profit or loss JEREE (855,938) (571,212)
Addition to prepaid lease payments TR AH & SIS BN (59,150) (216)
Addition to and deposit paid for property, BEYE  BEREHR
plant and equipment Efiize (334,715) (317,397)
Purchase of investment properties BEREYE (60,609) (3,374)
Purchase of equity-linked note BEERESEAEE — (67,072)
Purchase of club debenture EBEeMES (1,981) (9,406)
Decrease (increase) in loans receivable JERE FOR A (#80) 159,246 (188,700)
Increase in deposit paid for acquisition of WiE—REgE R E Bt
an associate HE2:)ll — (236,374)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assetsat  HERAFETABEZ
fair value through profit or loss SRVE BTSN 423,214 324,151
Proceeds from early redemption of IR P E R ISR IE
index-linked notes Frig K — 339,616
Proceeds from early redemption of IR ER MER I RE
equity-linked note Fri8 5% — 69,750
Repayment from (advance to) a jointly WE (g F) — KRS
controlled entity TR 2 A 47,484 (23,338)
Interest received from financial assets at LA ERABRES
fair value through profit or loss TRVEE 2 EFIE 14,214 8,819
Dividend received for financial assets at LA ERABRS
fair value through profit or loss TRMEEZBEREE 23,183 1,551
Dividend received from available-for-sale AHEERE 2 ERRE
investments — 3,100
Dividend received from a jointly controlled — SRR E
entity BB 66,552 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand H&E¥% - BE &EiE
equipment FRig sk 477 —
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREMHEMER
properties 4,889 —
Proceed from disposal of prepaid lease HEENHEEFREHER
payments 154,527 —
Proceeds from settle the derivative HETET A
instruments FR8 sk — 2,713
Acquisition of assets (net of cash and cash W BE & B (F0RR PTiis
equivalents acquired) RERBESEED) 39 — (11,720)
Acquisition of an associate IR — KB A F) — (573)
Acquisition of additional interest in Wi — KBt AT
an associate HEHME R (157,584) —
Acquisition of additional interest in W — KB R
a subsidiary HEIMER — (202,439)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEBFAREFE (576,191) (882,121)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash FIOWS (continued) AR SR EFRER @)

for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE—ZE—ZTF+—_A=+—HI-FE

2010 2009
—E-FF | —TTHhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEH
New bank borrowings raised EIRITEE 2,479,000 1,579,730
Exercise of share options T AR i 34,193 76,517
Advance from (repayment to) a non-controlling /@2 7
shareholder of subsidiaries IEIERR R R E R GEFR) 163,542 (14,884)
Repayment of bank borrowings EEFTEER (2,291,600) (1,413,700)
Dividends paid BRI AR B (531,866) (384,067)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BRI 468 FE4E AR
shareholders & B A% 8 (51,090) (21,047)
Finance costs paid ERBENA (40,567) (43,177)
Repurchase of ordinary shares fE O AR — (90,999)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEBTAR ST (238,388) (311,621)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRESSEYIEM
CASH EQUIVALENT HEE 967,456 313,984
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EREECE
DIFFERENCE 23,883 16,063
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING F#HERRESZEY
OF THE YEAR 2,769,490 2,439,443
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESRBESEEY
END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTING RTEERRS
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 3,760,829 2,769,490
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A I HRRMEE

for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE - T —F&+ - A=+—HIFE

GENERAL

The Company is a public listed company incorporated in
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The Company's
holding and ultimate holding company is Real Reward
Limited (“Real Reward"), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The addresses of the registered office
and the head office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information to the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are the
operation of “lifestyle” department stores and other retailing
format, and property development and property holding.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS")

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of

new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") that are mandatorily effective for 2010 financial
year ends, and has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
in advance of its effective date.

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)  Group cash-settled share-based

payment transactions
HKFRS 3 (as revised Business combinations
in 2008)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments
HKAS 27 (as revised Consolidated and separate financial
in 2008) statements

HKAS 39 (Amendments)  Eligible hedged items
HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSS issued in 2009

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSS issued in

2008

HK(FRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to
OWners

HK-Int 5 Presentation of financial statements

— Classification by the borrower of
aterm loan that contains
a repayment on demand clause

Except as described below, the application of the other new
and revised Standards and Interpretations in the current year
has had no material effect on these consolidated financial
Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 75 B 75 2R < M 5T @

for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE—ZE—ZTF+—_A=+—HI-FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 17 Leases

As part of “Improvements to HKFRSs” issued in 2009,

HKAS 17 “Leases” has been amended in relation to the
classification of leasehold land. Before the amendments to
HKAS 17, the Group was required to classify leasehold land
as operating leases and to present leasehold land as prepaid
lease payments in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The amendments to HKAS 17 have removed such a
requirement. The amendments require that the classification
of leasehold land should be based on the general principles
set out in HKAS 17, that is, whether or not substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased
asset have been transferred to the lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in
the amendments to HKAS 17, the Group reassessed the
classification of unexpired leasehold land as at 1st January
2010 based on information that existed at the inception of
the leases. The application of the amendments to HKAS 17
has had no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “financial
instruments” (HKFRS 9) (as issued in November 2009 and
revised in October 2010) and the related consequential
amendments in advance of its effective date. The Group

has chosen 1st January 2010 as its date of initial application
(i.e. the date on which the Group has assessed its existing
financial assets and financial liabilities) because 1st January
2010 is the beginning date of the current reporting year. In
accordance with transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, the
Group has chosen not to restate comparative information.

HKFRS 9 introduces new classification and measurement
requirements for financial assets that are within the

scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement”. Specifically, HKFRS 9 requires all financial
assets to be classified and subsequently measured at either
amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

As required by HKFRS 9, debt instruments are measured at
amortised cost only if (i) the asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and (i) the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (collectively referred to as “amortised
cost criteria”). If either of the two criteria is not met, the debt
instruments are classified as at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL").

However, the Group may choose at initial recognition to
designate a debt instrument that meets the amortised cost
criteria as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at
amortised cost are subject to impairment.

Investments in equity instruments are classified and
measured as at FVTPL except when the equity investment
is not held for trading and is designated by the Group as at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI").
If the equity investment is designated as at FVTOCI, all gains
and losses, except for dividend income that is generally
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with HKAS 18
“Revenue”, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 also contains requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities. One major change in the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities relates
to the accounting for changes in fair value of a financial
liability (designated as at fair value through profit or 10ss)
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 75 B 75 2R < M 5T @

for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE —ZT—ZTF+—-A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

As at 1st January 2010, the directors of the Company have
reviewed and assessed the Group's existing financial assets
and liabilities. The initial application of HKFRS 9 has resulted
in the reclassification of the Group's investments in unlisted
equity securities (not held for trading) that were previously
classified as available-for-sale financial assets under HKAS
39 to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group has not designated these equity securities as at
FVTOCI on initial application. In addition, HKFRS 9 had no
impact on the Group's investments in unlisted debt and
listed equity securities as they are held for trading purpose
and are used to be measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Also, on initial recognition, there has had no material
impact on the Group's financial assets subsequently
measured at amortised cost under HKAS 39 as they met the
amortised cost criteria specified in HKFRS 9.

The application of HKFRS 9 affected the Group's result in
current year. The fair value gains in relation to the Group's
investments in unlisted equity securities (not held for trading)
of HK$3,910,000 that would have been recognised in other
comprehensive income under HKAS 39 is now recognised in
profit or loss. Accordingly, the profit reported for 2010 has
been increased by HK$3,910,000 as a result of the change

in accounting policy, resulting in an increase on the Group’s
basic and diluted earnings per share by HK$ 0.0023 for the
year ended 31st December 2010.

As at 31st December 2010, investments in unlisted equity
securities (not held for trading) of HK$13,598,000 have been
included in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

In relation to the classification and remeasurement of
financial liabilities, the application of HKFRS 9 has had no
impact to the Group's results and financial position as the
Group did not have financial liabilities designated as at fair
value through profit or loss in both years.

The changes in accounting policies had no financial impact
on the consolidated statement of financial position as at
1st January 2009. Accordingly, no restated consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1st January 2009 is
presented.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised Standards and Interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

HKFRSS (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs issued

in 2010
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Disclosures — Transfers of financial
assets®
HKAS 12 (Amendments)  Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
assets’
HKAS 24 (as revised Related party disclosures®
in 2009)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)  Classification of rights issues®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
(Amendments)

Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirement®

HK(FRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with
equity instruments?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2010
or 1st January 2011, as appropriate.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July

3 E%Za%tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July

4 E%Zal'tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
° Eg‘gftive for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
6 Eg‘%tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February

The amendments to HKAS 12 titled “Deferred tax: Recovery
of underlying assets” mainly deal with the measurement of
deferred tax for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40
“Investment property”. Based on the amendments, for the
purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets for investment properties measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of the investment
properties are presumed to be recovered through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.
The directors anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 12 may have a significant impact on
deferred tax recognised for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 75 B 75 2R < M 5T @

for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE—ZE—ZTF+—_A=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
value, as explained in accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
special purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Prior to 1st January 2010,
losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess
of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity
were allocated against the interests of the Group except to
the extent that the non-controlling interests had a binding
obligation and were able to make an additional investment
to cover the losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group'’s ownership interests in existing
Subsidiaries on or after 1st January 2010

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
Subsidiaries prior to 1st January 2010

Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were treated

in the same manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries, with
goodwill or a bargain purchase gain being recognised where
appropriate. For decreases in interests in subsidiaries,
regardless of whether the disposals would result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiaries, the difference
between the consideration received and the adjustment to
the non-controlling interests was recognised in profit or 10ss.

Business combinations

Business combinations that took place on or after 1st
January 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 75 B 75 2R < M 5T @

for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE—ZE—ZTF+—_A=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations that took place on or after 1st
January 2010 (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 "Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “"Employee benefits”
respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions
of the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS
2 “Share-based payment” at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are
measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or 10ss as a
bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations that took place on or after 1st
January 2010 (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts

of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or another measurement basis required by
another Standard.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit
or loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

Business combinations that took place prior to 1st January
2010

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition was measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control

of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that met the relevant
conditions for recognition were generally recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an

asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of

the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
recognised amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after assessment, the
Group's interest in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the excess was
recognised immediately in profit or 10ss.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree was initially
measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 75 B 75 2R < M 5T @

for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE—ZE—ZTF+—_A=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting except when the
investment is classified as held for sale. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of the net assets of the associates, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group's share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment and
is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
as a single asset. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part

of the carrying amount of the investment in the associate.
Any reversal of impairment 10ss is recognised to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of
a separate entity in which venturers have joint control over
the economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly
controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in
the Group's share of the net assets of the jointly controlled
entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals
or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled entity),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the jointly controlled entity recognised
at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. Goodwill
is included within the carrying amount of the investment and
is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
as a single asset. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part

of the carrying amount of the investment in the associate.
Any reversal of impairment 10ss is recognised to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled
entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the Group’
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the jointly controlled entity that are not related to
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 75 B 75 2R < M 5T @

for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE—ZE—ZTF+—_A=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of the assets’ (disposal
groups’) previous carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are sold and title
has been passed.

Income from concessionaire sales is recognised upon sales
of goods by the relevant shops.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Minimum guaranteed sales commission is recognised in
accordance with terms of contracts.

Interest income from a financial asset including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investment is recognised when

the shareholders’ right to receive payment have been
established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised

in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes

an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in asset revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 75 B 75 2R < M 5T @

for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE—ZE—ZTF+—_A=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at
cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of
buildings commences when they are available for use (i.e.
when they are in the location and condition necessary for
them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties include
land held for undetermined future use, which is regarded as
held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are measured at cost, including

any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

For a transfer from an investment property to an owner-
occupied property as evidenced by commencement of
owner-occupation, the fair value of the property at the date
of transfer become the deemed cost of that property.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item
is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Club debenture

Club debenture is measured at cost less any impairment
losses.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter

into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the

fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly

in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's

foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate

of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in exchange
reserve. Such translation differences are reclassified from
equity to profit or loss in the period which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time

to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to

the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or l0ss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable

or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability

for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised

to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which

the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or 10ss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventories, which represent merchandise held for resale,
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of merchandise is determined by the retail method and
is computed by reference to the retail selling price of goods
less the average gross profit margins. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

BEREFTHEK @)

BiIE ()
BREHRIAEENMBERBRERE RS
HFHEERIABERZBRERBOL  ©
BEFRAGXEEAMEER - HEA
FRBMERNERE - BEERAAGBR
BEZFERRENREBEEE B HK
BEAREMEFARDSEEREERA
BERmMSBE T AZHBER - BIEHIA
MIBERER - BRIFREREER A b2
WA EZ N R ERNIER B - B
BT - ELEHRBETFAD BN E 2 EK
AR EENERERRIE

FE

FEERBEEENEM KRR RATE
BEEREEAR - BRRANTEERE
E2EZERTEERRTHENKRAE -
ARERFEREEREXBP A EERG
AHHEPTRAAR

ERIA
BEAEEETERKASRIASOKX
ZEIRTE  REAPBRARERSRE
BERERAE -

TREERTRABVFRAFENE -
WEkETeREENERBERATE
FABRZEREEREBABRERIN EE
ZEEEBERZRA  ROTHERAEEBE
EXEBBEIAFEMASHR RER
BRifE) - WA FEFABE 22/
BEXCRBERELEZEREIERINK
BN R IB s TR o

ELNERTABESAHEZEREER
RHBEERANGIGHER - TEBEX
HETXREARRIIETIHEMNREZ
BRAKKNEESABEINLESHE
7= o

MEREREEBRAR —T-TFFR 95



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 75 B 75 2R < M 5T @

for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE—ZE—ZTF+—_A=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement prior to 1st January 2010
Financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than the financial assets classified
as FVTPL, of which interest income is included in “change in
fair value of financial assets” under investment income line
item.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Held for trading investments are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly on profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or l0ss
excludes any dividend earned on these financial assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement prior to 1st January 2010
(continued)

Effective interest method (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Index-linked notes and equity-linked note are hybrid
instruments that contain embedded derivatives. The Group
has designated the index-linked notes and equity-linked note
as "financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” upon
initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes interest
earned from the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, loans receivable, bank balances and cash,
and amount due from a jointly controlled entity) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement prior to 1st January 2010
(continued)

Effective interest method (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as any of the other categories. Available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of

the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised

in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
reserve is reclassified to profit or l0ss (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Classification and measurement on and after 1st January
2010

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment
loss (except for debt investments that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

° the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value.

Income is recognised on an effective interest method (see
above) for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss
and is included in “investment income” line item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement on and after 1st January
2010 (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or 10ss (“FVTPL")

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL,
unless the Group designates an investment that is not held
for trading as at fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVTOCI") on initial recognition. The Group has not
designated investments in unlisted equity securities as at
FVTOCI on initial application of HKFRS 9 (see note 24).

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost
criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition,
debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria but
are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL. A debt
instrument may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency

that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.
The Group has not desighated any debt instrument as at
FVTPL on initial application of HKFRS 9.

Debt instruments are reclassified from amortised cost to
FVTPL when the business model is changed such that the
amortised cost criteria are no longer met. Reclassification of
debt instruments that are designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition is not allowed.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at

the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss is included in the
“investment income” line item in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. The net gain or 10ss recognised
in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on
these financial assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting

period. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective

evidence that, as a result of one or more events that

occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have

been affected.

Prior to 1st January 2010, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an available-for-sale equity investment

below its cost is considered to be an objective evidence
of impairment. Impairment losses for available-for-sale
equity investments will not be reversed through profit
or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value

subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other

comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
reserve.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinguency in

interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in

the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the

average credit period of 30 days, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or 10ss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment 10ss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a

group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all
of its liabilities.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial Liabilities and Equity (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade and
other payables, concessionaire sales payable and amount
due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase
of the Company'’s own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company’s own equity instruments.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and

the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of employee services received in an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction is determined
by reference to the fair value of share options at the grant
date. The fair value of employee services is expensed

on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share based payment
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on

a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Other government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. The following are estimates

that the directors have made in the process of applying

the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated
financial statements.

Income taxes
At 31st December 2010, no deferred tax asset has been

recognised on the tax loss of approximately HK$491.6 million

(2009: HK$388.4 million) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future assessable
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in
the future. In cases where the estimated future assessable
profits or taxable temporary difference are more than
previously estimated, a material recognition of deferred

tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
period in which the revised estimate takes place.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 33, net of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained profits.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on

a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider

the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class

of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the

Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-

backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of

existing debt.

The gearing ratio at the year end was as follows:

BEAREREE®)
KATEETRREERER - EBZR
Hr—#5 BEeEZREASRARSLE
AXNEEZER RBEEE @Y AE
B 5 BRI B - BT R R AR
AR BT EREER A EEA T LR
AR o

REBBZEERBBLXRNT

2010 2009

—E-BF | —TTHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&x FAT

Debt (i) BE1%() (3,398,200) (3,186,720)
Pledged bank deposits BEEPIRITER — 120,203
Cash and cash equivalents He RIRSZEEY 3,760,829 2,769,490
Net asset (debt) FEE(ER) 362,629 (297,027)
Equity (il T2 (i) 7,227,650 6,121,469
Net debt to equity ratio SRERS R N/A 4.85%

(i) Debt is defined as long- and short-term borrowings as

detailed in note 33.

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group

[0) Bz EEARPREHEE  FHEERN
PFESS ©

(i)  HRBEARFEEARIEAEEMARK

attributable to owners of the Company. AR fEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. @I HE
Categories of financial instruments SR ITEER
2010 2009
—E-2F | —ZZTThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets ERMEE
Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") BRTHERFABE
(note 24) SREE (M1sE24) 786,370 341,457
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EEE — 9,683
Financial assets measured at amortised cost &SR RS E 2
(including cash and cash equivalents) THEE
(BREREEESEED) 3,914,932 —
Loans and receivables (including cash and B ERZE (BEEE &
cash equivalents) ReEEY) — 3,225,929
Financial liabilities = =N
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1Z# 4 ANt 22 SR B & 5,261,890 5,218,162
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6. I E @)

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets under HKFRS 9 and HKAS
39 at the date of initial application, 1st January 2010.

TRHBT EMEEE-F—FF— A
A% BB REAEEYBRELEAEIH
REBRIEAIE RN B E -

New
New Original carrying
Original measurement carrying amount under
measurement category under amount under HKFRS 9
category under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 REES
HKAS 39 REBEBHERE RERE WRBSEL
REFBETER39S RIS 2 EETERIZ9%EZ L)
Z R 28R et 2385 EARREE HIREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Investments in unlisted equity Available-for-sale Financial assets at 9,688 9,688
instruments investments FVTPL
FELMERTARE AEHERE BEATERFAEREZ
TREE
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables Financial assets at 131,169 131,169
JFE ST BIR R B At FE M 5 U E K amortised cost
REEN AT EZ
TRIEE
Amount due from a jointly controlled  Loans and receivables Financial assets at 47,484 47,484
entity RRER amortised cost
W — R SR S B R FUIA RN AT EZ
DRIEE
Held for trading investments Financial assets at FVTPL  Financial assets at 341,457 341,457
BIEEEIRE BATEFAEREL FVTPL
TREE AT ERAEREZ
Loans receivable Loans and receivables Financial assets at 157,583 157,583
e E R e E R amortised cost
REEN AT EZ
Pledged bank deposits Loans and receivables Financial assets at 120,203 120,203
EIEERITER RRER amortised cost
REHEKAGTEZ
Bank balances and cash Loans and receivables Financial assets 2,769,490 2,769,490

ROBEERAE

There were no financial assets that the Group previously had
designated as at FVTPL under HKAS 39 that were subject to

FEWE R

reclassification upon the application of HKFRS 9.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group's major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale
investments, loans receivable, trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables, amount due from (to) a jointly
controlled entity, concessionaire sales payable, bank
borrowings and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
of subsidiaries. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its major
subsidiaries in Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of the
transactions are denominated. The functional currency of
those subsidiaries operating in PRC is RMB in which most

of its transactions are denominated. Certain bank balances
and bank borrowings of the Group are denominated in
United States Dollar (“USD") amounting to approximately
HK$543,785,000 (2009: HK$818,845,000) and HK$ 155,400,000
(2009: nil) respectively. In addition, certain financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sales
financial assets are denominated in USD amounting to
approximately HK$684,639,000 (2009: HK$272,647,000) and
nil (HK$9,688,000) respectively. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy as HK$ is effectively
pegged to USD. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 0.5% (2009: 0.5%) in exchange
rate of USD against HK$ while all other variables are held
constant. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 0.5%
(2009: 0.5%) change in foreign currency rates.

£RT B ()
BREREIERWREBE (8)

SMNE B (4F)
TRAVNNEBERET LB T Z ERA 4
HIR05% (—FTNF : 0.5%) KIEHE) -
AT H s B B 55 MBS 2 BURE © 8
RESMEBRRLBRINESHEETEIRE -
W EHREE R1Z0.5% (ZFTNF :
0.5%) HNE R ) I EH -

Year ended 31st December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2010 2009
—B-FF | —ZTThHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FET

Increase (decrease) in profit for the year PR A CRl )
— if HK$ weakens against USD — WEABTHELRE 5,365 5,457
— if HK$ strengthens against USD — BB ITHETLHE (5,365) (5,457)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Interest rate risk

As at 31st December 2010 and 2009, the cash flow interest
rate risk relates primarily to the Group’s floating-rate bank
deposits and bank borrowings. The fair value interest rate
risk relates primarily to fixed-rate bank deposits as at 31st
December 2010, whereas, as at 31st December 2009, it
related primarily to fixed-rate bank deposits and loans
receivable. The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise. The fair value
interest rate risk on bank deposits is insignificant as the fixed
deposits are short-term.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has
been determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for bank borrowings and bank deposits at the end of the
reporting period and the reasonably possible change taking
place at the beginning of each year and held constant
through the year. Except that 0.1 basis points (2009: 0.1 basis
points) decrease is used for bank balances after considering
the impact of minimum prevailing market rate of 0.001%
p.a., a 100 basis points (2009: 100 basis points) increase or
decrease is used for other variable rate balances, which
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The Group’s sensitivity to
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period while all

other variables were held constant is as follows:

£RIT B ®
BERBREE R 0 R EE ()

FEm ()
AEEHRSARNEERZHBE - IR
BRmEMREAE BRTEERRITER
ZHERER - ARRESEFYE BT
HBEZEHMREFEFTIEEBE - KT
£ R R E R RS &K 2 0.001% F H
K RRITAERERARDONVEAER(ZF
TAF0VEEE) REMFBFELE
7 EAEMIRD10EEI (ZFET N
FI00EER)  ERREEEH AR
AREZ A RBBMNTE - EMEHEMBER
HETE AEERRESRMEE RN
KEBBREENT :

Year ended 31st December
BE+-A=t—-HILLFE

Increase (decrease) in profit for the year
— as aresult of increase in interest rate
— as aresult of decrease in interest rate

F R FIE 0 ORL )

— ERFIE EH
— BRI TS

The sensitivity to profit for the year has been increased
during the current year due to a higher bank balances

against the bank borrowings.

2010 2009
—E-BF | ZZThHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
3,626 (1,874)
33,944 1,121

HRBITERBRRITEE  ERAFE
H B R BRI 0
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at
31st December 2010 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of

the Group has formulated a defined fixed credit policy and
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures

to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade receivable regularly at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced. Retail sales are mainly on
cash basis, either in cash, debit and or credit card payments.
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade and other receivables, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies and government
authority.

770 Lifestyle International Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2010

@I B @)
BIEEREIER MR BE (@)

=B

RIE-ZF+-A=+—0 A&EEH
HBFDAREBTEEEMESBARNDHER
CREERY 2 EREERR  BEAH
BARRKFTLZEEEZREAE  REE
BEEERR  AEBEEERECD I ERARE
ZREEERE YEZE-HAR B
EEEERE MEEERLETHEMBE
B URREREEBARER ZE
AMEH- WIN AEEERNRSHREE
B € B & TR M Bl e U R SR 2 AT I Bl
78 UAREGRELT AT B GRIAE R SURE
BIE - Bt ARAREERR AEEZ
EERBRCAERD - TEHETENUR
SET AIARE - BERREEARER -
MR EERRSBRZEZETFIRER
A 52 ) b B MK 0 e L At B W SRR I S
EAEERBREFER

HREFTHRERREEFRARESE
B RZBRITRBARE SRS Ee 2
EERRAR -



FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Price risk

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale investments are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group
is exposed to security price risk. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments

with different risk profiles. Details of the financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
investments are set out in notes 24 and 23 respectively.

The Group's sensitivity to price risk on the financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
investments at the end of the reporting period while all other
variables were held constant is as follows:

@I B
BERBREE MR EE (E)

(0
AEBEAFEFABGEZEREERA
HHERENEBREHMEER 2 A TFE
FHE - Fit AEEmHRAESFERR
o BEREABMHBAIRARZIRER
AUNEERERR - RAFEFABRZ
TRMEERARHEREZFEDHER
BisE 24} 23

EEMEBH@FIAET  AEERBRES
RGEEAHEAFEFABRSZEREE
AR ERE 2 ERARGRENT

HK$'000
FAT

2010 —E-2F
Reasonably possible change in price B Z AR IEEE) 1%
Increase (decrease) in profit for the year FRREFIG M CF L)

— as a result of increase in price — HMERRIE I 7,864

— as a result of decrease in price — RRA B (7,864)
2009 —EENE
Reasonably possible change in price Bz AlpeaIEs 1%
Increase (decrease) in profit F A5 IS0 Rt A2>)

— as a result of increase in price — MBI 3,511

— as a result of decrease in price — R B (3,511)
Liquidity risk TEBEE R

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group'’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31st December 2010, the Group has
available unutilised borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$62 million (2009: HK$798 million). Details of which are set
out in note 33.

REBRBDE TR AEBERLE
FERERRENENAEEEBMTEE
RFZREMBASEEY  LHERS
RERBTE BEEBERRITEEZE
A ERETER RS -

AREERFERTEEFARBORDE
SHF - R-F-FET-A=+—R
AREZRRRETEERERL ALY
62,000,000 7T ( = ZZ L4 : 798,000,000
BIE) - REERRKIES -

FERREEsRAT —2-255% JIT
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EMIEBE®m
Financial risk management objectives and policies M REE B MW RBUER (8)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TEE R (E)
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRANAREHIETESRBERTELD
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table EHAH - TRIDIZBRAEE A gL BkE
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows HZ=FEH ULERaBE2IEMRES
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the MEBRETR - TREFHIENRERHLE
Group can be required to pay. The table includes estimated AZRERETERSRLTE 2L
interest payment based on interest rate at the end of the FREE ©

reporting date and principal cash outflows.

Liquidity and interest risk tables TENE 2 R E R
carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total ~ 31.12.2010
effective undiscounted  A=5-EF
interestrate  Less than -3 3months cash flows A

T 1 month months  tofyear Overfyear  HFHE =t-8
BRAE  -@EAR  -2=ER =EAZ-F  -ENL  BReRE  CBEE
% HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TER T TR TR TER

2010 ZE-2f%
Non-derivative financial liabilities HTEERER
Trade and other payables ERERRABERNTE - 968,798 623,349 74,622 — 1666769 1,666,769
Bank borrowings-variable rate iEm“ L Filkd 224 23,672 155591 2,843,882 490,019 3513164 3,398,200
Amount due to & jointly controlled ER-FAREHEER
entity - 29,934 - - - 29,934 29,934
Amount due to anon-controling ERHBL 2R
shareholder of subsidiaries REER - - - - 166,987 166,987 166,987
1,022,404 778,940 2,918,504 657,006 5,376,854 5,261,890
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total 3 122009
effective undiscounted - R=FENE
inferest rate Less than 3 3months cash flows 2R
ETS 1month months tofyear  Over1year BEER =+-A
BRHI= -fAn  —Z=fif =fRE-% —EhE Rehg LEAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T Titn T Fitr T Fitn
2009 ZEENE
Non-derivative financial liabilities HTEERER
Trade and other payables ERESREMERDTE - 812610 55,607 1,159,780 - 2027997 2007997
Bank borrowings — variable rate BES-FHHE 28 3715 11,145 1073014 2,024.985 3312859 3,186,720
Amount due to a non-controling EAMBLE—AEER
sharenolder of subsidiaries REZE7 - - - - 3445 3445 3445
816,325 66,752 2,230,794 2228430 5,344,301 5,218,162
The amounts included above for variable interest rate EXHFTEERBEZEFHNEIAR
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject Fref sRAFHMNEEEHERRME
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those HHEEAMEEHTmAEE -
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices.

o the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

£RIT B ®
NEE
SRMEERSRMEEY ATFEBTNT -

o HMIWIREERRGHEERSERET
LREZERMEEZATVENZEM

BHISENBETE °

. HittMEAERSBAMZATED
BARTEER  FREEZRER
ELIER -

2

BEERR REHERKANGEASMBHRRA
RreREERERABRRAEREAYF
ERE -

REEMBRRKRER 2 DA FEFE

TREHODTURAFERBRITEZLH

#
Aot RRATBEAFEREZES R —

m

i
|
b

E—RAFEASBIEEHMNEESL
BENERTISH® 2 RAEER
RIS H o

o  FE_BAFEFEDRF-RFAZ
wmEN BEEXABENERAE
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(continued)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. I E @)

Fair value measurements recognised in the REGEMBRRERER 2 A FEFE

consolidated statement of financial position ()

D Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived . BZMAFEFFE T AL IERIE A
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the BR MG SR (EABEE AZIE)
asset or liability that are not based on observable ZEENABZHERESE -
market data (unobservable inputs).

31st December 2010
—E2-BF+-H=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& -t 1 E= gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FTERT FERT FTERT
Financial assets at FVTPL: BATEFABRZ
CHEE:
Held for trading investments BHEEERE
— Listed equity securities — EMRAES 101,731 — — 101,731
— Unlisted debt securities —FLETES 671,041 — — 671,041
Others Hith
— Unlisted equity securities —ELmEAES | 13,598 — — 13,598
Total 4Bt 786,370 — — 786,370
31st December 2009
ZEENFTZA=T—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— BE-M F= e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT
Financial assets at FVTPL: BRAFEFAERZ
SREE:
Held for trading investments RIEEERE
— Listed equity securities — ik ARES 78,498 — — 78,498
— Unlisted debt securities —ELMESR 262,959 — — 262,959
Available-for-sale financial assets: AHEESREE
— Unlisted equity securities — EETRAES 9,688 — — 9,688
Total wet 351,145 — — 351,145
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TURNOVER

Turnover represents the amount received and receivable
for goods sold by the Group to outside customers,

net of discounts and sales related taxes, income from
concessionaire sales, service income and rental income
during the year, and is analysed as follows:

E S
ERBRAREAFERAIATFPER
B fh 2 B W WO IR T 0 K 3 S AR
BIE - R AP AR E WA - IR WA AR
HEWA - AT

2010 2009
—E-BF | ZZThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Sales of goods — direct sales BEmifE —HEHEE 2,491,562 2,200,038
Income from concessionaire sales RSB S MA 1,657,353 1,416,272
Service income BRFSUA 90,360 78,863
Rental income LW A 78,190 61,035
4,317,465 3,756,208

The cost of sales are analysed as follows: HERADNTIT :
Cost of goods sold BEmEEMAR 1,772,081 1,572,510
Other cost of sales EAhSHE R A 64,141 52,721
1,836,222 1,625,231

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focusing on good sold, services provided and
rental operation in distinct geographical locations.

The Group has two operating segments geographically,
Hong Kong and People’s Republic of China ("PRC") which
are managed separately. The Group determines its operating
segments based on the internal reports reviewed by the
Board of Directors of the Company that are used to allocate
resources and assess performance.

The Group has no customers that contributed over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group for both years.

o e E
ERARGEAEELTRARNATEF
&2 A 0T BRI AT AR e -
Bl R E R EARDERD BRAM
£H -

AEEEMELHER 2 RELEDH
EERBEARKME ([HE]) - K&
B EE SRR MBI IR
ZNERREEE L E DA -

REFEREF  AEBUTETFEEBH
AEE 7 B 10% ©

MESREBARAT —F-2F5E FI 5
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and
results by reportable segment.

DEBE R ()

DEURFEREE
REBIZRE D DB 2 U R EES
o -

Consolidated

Hong Kong PRC total
&8 a3 A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FTERT TERT
For the year ended 31st December 2010 BE-2-ZF
+tZRA=t—-HLEFE
Revenue Uz
External sales HoMEE 3,451,605 865,860 4,317,465
Result e
Segment result DEBEE 1,386,817 185,554 1,572,371
Fair value changes on investment AN FEE
properties 63,154
Discount arising on acquisition of Ui — 5K A R RE S
additional interest in an associate BREL 2 ITE 114,556
Investment income BERA 58,079
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity JE(E—R LRI
el 24,252
Share of profits of associates FEfEHEE A RLR A 99,632
Finance costs BERA (35,788)
Profit before taxation Il 1,896,256

Consolidated

Hong Kong PRC total
B H IREHTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
For the year ended 31st December 2009 #HE-ZTENF
+t-A=+—-HLEE
Revenue Wz
External sales HIMEE 3,059,433 696,775 3,756,208
Result e
Segment result DEPER 1,116,497 137,319 1,253,816
Fair value changes on investment properties BEMENFELS 178,756
Reversal of impairment loss on loan receivable  FEYCE R (B B3 18 (el 18,180
Investment income HEWA 48,355
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity FEME—RIEARIEHIE
S 12,341
Share of profits of associates e B N Rl 25,360
Finance costs BEMAR (38,366)
Profit before taxation B 7 BT 1,498,442

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without share of profits of associates and jointly controlled
entity, discount arising on acquisition of additional interest in
an associate, reversal of impairment loss on loan receivable,
fair value changes on investment properties, investment
income and finance costs. This is the measure reported to
the Board of Directors of the Company for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

1’6 Lifestyle International Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2010
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.
Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

liabilities by reportable segment:

DEER @)

’“‘Bﬁ?&ﬁﬁ
REBERAIREDHEDZEERBED
W

Consolidated

Hong Kong PRC total
o H REBE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET BT FET
As at 31st December 2010 R-ZB—2F
t+=ZRA=t—H
Assets B
Segment assets DEEE 4,348,087 6,909,005 11,257,092
Financial assets at fair value through BAFERT B
profit or loss SREE 786,370
Interest in a jointly controlled entity R—REFFHEE
W% 467,929
Interests in associates REE A RIS 1,348,828
Unallocated assets ROMEE 12,737
Consolidated total assets AEBEERE 13,872,956
Liabilities =
Segment liabilities DEEE 962,850 1,046,613 2,009,463
Amount due to a jointly e — KL RIZ
controlled entity BRE 29,934
Bank borrowings RITIEE 3,398,200
Unallocated liabilities RAoELEE 532,305
Consolidated total liabilities RAaERE 5,969,902
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
&8 H HEBE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FaET FET
Other segment information Hith o HEs
Amounts included in the measure of SFENENER
segment profit or 10ss or segment assets: é?‘@%Z%{%ﬁ
Addition to non-current assets FRBEERE 1,310 214,990 216,300
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BEREREZ
and equipment e 79,540 129,528 209,068
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HENE  BEREE
plant and equipment < (Wz) BiE (103) 548 445
(Reversal of) impairment for trade JFE M B T N At L
and other receivables A2 (BE)RE (112) a1 (71)
Provision for write-down of obsolete TEIETE E MR B
inventories 638 374 1,012
Release of prepaid lease payment A EFIEE R — 10,357 10,357
Share-based payment ESLENE 15,365 — 15,365

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

Mz : JERBDEETBEEBRARNREERE

MEREREEBRAR —FT-TFFR 117
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZDEBER (@)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PEEERAE(E)
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
B% H RABE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FHET
As at 31st December 2009 R-ZBENF
+=A=+-—H
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 3,946,293 6,565,400 10,511,693
Available-for-sale investments AEHNERE 9,638
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or l0ss TREE 341,457
Interest in a jointly controlled entity R—REREEHIES
i 502,298
Interests in associates REEE AR R 720,442
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity eI —R AR E S
IH 47,484
Loans receivable U E TR 157,583
Unallocated assets ROBLEE 10,757
Consolidated total assets RABEREAE 12,301,402
Liabilities =4
Segment liabilities DEEE 893,542 1,251,621 2,145,163
Bank borrowings RITEE 3,186,720
Unallocated liabilities AoaE 286,512
Consolidated total liabilities REaERE 5,618,395
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
58 H AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FAT FHL
Other segment information HitnaBER
Amounts included in the measure of FrENEMEEU DI EE
segment profit or 10ss or segment assets: BIEZ HFE
Addition to non-current assets IFRBEERE 40,528 732,010 772,538
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 913 - BiE RRE2ITE 93,101 107,570 200,671
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HE W% - BE & B
pd 1= 66 18 84
Impairment for trade and other receivables JRE LT BR 3R % R MR IR R (B 1,800 — 1,800
(Reversal of) provision for write-down of ST S OB (B ) B
obsolete inventories (208) 401 193
Waiver of non-current other payables R IEMEN M ER X 60,000 — 60,000
Release of prepaid lease payment BENAESIEE R — 19,854 19,854
Share-based payment IR 48,170 — 48,170
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and Mk : ERBEETEFEeRIARELERE
deferred tax assets. BE -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEER

Geographical information hEE R
Analyses of the Group’s non-current assets by geographical REEFMEMRSE D 2 ARNEBIFREEE
location of the assets are detailed below: DT
2010 2009
—E-EZf —TThF
Hong Kong PRC | HongKong PRC
58 H BB H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAET FAET TET
Non-current assets EnBEE 1,910,910 4,863,837 | 1977722 4983737
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and et IERBEETRESRITAREERIEE
deferred tax assets. Ee
OTHER INCOME 9. HgA
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Management fee income ERBRA 59,730 51,031
Project income IH B A 7,769 8,716
Waiver of non-current other payable (note) A0 H b IE T B FE N 7B
(F3E) — 60,000
Government subsidy B 23,805 17,055
Others HAith 81,310 67,137
172,614 203,939
Note: In October 2007, the Group acquired the 60% of the issued M : —TTLF+A AEBRETHAL

share capital of Ample Sun Group Limited which holds
99% equity interest in Future Mall. This non-current other
payable represents part of the purchase consideration
being withheld in respect of the acquisition which the
vendor guaranteed that the amount of investment income
(representing any attributable net profit after tax but before
depreciation and amortisation from Future Mall during the
period between the completion date of this acquisition and
30th April 2011) for the Group from this acquisition will not
be less than RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$113,700,000) (“Investment Income Guarantee”).

KTESA D Z N+ EEE Z Ample Sun
Group Limited B 5 2 /N +E TR o
EIERBEMEMRARRRKBARENZ
BNBENRE  (EAEFMAKERZK
BRAESHREKZSE (AT EIER%RF
- BRE RERTESHKETRA
E-T——FENA=+AMNEELITER
44 15 T K A A R % 100,000,000 7t (49
% 113,700,000 7T ) ([1% & U A &
R]) e

MERREEERAT —T-2FFE TTQ
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—EE+-A=1T—HLFE

9. OTHER INCOME (continued) 9. EHfug A @)
Note: (continued) BT ()
During 2008, the Group entered into an equity interests swap “EENFHM AEBTY - EREE
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of B M—E2BLE=FHELERTE
its 51% equity interest in Future Mall. Following the equity BESZ AT IRE - BREERE X
interests swap, Future Mall has become an associate of the TESEKARER 25 & A FmEEE
Group and its operation has changed from property holding tWEZZTEENF A —BRUEEBEEDE
for rental income to operation of a department store since L‘MAZHX%E%H&U\ CHAKEREE TR
1st January 2009. Against this background and the changes, BESMEST AEBREARE &
the Group and the vendor agreed that it is no longer possible RIAEERERERAER  WE=ZF
to ascertain whether the Investment Income Guarantee TNFTZA - AEEEREF MR
would be met and in December 2009, the Group and the wBt BRREASEEAEERERLTE
vendor entered into a settlement agreement whereby, the INERE  MAKET T ERE 5 ERKK
vendor agreed that the Group is not required to repay the E%ETD@%E?I\&%S@%& oAt BEE
withheld amount and the Group will not ask for additional TENF+ZA=+—BREEEFIL
investment return from the Vendor other than the amount 1§i#m§ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ§ﬁ 60,000,000 7T -
settled. Accordingly, the HK$60,000,000 non-current other EHE_ZZNF+_A=T—HIFHE
payable, which repayment was considered by the directors R AHAMIA -
as probable at 31st December 2008, was recognised as other
income during the year ended 31st December 2009.
INVESTMENT INCOME REWA
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Interest income on bank deposits TFER 2 T B 12,384 13,466
Interest income on loans receivable Jﬂ&f% K2 FLBHA 6,066 1,727
Other interest income HAabF S A — 8
Dividend income 3SR ON
Held for trading BIEEBERE 23,183 1,551
Available-for-sale investments Vﬁ%&i y — 3,100
Realised gain (loss) on disposals of HESRMEEZCEE
financial asset Weas (&518)
Held for trading investments BIEEEIRE 2,163 2,943
Financial assets designated at fair value BEEAFEFAEBRZZ
through profit or loss TRIEE — (4,622)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A SR EREEE
investments — (18,487)
Change in fair value of financial assets CREEATESE
Held for trading investments BIEEEIRE 14,283 31,892
Financial asset designated at fair value BEZEATFEFAEBRY
through profit or loss TREE — 4,064
Derivative instrument PTETA — 2,713
58,079 48,355

720 Lifestyle International Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2010



11.

12.

FINANCE COSTS 11. BB R
2010 2009
—E-FF | ZZTTHHF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interest on: ATIEE 2 FI8 -
Bank borrowings and overdrafts: RITEERBEY ¢
— wholly repayable within five years — BRAFRNEHEE 31,320 28,151
— wholly repayable after five years — ERAFREHEE 8,110 13,814
Others Hitb 1,137 1,212
40,567 43,177
Less: Amounts capitalised B BN SRR (4,779) (4,811)
35,788 38,366
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on HK FR-BEARMEZBENET  HREEE
dollar denominated borrowings at interest rates calculated BEE 2EBFBRTBEFENT0.36
by reference to the HIBOR, ranging from 0.36% t0 0.75% EZ075E(ZZZNF : NT0.34EZE0.64
(2009: 0.34% t0 0.64%) per annum, on qualifying assets. B) st ER B2 ATEE -
TAXATION 12. I8
2010 2009
—EB-BF | —ZTTHHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
The charge comprises: ST HBETYEE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEH 228,720 190,679
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EFTISHE 69,030 55,254
Under(over)provision in prior years: BAEFEDTRE (BRE) B
Hong Kong BB 3,067 (93)
300,817 245,840
Deferred tax charge (note 34) IEERIA ST B (MI3E34)
Current year REE 29,593 57,707
330,410 303,547
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated B ARG BRI E G & 2 & 5+ R

assessable profit for both years.

S FE 16.5%5HE -
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12. TAXATION (continued) 12. BLIE ()
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on RIBFEFEAREMBOEMERE(E
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation FECE 7)) &ﬁ%ﬁﬁ BOEBE RG] -
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries MEBARE_ZZENF—HA—HEZH
is 25% from 1st January 2008 onwards. R 25% o
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before REREXHBFE 2 ERR KRR B
taxation per consolidated statement of comprehensive A EERIAT
income as follows:
2010 2009
—E-BF | —_TThF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before taxation bR A3 A 1,896,256 1,498,442
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rates BB 7T SR EEE 2 BiE 312,882 247,243
Tax effect of share of profit of R —REARIESIERRER 2
ajointly controlled entity %)%IE%% (4,002) (2,036)
Tax effect of share of profits of associates DREE AR 2 BT E (16,439) (4,184)
Tax effect on non-taxable income BERRIMA 2 IR E (26,729) (6,465)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses AT 2 RIBR & 4,280 8,924
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses R FRABRTIASE
not previously recognised pSeREl =2 (867) (3,892)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIAFIB 2 FHIET & 17,901 16,627
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries E/H\ﬁﬂ AIEERGE 2B
operating in other jurisdictions REITRABEZ HIBE 19,535 30,924
Under(over)provision in prior years BAEFETR (B B 3,067 (93)
Withholding tax TEHORE 16,826 12,378
Others Hib 3,956 4,121
Tax charge for the year REERIBLZ W 330,410 303,547
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13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. REERER
2010 2009
—E-BF | —TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived at REEHEFEMBRTHIAER -
after charging:
Directors’ remuneration: (note 14) BEMe - (FHFE14)
Fees e 1,000 1,000
Other emoluments o Ath = M 12,400 9,400
Share-based payment S hEREN 9,150 25,023
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RREFEH Bl R 12 13
22,562 35,436
Other staff costs HAh 8 TRAR 284,403 262,507
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, RIREFIET EIE RO S YR
net of forfeited contributions 14,213 8,873
Share-based payment A& 19 5% 6,215 23147
Total staff costs B8 TR 327,393 329,963
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN N & 3,672 3,746
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment ¥1% « M= M&REZITE 209,068 200,671
Release of prepaid lease payments JENHEEREE 10,357 19,854
Write-down of obsolete inventories ST B U 1,012 193
Minimum lease payments paid under MEEHLHTHEL R
operating lease in respect of leasehold land BFRANUTALEZMNZ
and buildings to =RELIFIA
— ajointly controlled entity — —RERIEHEE 173,346 142,695
— other parties — Hip AT 71,585 63,785
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEMEZEEIE
plant and equipment 445 84
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRAESZ R 2 FEKRAR 1,772,081 1,572,510
(Reversal of) impairment for trade and JE Ui BE 3% % i JE W R TR
other receivables 2 (B0 miE (71) 1,800
and crediting: REFATHIER :
Net exchange gain (R eyl 2,209 1,536
Gross rental from investment properties WEYHEHSERE
(net of negligible outgoings) (MBRLEXH) 1,424 —
Gross rental from sub-letting of ERMESHES L
commercial properties 76,766 61,035
Less: Direct operating expenses in respect of 5 : DHEEIEYMENEE
sub-letting of commercial properties KRR (65,052) (49,494)
Net rental income Ma WA F5E 13,138 11,541
Expense capitalised in construction in progress: A fEiZ TI2E AL -
Prepaid lease payments B ERIE 8,544 —
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for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE—ZE—ZTF+—_A=+—HI-FE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued) 13.

In 2008, the Group made an impairment loss on a secured
loan receivable from EganaGoldpfeil (Holdings) Limited
("Egana”) to its recoverable amount of HK$20,000,000.

On 2nd June 2009, the Group obtained the legal title of

the pledged office premises from Egana. The pledged

office premises had been assessed with the valuation of
HK$38,180,000 at that date. Accordingly, HK$18,180,000 of
impairment loss on loan receivable previously recognised
was reversed and recognised as income in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31st
December 2009.

14. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' 14.

REMUNERATION
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2009: 10)
directors were as follows:

REE N )
RZTT)\F - ANEE L RN R (4%
) BRDE(HEMBER]) 2 EREE
o R B &5 48 & H AT Uk (8] 6 58 20,000,000 74
TeRZETEAENATH o ANEE U
MBIPRES TR IR ¥ 2 &R %% - TR
W AEMEDEZBETE - HFTE
B 438,180,000/ 7T ° #E It 2 Al FER
18,180,000 7 7T FE U & SR (B 5 18 B B 1 -
RERRBE_ETNF+=-_A=+—H
FEILGAZEREROKAS -

EENEEMNE

AE10H(ZTFTAF  10R)EECHX
N ZBEmT

2010 —E-—BF
Lau Doo Cheng Cheng Lau Lau Lam  Cheung Shek Hui Total
Luen Hung,  Wai Hoi, Yu KarShun, LuenHung, ~ YukWai,  Siulun, YuetMan,  LaiHim, ChiuChung, &t
Thomas  William Tung Henry Joseph Amy Simon  Raymond  Abraham  Stephen 2010
£ o HEE L1507 axin Ly LIS WRE R RER FRR CB-BF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
TEn TEr TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
Fees ik 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1,000
Other emoluments Hivfe
Salaries and other benefits &4 R (g 12,400* — — — — — - — — — 12,400
Contributions to BINEFIET BN
retirement benefits
schemes 12 - - - - - - - - - 12
Share-based payment  RARE 9,150 - - - - - - - - - 9,150
Total emoluments i Eact] 21,662 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 22,562
2009 —EERE
Lau Doo Cheng Cheng Lau Lau Lam Cheung Shek Hui Total
LuenHung,  WaiHoi, Yu o KerShun, LuenHung  YukWa,  Sulun, YuetMan,  LaiHim, ChiuChung, 5t
Thomas William Tung Henry Joseph Amy Simon  Raymond  Abraham  Stephen 2009
Az iAo 2y ax4 £ 9 IS Ik i REF SRR CEENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fees W 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1,000
Other emoluments Hibfe
Salaries and other benefits %4 R EfigF 9,400* - - - - - - - - - 9,400
Contributions to BINEFIET BN
retirement benefits
schemes 12 1 - - - - - - - - 13
Share-based payment R(ARE 25023 - - - - - - - - — 25023
Total emoluments i Eact] 34,535 101 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 35,436

124 Lifestyle International Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2010



14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 14.

REMUNERATION (continued)

Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas and Sogo Hong Kong Company
Limited (“Sogo HK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, has entered into an employment agreement dated
25th July 2003 (the “Employment Agreement”) whereby, inter
alia, Sogo HK has employed Mr. Lau as the General Manager
commencing from 1st May 2003. Mr. Lau is entitled to a
monthly salary of HK$200,000 and, subject to the operating
results of Sogo HK, to a discretionary bonus under the
Employment Agreement.

No directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31st
December 2010 and 2009.

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year
ended 31st December 2010, one of them (2009: one) was a
director of the Company whose remuneration is disclosed
above. The remaining four (2009: four) are employees of the
Group, details of whose remuneration were as follows:

BEREEWNS ®

* Blgm AL EANR2EMBARIE
(BB BEERARI([=XEHS] AR
HMA-TE=F+A-1+HAZERRES
(MEEHED @ B (R e Exel
TETCFRA-HREESNXEAERAA
wa® - RIBEEIHE - BREZRAHA
200,000/ 7T - j’rméitfz%t%%%%%¥
EREREBIEAT

BE-_F-TER-FEAFT-A=t—
B - MR RN A S -

HE-_T—ZHF+-_A=1+—HBLFE"
Zl»‘%lﬁ%f’ﬁﬁ/\i‘? C—H(ZEEN
F:—R)ABARAES  FzBaR X
BT BN (ZZEZNTF : WR) A A
AEERE  HEZMEFBEHINDOT

2010 2009
—E-BF | —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Employees: =
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e M EEMER 7,482 6,442
Retirement benefits scheme contributions IR FIRT S 48 43
Performance related incentive payments HRI[E IS 4,480 3,720
Share-based payment AN 2,011 4,052
14,021 14,262
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for the year ended 31st December 2010 #ZE — =

14. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES'

15.

REMUNERATION (continued)

—EE+-A=1T—HLFE

14. EEREENES ®

The emolument of the remaining four were within the

following bands:

HBMARSHALZHMN FIATHE :

2010 2009

—E-TF | —TThF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A N

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 2 2,000,000 % 7T 1 1
hk$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 78 T2 2,500,000,8 7T — —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 & 7T & 3,000,000/8 7T 1 —
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7 7T 2 3,500,000 7 7T — 2
Above HK$3,500,000 3,500,000 7B = 2 1
During the years ended 31st December 2010 and 2009, no BHE_Z-ZTER_FTTZNF+_A=+—

remuneration was paid by the Group to the director or the
four highest paid employees as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

EIJJ:EE $%II?§H§$§EE%%%¥F
BEXNME - ARSIREMAREE L
RIMAREE 7 5 K BERAE -

DIVIDENDS 15. RE
2010 2009
—E-EF ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FET
Dividend recognised as distributions FABRBDIRZIKE
during the year:
Final dividend in cash paid for year ended HE_ZZNF+-_A=+—H
31st December 2009 IEFEUR SRS 2 KA S
— HK cents 17.0 per share — F%17.07810
(2009: HK cents 12.0 paid for year ended (Z2ENEF - RTEZE
31st December 2008) ZEEN\FF+ZA=1T—H
IEFERE120%840) 285,115 199,998
Interim dividend in cash paid for BHE_T-TFHA=TAHL
six months ended 30th June 2010 AE A LIRS IR 2 B S
— HK cents 14.7 per share — F14.7 1
(2009: HK cents 11.0 paid for (ZZ2ZNEF  kHEZE
six months ended 30th June 2009) —EENFAA=TALE
N E AR E11.0840) 246,751 184,069
531,866 384,067

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend
of HK cents 19.0 (2009: HK cents 17.0) per share has been
proposed by the directors which is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16.
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is
based on the following data:

BRAER

ARAEBRERELHEREAREER

TR T B ERH

2010 2009
—E-8F | —TThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Earnings BF|
Profit for the year attributable to owners of R ESRERAREEZFNME
the Company for the purposes of basic and AN EER A
diluted earnings per share REE R 1,407,534 1,142,468
2010 2009
—E-BF | —TTHhHF
‘000 ‘000
Fr Tz
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  siatEGREAREFIME 2
for the purpose of basic earnings per share TR IR T R 1,677,245 1,668,021
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares RATHERFERTEITE Al 81T
issuable under the Company’s share option EBEBELT R EE
scheme 10,422 9,167
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  siatEGKESEEFIME 2
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share  E@ER% INEF 1520 1,687,667 1,677,188
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17.

—EE+-A=1T—HLFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. BREYE
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties construction Total
[=5-354 EEF
REYE REMHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET
FAIR VALUE AFE
At 1st January 2009 RZEZNF—A—H 363,940 — 363,940
Transfer from property, plant and equipment E#1% - = & & E
and prepaid lease payments K FBA 78 & =hom e i 405,953 — 405,953
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries A DYEYNGISE =N
(note 39) (M1 39) — 420,280 420,280
Additions during the year FARE 3,374 — 3,374
Investment properties recovered from BEKE SR E 2
loans receivable (note 13) TEYZE (MEE13) 38,180 — 38,180
Increase in fair value recognised in RERE 2 ERETRIER
the consolidated statement of ZAFEEN
comprehensive income 64,646 114,110 178,756
Exchange adjustments [ 5 = 625 — 625
At 31st December 2009 RZZETNF
+=—A=+— 876,718 534,390 1,411,108
Transfer from property, plant BYE - BB K&
and equipment B 1,320 — 1,320
Additions during the year FARE 73,021 12,368 85,389
Increase in fair value recognised in RERE 2 EURE R IER
the consolidated statement of Z A FEE N
comprehensive income 21,157 41,997 63,154
Disposals e (4,889) — (4,889)
Exchange adjustments b 3R 31,631 21,305 52,936
At 31st December 2010 RZZ—TF
+=-—A=+—H 998,958 610,060 1,609,018

In 2009, the Group transferred a leasehold land and building
in the PRC to investment property. The fair value of this
investment property is HK$405,953,000 which have been
arrived at based on a valuation carried out on the date of
transfer by Shanghai BDGH Chartered Valuation Surveyors
Co., Ltd. ("BDGH") (formerly known as Shanghai Gooray &
Henry Property Valuation Chartered Surveyors Co., Ltd.), an
independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group, BDGH is a member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors. The fair value is determined based
on the Income Method by capitalising future rental income
derived from the property interest at an appropriate market
yield for the remaining term of the land use rights of the
property. The valuation is made in accordance with the
Practice Statements of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors' Valuation Standards.
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

17. BREWE &)

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above PR EYE 2 REERE
comprises:

2010 2009
—E-EF | —ZTThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Land in Hong Kong held under medium lease A& BIRIEHHIFALEE 2 i 52,480 49,550
Land in PRC held under medium lease RABREFHRENSEE 2+ | 1,556,538 1,361,558
1,609,018 1,411,108

The fair value of the Group's investment properties in Hong
Kong at 31st December 2010 and 2009 have been arrived

at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date

by Knight Frank Petty Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group. Knight
Frank Petty Limited are members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors, and have appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at by reference
to relevant market prices for similar properties in the same
locations and conditions.

Fair value of the Group’s investment properties situated

in the PRC as at 31st December 2010 and 2009 has been
arrived at based on a valuation carried out on that date by
BDGH. The fair value of completed investment properties
are determined based on the Income Method by capitalising
future rental income derived from the property interest at
an appropriate market yield as at 31st December 2010 and
2009 for the remaining term of the land use rights of the
property. While the fair value of investment properties under
construction are determined based on residual approach by
reference to comparable sales evidence as available on the
market and deduct the expected construction cost estimated
to complete. The valuation is made in accordance with the
Practice Statements of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors' Valuation Standards.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases in the PRC to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

AEBURBEBEZRENER _T—FF
TZA=Z+T—HZATFENEREAREH
I RS 2 B A BAR B R A ER AR
FETTERARNZBETZHEETE -
O ITER AR AEBAEME S
ZRE  WABEEERREEHERRIL
ROETEUMEREZOHER - AET
SEERRMLE RN 2 BUNEZ AR

MEREE °

AEBURFEZEENER -_FT—FTF
RZZEZNF+_A=1+—B2ZAFET
BB/ GEBRIRRNZBBTZEEEE - 2
FEDRBRNE BOERREDES
WEREZRBFRER T -FTFR_
EENFT_A=+—HZEENSER
KHE 2 RKRBEEZBABREMEE - M
ER2hREMENTVERGBET E2ZE
M5 ERMATL S ERE - BEAEFHRT
PRAEERARETE - EDERERZ
REFAEMBe(HEER)Z EBIEX
T

AEEETBEMEREERNTE - BiE
RIVES X EARE 2 WERR  9RA
FEEXHE - WO BMIIRRREME -
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. 1% - MEK&RE

Leasehold Furniture, Construction
land and Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor in
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles progress Total
HETH HEME B EE
REF %5 BER#E EEBLRE RE ERIE @t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
CoST RE
At 1st January 2009 RZEENE-A-A 2,994,292 748,361 188,984 100,002 8966 1,220,878 5261483
Exchange adjustment ERAE 2218 2215 33 175 10 761 12,612
Transferred o investment property BRERENE (177,183) - — — — — (177,183)
Transferred to prepaid lease payments ~ EAZANEEFE — - — — — (194,494) (194,494)
Acquired on acquisition of KERBARREA (F339)
subsidiaries (note 39) — - — 0 - — 0
Acquired on acquisition of IREEM B A RIS M B
additional interest in a subsidiary BA 53275 — — — — — 53275
Additions AE 196,678 33420 24,001 2124 1970 224,978 502,288
Disposals/written off HE /i — (214) — (264) — — (478)
Reclassifications Einr ] 1,132,724 9,005 — - — (1,141,729) —
At 315t December 2009 iy K2
+-A=+-B 4,202,064 792,781 213,308 121,184 10,946 117,244 5,457,533
Exchange adjustment EH AR 48968 11,452 3,149 1,840 197 2,261 67,867
Transferred to investment properties BRERENE — — — — — (1,320) (1,320
Additions hE 28,365 5952 11,557 7429 1817 25185 80,305
Disposals/written off HE /M - (232) (1,101 (124) 6¢9) — (2,12¢)
Reclassifications Eih] - 2,030 — — — (2,030) -
At 31st December 2010 RZE-%%
+-A=1-R 4279397 811,989 226913 130,329 12,291 141,340 5,602,259
DEPRECIATION i 3
At 1st January 2009 RZEENE-F-A 748,812 436,658 121,751 61,226 2,400 — 1,370,847
Exchange adjustment EH AR 188 91 % 88 3 — 129
Provided for the year FRTE 102,118 70,645 12,675 13,640 1,593 — 200,671
Eliminated on disposals/written off HE /R — (148) — (246) - - (394)
Eliminated upon transfer to BRERENFRLY
investment property (9,901) — — — — — (9,901)
At 31st December 2009 RZZENF
+ZA=1-R 841,217 508,076 134,522 74,708 39% — 1,562,519
Exchange adjustment ERAE 6,230 7,689 1,339 1133 341 — 16,732
Provided for the year FRTE 119,339 60,211 16,518 11,093 1907 — 209,068
Eliminated on disposals/written off HE /R — (232) (531) (107) (334) — (1,204)
At 315t December 2010 R-E-%%
+=A=1-8 966,786 575,744 151,348 86,827 5910 — 1,787,115
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 315t December 2010 R-E-%%
+-A=1+-H 3312611 236,245 75,065 43502 6,381 141,340 3815144
At 31st December 2009 REZTNF
+ZA=1-R 3,360,847 284,711 78,786 46,476 6,950 117,244 3,895,014

Included in construction in progress is borrowing cost
amounting to HK$4,779,000 capitalised during the year (2009:

HK$4,811,000).
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the shorter of lease terms

18. W% - MEKRE @)

BREZTEN  LilihE  BENMREER
B TSABEARRIR IO F R EFE

HE+THRET BB FHH2.5%

and buildings or 2.5% (AEEE %)
Leasehold improvements — Over the shorter of the lease HEWERE 1R 49 BTk 20%
terms, or 20% (ARG EA%E)
Plant and machinery 10% B K ies 10%
Furniture, fixtures 20% B BERE 20%
and equipment B
Motor vehicles 20% E 20%
2010 2009
—E-ZTF | ZZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
The carrying amount of leasehold land and HE T REFREERRE
buildings comprises land and buildings: AT L g
— long lease in Hong Kong — R BEEZRABENESE 476,502 485,372

— medium term lease in Hong Kong

— R EARZPHREOEE

1,206,043 1,244,092

— medium term lease outside Hong Kong

—URBRRINZ P
BB

1,682,545 1,729,464

1,630,066 1,631,383

3,312,611 3,360,847

The Group has pledged certain leasehold land and buildings
in Hong Kong with net book values of approximately
HK$1,547.3 million (2009: HK$1,591.6 million) to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

Certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment in the
PRC with carrying value of approximately HK$1,500.8 million
(2009: HK$1,317.2 million) have been pledged to secure
loan facility in the amount of approximately RMB390.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$460.2 million) (2009:
HK$443.4 million).

7N & B B BR (B 49 1,547,300,000 %8
TT(ZZTZ A 1,591,600,000787T) 2 &
FTHELHWRET  WERETAEE
—MERITIEE -

A& EE K IR @ {8 491,500,800,000 7%
7L ( = Z T S ¢ 1,317,200,00078 7T ) iz
RERZETYE BEREE A&
BE R E D AR 390,000,000t (48
& M #1460,200,0008 ) (ZEZ N F -
443,400,000387T) °

MREREEERAT —F-2FEn T G
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for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE—ZE—ZTF+—_A=+—HI-FE

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:

19. BYHEENKE
AEE BN EERE SR

2010 2009
—E-2F | —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong NREBIEINZHETH
Medium-term lease (Note) P HAFR A (T 5E) 1,356,486 1,417,142

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEFREODTA

Current portion BUHERER (D 21,721 9,952
Non-current portion FERNERER 1D 1,334,765 1,407,190
1,356,486 1,417,142

Note: As at 31st December 2010, the Group has not yet obtained 5T
the legal document in respect of the land use right in

the PRC with carrying value of HK$621,721,000 (2009:

HK$1,166,894,000). The Group is in the process of obtaining

the land use right certificate.
In 2009, the Group transferred certain prepaid lease

payment with carrying value of HK$78,723,000 to investment
properties.

20. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS PAID

N-E-ZTFE+-A=+—0 &NEHK
REVSEETEE 621,721,000 T (Z B2 A
F 1 1,166,894,00078 7T ) i1 A P B 2 £ i
A2 RE S - ANEEIEPHIRES X
T AE S FE -

RZZEZTAF AEEBHEEEE
78,723,000/ 7T .2 B T RS H EF IR
ZREME -

20. EffREIZE

2010 2009
—E-ZF | —ZTTHhHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Deposit paid for: BUATEBEEAES -
— acquisition of additional equity interest in =~ — UgBE —KEf = A 7]ZESN
an associate (Note) AR (M) — 236,374
— acquisition of property, plant and — M - BB REE
equipment 3,083 1,017
3,083 237,391

Note: This represented approximately 60% of the purchase FiEE
consideration for the acquisition of additional equity interest

in ARFILEA B EE AR EE AR (“Beiren Group”). During

the year ended 31st December 2010, the Group’s 60% owned

subsidiary has completed acquisition of an additional equity

interest in Beiren Group, increasing its interest therein to 49%.
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21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

21. REHE N RER

2010 2009
—E-ZH | —ZTTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Unlisted, at cost FEET - R 1,068,986 675,028
Share of post-acquisition profits and FEG IR BE 1 2 m T %
other comprehensive income HEzmEmlA 279,842 45,414
1,348,828 720,442
As at 31st December 2010 and 2009, the Group had interests RZE-—TFR-_TTAEFE+_A=1+—
in the following associates: B NEBERATEERRIER R
Proportion of
Place/ nominal value of
Form of country of Principal issued capital/
business incorporation/ place of registered capital Proportion of
Name of entity structure registration  operation held by the Group voting power held Principal activity
TMRL KEEFIBERITRE/
EEEE EBERES g BR TELCEHY HEMRAEELA FrisRERELL B TEER
2010 2009 2010 2009
—B-%F |ZTTNF |2B-FF |ZTTIF
Beiren Group Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 30% 49% 30%  Investment holding of a group
TAKE AL H F (note 1) of companies engaging in the
(FFaE1) operation of department stores,
supermarkets and property
leasing
REREE  BHRMEEE
Bz EBRAE 2 HEER
AL ERR T RS Incorporation PRC PRC 48% 48% 48% 48%  Retailing business in the PRC
BREFAR AL H H THERETELHK
(“Future Mall") (note 2)
([&XRTES] ) (HE2)
Dragon Sign Limited Incorporation Hong Kong PRC 50% 50% 50% 50%  Investment holding of a
BEEERAA AL B H company engaged in operation
of restaurants in the PRC
EFERERBIEEZARZ
RELER
Notes: MisE :

(1) The Group holds equity interest of 49% (2009: 30%) in the
Beiren Group indirectly through a 60% owned subsidiary of
the Group. During the year ended 31st December 2010, the
Group's 60% owned subsidiary has completed acquisition of
an additional equity interest in Beiren Group, increasing its
interest therein to 49% (note 40).

(2)  The Group holds equity interest of 48% in Future Mall
indirectly through a 60% owned subsidiary, Ample Sun Group
Limited. At 31st December 2010 and 2009, Future Mall was
also owned as to 51% by the Beiren Group.

As at 31st December 2010 and 2009, the 48% equity interest
in Future Mall has been grouped under assets classified as
held for sale (note 31).

(1) AEEMESAEBEEO%ESEZHEBER
AIFAILAEEA% (ZFZTNF  30%)
BAEZR REE-_ZTZ—ZTF+ A
ST BIEFE - AEEBBEES 0%
a2 MBRRC R ARSI AR E 2
SN AR - W H 2 B INE 49%
(Mi5E40) ©

@ AEERZEREEROwED L MER
AEREEERDRFALERTES 8%
PeAtEm R -_E-FF+_-_A=1+—H

“ERNFF_A=+—H LLAKE
TR SER TS 51% 4 o

KB BER-BEAFT-A=1—

H - ERTES BB AERDHBNED
ERFHENEZAE (531 -
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27. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. REFE A RIRER (8

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

associates is set out below:

ERASERE AR M BERBMMNT

2010 2009

—E-BF | —_TThF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Total assets BERRE 8,719,961 8,145,170

Total liabilities BiER 6,467,056 6,263,807

Net assets BEFE 2,252,905 1,881,363

Group’s share of associates’ net assets REEELBE QR EETE 1,348,828 720,442

Revenue g 11,049,111 9,746,231

Profits for the year INE i A 160,084 70,956

Other comprehensive income HEi2mEmUWA 41,306 12,870
Group’s share of profits of associates for AEBEEGBERRAFE

the year il 99,632 25,360
Group’s share of other comprehensive income 7<= B fE {5 B & A =7 AR EE

of associates for the year EmzmEmlA 10,375 3,566
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22. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITY

At 31st December 2010 and 2009, the Group had interests in
the following significant jointly controlled entity:

22. A—=

RZE—

HEZESEEEDS

FER-FENFH=A=t—
B AREATIERHAEHERER

e
Proportion of
nominal value
Form of Place of of issued Proportion
business establishment/ capital held by of voting
Name of entity structure operation the Group power held  Principal activity
EEEFH
BRITRE
ERan EREBER R/ S EELS  FEREELH  TEER
FENERTRSERAR Sino-foreign equity People’s Republic of 50% 50%  Property holding and
(Shanghai Joinbuy joint venture China leasing
City Plaza Co,, Ltd) HINEERERE HE ARAAME NERBLEE
Jointly controlled entity is accounted for using the equity HEZEH B RERSEAR

method of accounting:

2010 2009
—g-%F | —TINF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Cost of unlisted investments in —RHEFEGEREIELMIRE
ajointly controlled entity AP 433,104 433,104
Share of post-acquisition profits and SIEWIEE 2 RN R EAA R E
other comprehensive income, WA - kR E AR B
net of dividend received 34,825 69,194
467,929 502,298
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22. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITY (continued)

The summarised financial information related to the Group’s
interest in the jointly controlled entity is set out below:

22.

P
ol
[0
clig
)
i
ﬁ?:@?

AR ER RS E R % B
SRR

2010 2009
—E-BF | —TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Non-current assets IEMENEE 1,426,688 1,431,323
Current assets mEEE 35,397 17,904
Current liabilities MENBE 325,627 347,986
Non-current liabilities FERBAEE 200,600 96,645
Income WA 188,429 180,517
Expenses 53 139,925 155,836
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wl A 15,862 2,806
Group’s share of profit of the jointly NES B e L R ) B B A
controlled entity 24,252 12,341
Group’s share of other comprehensive income 7 £= [ fig & L[] 12 41 & 52
of the jointly controlled entity HE2mEA 7,931 1,403
23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23. IfEEERE
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AIHEERERE
2010 2009
=F-FF | FTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Unlisted investment at fair value BN ERTEIELTRE — 9,688

Available-for-sale investments comprise an unlisted equity
securities issued by a mutual fund company incorporated in
Bermuda. The investment is denominated in USD and its fair
value is based on price quoted by the counterparty financial
institution. In 2009, an impairment loss of HK$18,487,000
was recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)
Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group’s investments in
unlisted equity securities that were previously classified as
available-for-sale financial assets under HKAS 39 have been
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. Please see note 24 for further details.

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

23. AMEHERE @)

BBRAEEMBREEREIRIEK - A
BLARTR BB B ST ERE RN B AT
HHEESMEEZIFEMBRARE S EW
IR ATEFANEEZEREE - #16
BLHMEE24

24, BRAFEFABRZEMERE

2010 2009
—E-BF | —TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Financial assets held for trading purpose: BELERGR 2B E
— listed equity securities in Hong Kong — REBEELTIRAES 88,702 78,498
— listed equity securities in Singapore — AT INE LT AR A FE S 13,029 —
— unlisted debt securities —ELHES 671,041 262,959
772,772 341,457

Others: H

— unlisted equity securities JE TR ANFE 5 13,598 —
786,370 341,457

At 31st December 2010, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") with carrying amount of
HK$154,429,000 (31st December 2009: nil) have been
pledged as security for loan facility granted to the Group.
Interest rate underlying the pledged financial assets is
carrying at 3-month USD LIBOR+0.7% and matured at March
2015. The range of effective interest rates of the pledged
financial assets is also equal to contracted interest rates
ranging from 0.99% to 1.24%.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group’s investments in
unlisted equity securities that were previously classified as
available-for-sale financial assets under HKAS 39 have been
classified as FVTPL. The Group decided not to designate

the investments in unlisted equity securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income. As the Group intends
to dispose of these investments in 2011, the entire carrying
amount has been included in current assets.

The fair value of FVTPL is determined based on the quoted
market prices and fair value provided by financial institution.

W_E—ZTF+_A=+—8 BHE&FE
(& 154,429,000/ L ( Z 2T N F+= A
—t+—8:8) 2RQAFEFABSE 2SR
BE UEDRETFASEREREE oK
HemEENHBXA=-BAEZLRY
BITREREZEMOTENE —T—RFE=
AEIH - EAEHEBSREETERMNENT
0.99E £ 1.24[F (TRFERFTHF R&E) o

BBRAEBMBREEREIREK - A
BARRBEE B EANEIRDERA
HHBEREZFFLTRAES  2RIIR
BAFEFABRZEREE - AEER
ETMEEF LR ARFRAFEFAR
R ERA - HRAREHR —F——F
HEELERE  BEREECERERD
BAVEFABRZEMEEZRTFETS

REARTSERMEBEBIEH/{ 2R
FEMERE
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25. INVENTORIES

26.

Merchandise held for resale

25. BE
2010 2009
—E-FF | —TTHhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FBT
BHEEER R 61,611 60,513

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

26. FEUWARFR R H B FR IR

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Total trade and other receivables

2010 2009
—E-ZE | —ZTTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
FEUBRE TR 73,762 62,507
W REREE (2,665) (3,578)
71,097 58,929

Ef W RTE - ek
TEf FRIE 142,915 104,995
FEURBR SR K HoAtb B U SR IE 4858 214,012 163,924

The Group's retail sales to customers are mainly on cash
basis, either in cash, debit card or credit card payments. The
Group does not have a defined fixed credit policy as its major
trade receivables arise from credit card sales. The following
is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at the

AEERETFEHNTEHETEURS
T AIARS - RBERRRER R -
BN AEE T RRUIRFREERREE
WAL EEEBR - U T RRIRE B
EE AR (R RERR) RIEER
B2 BRER AT

end of the reporting period.
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
0-30 days OHZE30H 67,432 54,554
31-60 days 3MTHE60H 2,495 3,078
61-90 days 61THZE90H 236 498
Over 90 days 90 H 934 799
71,097 58,929
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,170,000 (2009:
HK$1,297,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivables is 90 days (2009: 90 days).

27.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but

26.

JE UK BR R R ELAth FE WL IE ()
AEBRBRUEREHBIEREEAE
1,170,000 7T ( = F T N4 : 1,297,000 7
T0) 2 FEMGR - 2SR A R B Eia ER
M AR IR B - AN SR B R R VR L R(E R 1B
- NREBMYERZSEHFH T EKIAF
o ZERWHRIEBEZ FHERE AR (=
ZTETAF 90H)

B ERRE 2 BURAR N IRE T

not impaired
2010 2009
—E-ZTF | ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
61-90 days 61THZE9H 236 498
Over 90 days @0 H 934 799
1,170 1,297

The Group has not provided fully for all receivables over 90
days because historical experience is such that receivables

are recoverable from the relevant debtors.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debt on

trade receivables

REB I RFATE B0 B EUGRIER
BEE REASRBEELR SEAR
BRAETS AW EZ S UK -

FEW BRR R AR R G 2 B

2010 2009

—E-E2F | —TTNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Balance at beginning of the reporting period & B9 4544 3,578 2,852
Written off as uncollectible AR EY (913) (137)
Impairment losses provided BB IR B R — 863
Balance at end of the reporting period RS BRAR AR 2,665 3,578

AMOUNT DUE FROM (TO) A JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITY

The balance at 31st December 2010 is trade nature and is

aged within three months.

CBRW(EN) —RAEEHER

;I8
—E-ETF+_A=Z+—HNBEAEES
ME o REEA=ZEAN -
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28. LOANS RECEIVABLE 28.

At 31st December 2009, the amount represented a loan
advanced to )it e R TR HERZEEREE LA, an
independent third party who was in the process of acquiring
an equity interest in an entity for the year ended 31st
December 2009. It was unsecured, bore interest at 12% per
annum and was fully repaid during the year.

29. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 29.

The pledged deposits carried fixed interest rate of 0.25% per
annum.

Pledged bank deposits of HK$120,203,000 represented
deposits pledged to banks to secure short-term banking
facilities and accordingly, they were classified as current
assets at 31st December 2009. They were released upon the
settlement of relevant bank borrowings in 2010.

30. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 30.

At the end of the reporting period, bank balances and cash
comprised mainly short-term deposits which carry interest at
prevailing market rates ranging from 0.001% p.a. t0 0.36% p.a.
(2009: 0.001% p.a. to 0.36% p.a.) with maturity of less than 3
months.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currency other than functional
currency of the relevant group entities:

W E K
RZZBAF+-ZA=+—8 $ERE
EF AL AR T EHERRERRAAF
MBS HABIE=SLEHE-FT
NEFZA=+-RIEFERTRE—E
AR 2B - RRAAEER - B AF
B12E - WENERDHEE -

EIEABITER
EAEIRIRIT I IR E 0,255 8. -

B R ER1T715 5% 120,203,000 7 7T 15 B W) R
TTHEMZEN - UEREHRTRELE
b RZZETZAFT_R=T—HYEAR
RBEE - RBERBITERER_FT—F
FEEBRWRITEERRR -

RITEFERRE

RREHEEER  RITEERRSTE
BIEIRIRITIS R R B (FFZE N T0.0071
EZE036E) (ZZTTNF : N T000MERE
0.36/8) B =Mf A REI S BHF K -

RITEFLASBRETIIAEREEER
e B AINE T E TR

2010 2009

—¥-%F | —TTIhF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

United States Dollar xE7T 543,785 818,845
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31. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 31. &

On 16th December 2009, Win Early Limited (“Win Early”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, and Smart Success
Investment Limited (“Smart Success”), 40% shareholder

of Ample Sun Group Limited, entered in a conditional

sale and purchase agreement as Vendors with GS China
Shopping No. 1 GmbH & Co. KG (the “Purchaser”), a limited
partnership incorporated under the laws of the Federal
Republic of Germany, whereby Win Early and Smart Success
conditionally agreed to sell their respective 60% and 40%
shareholding in Ample Sun Group Limited to the Purchaser.

Completion of the transaction could not take place during
the year ended 31st December 2010 as certain conditions
precedent have not been fulfilled and the Purchaser has
requested for an extension of time for completion. Since
the Group remains committed to dispose of the assets, the
assets continue to be classified as held for sale as at 31st
December 2010.

The Group acquired 60% shareholding in Ample Sun Group
Limited in 2007. Ample Sun Group Limited is an investment
holding company and its major asset is its 48% equity
interest in Future Mall, a company established in the PRC.

The assets attributable to Ample Sun Group Limited
expected to be sold within twelve months from the end of
the reporting period were classified as assets held for sale
as at 31st December 2010 and 2009. The carrying amount of
the assets as at 31st December 2010 and 2009, which has
been presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position, is as follows:

PTEABELHEEE
RZZEZAF+_A+ B £&E2
BB ARIEERR A (TE4E]D) (&
FERREBEAR QA% E D 2 KRR
Smart Success Investment Limited ([Smart
Success)) ¥ & B 7 #GS China Shopping
No.1 GmbH & Co. KG([E 7 | » IRIFEER
B AHEMBERAMA I 2 EREFER
CEIFIEREEERZE - BiL - KER
Smart Success B EHRIEME H NEFE
EBRmREEFRAF60% K% A40%H#

RE TRRGFHARETT - MEDBERE
RRXHBE  RHTHRNBE_ZT—TF
TZA=+T—BLEFEANZTEKX - ARARE
BNEELEREE R_T—FF =
A=1—R ZBEENHRERFKIEFHES
7o

AEER_ZETLtFRBEREEFRA
AlO0%IE - mREBBRAF AT EE
BAR BEXBEEAMEETREMNL Y
RNEVRRTES 48% e ©

BHRREEERAREEEESNRE
HRSEREFt —EARHE  R=2F
—ZER-_FTNF+_A=+—BTID
BEARELEZEE -ZEEN_Z—F
FR-ZBENFTZA=T—BZEREE
EEGEPBRRERANBLEINNT

2010 2009

—E-2F —ETNE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Interest in an associate held for sale —REBENEBE A RER 436,909 436,909
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32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2. BRI EMENTRIR

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Trade payables FETER R 257,526 239,324
Concessionaire sales payable S EEEEE 997,314 832,745
Other payables, deposits and accrued charges E g 5118 - &4 R Es 2 754,623 1,073,094
2,009,463 2,145,163

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

AT RRREHEEE A BNRIRIERE
ERHZREDMN -

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZETNF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

0-30days 0HZ=30H 225,904 187,768
31-60 days 31THAE60H 29,263 42,648
61-90 days 61THZE9H 557 5,785
Over 90 days BB 90 H 1,802 3,123
257,526 239,324

The average credit period of trade payables and
concessionaire sales payable is within 45 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.
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33. BANK BORROWINGS

33. SRITIEE

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Bank borrowings comprised bank loans RITEERERITER
and analysed as: 4R - WIRLA T AT
Secured B 1 3,315,600 3,016,170
Unsecured 43 82,600 170,550
3,398,200 3,186,720
Carrying amount repayable: JEEEREE
On demand or within one year EENs—FRNEE 2,985,200 1,043,290
More than one year, but not exceeding —FRENBBME
two years 59,000 1,745,480
More than two years, but not exceeding MWERBTHBB=F
three years 59,000 56,850
More than three years, but not exceeding = FRETBBLE
four years 70,800 56,850
More than four years, but not exceeding MU E BT EBA A F
five years 70,800 68,220
Over five years FRBAF 153,400 216,030
3,398,200 3,186,720
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B BIAREN B ER
under current liabilities —FANE A (2,985,200) (1,043,290)
Amount due after one year —FRE R FAE 413,000 2,143,430
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33. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Floating-rate borrowings comprise:

33. IRITEE®)

FREERR:

Carrying amount

BREE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZTTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FET
HKD bank loan at HIBOR + 0.29% p.a." BITRITER - ZEBRITRIZE
FREMFLE029EFFED 2,700,000 2,550,000
USD bank loan at LIBOR BBA + 0.35% p.a.? ERITER - REBRITR
e mBERTTRIZER SN
FRO03BEFB@ 155,400 —
Other RMB bank loans® Hib \REBHRITERO 542,800 636,720
Total borrowings BELE 3,398,200 3,186,720

M Repayable in one year (2009: two years) and interest rates will

be repriced every one month to three months.

@ Repayable on demand and interest rates will be repriced

every three months.

® Repayable in seven years (2009: eight years) and the loans
carry interest with reference to benchmark loan rates of
financial institutions set by The People’s Bank of China.

The ranges of effective interest rates of the borrowings are
also equal to contracted interest rates ranging from 0.47%

p.a. 10 6.12% p.a..

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has undrawn
borrowing facilities with floating rate expiring within 1 year
and beyond 1 year amounting to approximately HK$62
million and nil (2009: HK$148 million and HK$650 million)

respectively as follows:

o AR—F(ZFTNF  ME)ANEERE M
NEER-—E=2=EAEMEE -
@ RRERER  MAREE=EAEHNE

-

@ EREE(CREAE  E)AEE [
EEER T FE NS EREARBTHE
26 BB AR R AR -

BEERMEEE (N T047EE612E)
IRERRTAIF R AR -

REBEHRELEE

CAEEDRNE-FA

M—F %I ERERRITREREE
49 £62,0000008 TR E(ZZEZTNF:
148,000,0007% 7T % 650,000,000 7T ) 40 T -

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHETT

Floating rate P
— expiring within one year — —FREH 62,450 147,810
— expiring beyond one year — —F1& 35 — 650,000
62,450 797,810
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34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 34. EIEFRIBEE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets NTRALSEER TEREHEEER
recognised and movements thereon during the current and BEUNRARFERATFRNE
prior years:
Interest in
Property, subsidiaries,
plantand  associates
equipment/  and jointly
investment  controlled
properties entity  Tax losses Total
RHBAR
nE BE  BEARR
k#fE/ HERHER
REWHE G HIEES @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FET THEL
At 1st January 2009 RZZETZNF—A—H 63,090 10,054 (1,855) 71,289
Charge to other comprehensive income  #0B& B E {2 E U A 39,987 — — 39,987
Charge to profit or loss (note 12) kBB (i 12) 43474 12,378 1,855 57,707
At 31st December 2009 RZZEZNF
+=—A=+—H 146,551 22432 — 168,983
Charge to profit or loss (note 12) Mk B85 (FEE12) 12,767 16,826 — 29,593
At 315t December 2010 R-B—TF
+=-A=+—H 159,318 39,258 — 198,576
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax REBEHEEER  AEEEARBHAB
losses of approximately HK$491.6 million (2009: HK$388.4 TH 8518 49491,600,0008 L ( Z T ZF hLF -
million) available for offset against future profits. No deferred 388,400,000 7T ) °] A VEH 85 H 1% & A1 <
tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses for A B 18 5% F 2R 8 DATERI - st 37 4 5t
both years due to unpredictability of future profit streams. At WEEEREEHREEE R —ZF
31st December 2010, all tax losses may be carried forward +ZA=+—H " FEBEEESER
indefinitely. HAEEE o
AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING 35. ERMIB AR —RIFZERRKRRK

35.

SHAREHOLDER OF SUBSIDIARIES

The amount is unsecured and interest free. The non-
controlling shareholder of subsidiaries agreed not to demand
for repayment within one year from the end of the reporting
period.

ZFRIE
ZAREREERR RS - MBRRZIEE
BERRRAETGZRAEREHRE —FA

BEIA ©
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36. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 36. ARRBA
HE-T—SE+-B=1—ALEE -
ARFZRASBEENT -

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during
the year ended 31st December 2010 are as follows:

Number of
shares Amount
RE A KIE
HK$'000
T
Authorised: VERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each as at R-ZZEZENF+_A=+—HBK
31st December 2009 and —E—ZTE+-_A=+—H
31st December 2010 SFEEE0.005F T2 E®EK  4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITREUE -
At 1st January 2009 — ordinary shares of R-ZZETENE—-—F—H -Gk
HK$0.005 each H1{E0.0058 T 2 Ei@Ax 1,673,965,500 8,370
Exercise of share options — ordinary shares — 1T{# &A% AE — T A%
of HK$0.005 each H1{E0.005 87T 2 i 12,111,000 60
Shares repurchased =AEIdi ) (12,456,500 (62)
At 31st December 2009 RZZEZTNF+=_A=+—H 1,673,620,000 8,368
Exercise of share options — ordinary shares 1T 5% IE — GREE
of HK$0.005 each (note) 0.005 8702 & imA% (M 5E) 5,365,000 27
At 31st December 2010 RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—H 1678985000 8,395

Note: During the year, 596,000 shares of HK$0.005 each were
issued at HK$6.16 per share upon exercise of the 2005 share
option and 4,769,000 shares of HK$0.005 each were issued
at HK$6.40 per share upon exercise of the 2009 share option
(as defined under note 37) of the Company by share option
holders and all these shares rank pari passu with other
ordinary shares of the Company in all respects.
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The 2004 Share Option Scheme

The Company'’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted for a period of 10 years commencing 27th March
2004. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options to
selected full-time employees and directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant
share options to eligible advisors and consultants to the
Company and its subsidiaries at the discretion of the Board
of Directors.

The total number of shares in respect of which options

may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point of time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company'’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders, independent
non-executive directors, or any of their respective associates
(including a discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director or any of their respective associates) in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
Company's shareholders.

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit
specified in the offer letter (which shall not be later than

5 days from the date of offer), upon payment of HK$1 per
option. Options may be exercised at any time during a period
commencing on or after the date on which the option is
accepted and deemed to be granted and expiring on a date
to be notified by the Board to each grantee which shall not
be more than 10 years from the date on which the option is
accepted and deemed to be granted. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price

of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company's share.
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37.

(continued)

The 2009 Share Option Scheme

The adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2009
Share Option Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders
of the Company in an extraordinary general meeting held on
3rd March 2009 for a period of 10 years commencing from
3rd March 2009 as incentive or reward for the contribution
of the eligible participants to the growth of the Group and to
provide to the Group with a more flexible means to reward,
remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the
eligible participants.

Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme, the Company may
grant options to (a) any full-time or part-time employee of the
Company and/or any subsidiary; (b) any Director (including
Executive, Non-executive and Independent Non-executive
Director) of the Company and/or any subsidiary; and (c) any
consultant or adviser (whether professional or otherwise

and whether on an employment or contractual or honorary
basis or otherwise and whether paid or unpaid), distributor,
contractor, supplier, service provider, agent, customer and
business partner of the Company and/or any subsidiary who,
at the sole determination of the Board, have contributed or
will contribute to the Company and/or any subsidiary.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for
which an option must be held or the performance targets
which must be achieved before an option can be exercised
under the terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme. However,
the Board may offer to grant any options subject to such
terms and conditions in relation to the minimum period of
the options to be held and/or the performance targets to

be achieved before such Options can be exercised and/or
any other terms as the Board may determine in its absolute
discretion.

148 Lifestyle International Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2010

BRI 5 ()

—EENFRRETS
ARBBERAR-ZZBZNF=ZA=ZHETZ
PR IR S _EHLERAT B 8I( =
TTNFEREFE])  BE-TTNEF=
AZRERH+E FRAERSEEY
AEEBRREFLEMZABREE  XE&
AEEFABUMANABERSEERMERE
BRI  mE R R MER

RE_FTNFEEESSE AAFATE
THEBRET @ARA R, LEMKEAR
ZEMEZBEFERES  O)FRA KK
ERHE LR 2 ERNER(BERT - R
TRENIFTES)  ROKEFER2E
RE - BH A EHADE R, AR
BRBMELERZARR RSN B
NAZEMERERSER (TRESTE
EATRTHEERER A EKER
HttERRERE)  H#E®E - A8 -
HrEr  RsHER L2 TPEER
B

R URE — ST N FEEE
B ZBRITEMSAREBREZRE
HIRSMAEMZRABE  XERI R
HRE - A EFXRE TERBRER
AR A B IGRR S Rk BIRER BB
TR AT AT L AR B B 2 RIEHIR
R/ REEBZRBRBE I/ LEER
AIBH B BEEE 2 (EAE MR o



37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options which may be granted under the 2009
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 166,860,950
shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 3rd March 2009, the date on which the 2009
Share Option Scheme was approved by the shareholders of
the Company. The Board may seek approval by shareholders
in general meeting to renew such limit provided that it must
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
at the date of approval of the renewed limit. The maximum
aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme must not exceed such number of shares

as shall represent 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

Where options are proposed to be granted to a substantial
shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company or any of their respective associates, and the
proposed grant of options will result in the total number

of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in

the 12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the issued
share capital of the Company on the date of offer and
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million,
such grant of options must be subject to the approval of
the shareholders taken on a poll at general meeting. The
connected person involved in such proposed grant of
options and all other connected persons of the Company
must abstain from voting in such general meeting (except
that any connected person may vote against the proposed
grant provided that his intention to do so has been stated in
the relevant circular to the shareholders).

37.

BRI Z ()

—ERNFERETE(E)
HAITEREBE-_STNFERETSI LA
NAEMEMBREFSETZMBER
feiEm A 1T 2 RIDEE - ST TSHBA
166,860,950 l& i 15+ HHE R AR BIRER
—ETAF-ZAZHRTZRESNAS
FEREE—STAFRERESEE R
NATDEBEITIRANI0%  EH /A PR
Ae EESRBE ZHAEANE B AR
MEZBRRE NS HBEMRBEILEZAERR
BIDBITRAZI0% - (TERE_-_SZEAH
FRRETZIRTNEMESIMBERET
i ARIT 2 RITOE I AR I 85T 2 IR 1)
HE AEZTHEBARARTHRIEE
IR 30% 2 f& 12 8L E -

R B ZE R BEX T B BAER 1218 A X
BREAARRBDEIERR BIFRTES
gMEZTAZEMBBEARTRERE &
£ ALTRITEMA D ER LS ERER
R(BREITE  EHERRARITE 2 BERE)
MERTREETZRNBEAHBBA
RARBHBEHEHITRAZ01%  MH
MAEESETRSRM KT EFTE) @
#15,000,00078 7T - Az B RRAER T AR
BERAR & ERSBIRIZBMBUR RRORALE
BREZREZRTRBEREZBEALAR
RRBZFAEMEEATAE EABRER
RELWERERM - EABEALSR
RERUETESR  EEHEBERART
REPER 2 AERIREHA) ©

MEREREEBRAR —FT-TFFR 149



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #7585 2R 3% M 5F @

for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE—ZE—ZTF+—_A=+—HI-FE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)
Option granted must be taken up within the time limit
specified in the offer letter (which shall not be later than
5 days from the date of offer), upon payment of HK$1 on
acceptance of the offer. Options may be exercised at any
time during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee which shall not be more than 10 years from the
date of the offer. The exercise price is determined by the
Directors of the Company, and will be at least the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

37. RIRRS @)

—EENFRRESE (B

BT 2 BREER BRI FEERR (T
FENRELHBEMEFSB) RS RES
BEARAINIEBTL - BREATREER
MEBEARANBABERITE  ERELD
HERE TSEBBI10F - fTREBAAF
EXEE  BELRTI=ZEFFZ2&RE)
BEFEPARARMOETE: (VBEEXT
B 8 AT A fE & % B B W & ¢ R i)
ARBBRMEE

(iii) the nominal value of the Company's share.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

FEBRBRAE 2 FHIRIT

Exercise Adjusted
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price exercise price
BRERE REAH BB fTHEH TEE RRBITHEE
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
2005 7.10.2005 7.10.2005 -7.10.2008 7.10.2006 - 26.3.2014 12.32 6.16
“ZTRE “ETHE “ZTRFTALAZE “EE F+HALAZE
+AtR T \F+AtR “E-NFEZA=FH
2006 16.3.2006 16.3.2006 - 16.3.2009 16.3.2007 - 26.3.2014 12.74 6.37
ZEERE “ETRE “EERFZA+REE —ETLEZATHEZ
=ZA+~H “TENFZA+AH “T-MEZA-+,H
2007A 31.8.2007 31.8.2007 - 1.10.2011 1.10.2009 - 26.3.2014 37 18.50
S “ETLHE “TE+ENAZT-HZE ZETNETA—HBZ
NAE=+—H —T——F+A-H “T-MEZA-+,H
20078 31.8.2007 31.8.2007 - 1.10.2010 1.10.2008 - 26.3.2014 37 18.50
ZETLEL “ETLHE “TE+ENAZT-HZE ZET\F+A—HZ
NAE=+—H —Z-ZF+A-H “T-MEZA-+,H
2007C 31.8.2007 31.8.2007 - 1.10.2010 1.10.2008 - 26.3.2014 37 18.50
ZEREER “ETLHE “TE+ENAZT-HZE ZET\F+A—HZ
NAE=+—H —Z-ZF+A-H “T-MEZA-+,H
2009 2.2.2009 (note) 2.2.2009-7.2.2012 7.2.2010-26.3.2014 6.40 6.40
“EENE “ETNE “ETNF-AZH T-TE-AtHE
—RA=B(KH) “E--%-f+H “Z-ME=A=1<H
Note: Option subject to approval by independent shareholders was izt : EFERR-_TZENF-_A-_HAEZERER

proposed and granted by Board of Directors on 2nd February
2009. The approval was subsequently obtained on 3rd March
2009, which is the date of grant as defined in accordance with

HKFRS 2.
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

37.

BRI Z ()

—EENFRREE ()
TEREBEETREREREEMIHARABR

share options held by certain employees and directors: T2 B
2010 —E-2F
Outstanding Outstanding
at 31 at 31
December  Exercised Lapsed  December
Option type 2009 duringyear during year 2010
RZZBENF R-Z-FF
+=8 +=A
=t-H =t-H
BREER i RATHE FRfTE FRER i RATHE
2005 “TTRF 1,290,000 (596,000) — 694,000
2007C S LN 17,020,000 — — 17,020,000
2009 “ETNF 19,960,000 (4,769,000 (84,000) 15,107,000
Total o 38,270,000  (5,365,000) (84,000) 32,821,000
Exercisable at end of the year PR TT(E 20,929,000
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT B
Weighted average exercise price per share S EFEHTERE 11.77 6.37 6.40 12.67
2009 ZETNF
Outstanding at Outstanding at
31st December Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled  31st December
Option type 2008  duringyear  duringyear  duringyear  duringyear 2009
RZZTNF RZZTNF
=7 T=A
=t+-f =t-H
BIRERSE HARITHE FRRH ERTTHE FNRR FRTH EARITHE
2005 —ETETRF 4,627,000 — (2,955,000) (382,000) — 1,290,000
2006 ZEETRF 9,156,000 — (9,156,000) — — —
2007A —ETTLFR 11,240,000 — — (170,0000  (11,070,000) —
20078 ZETLEFL 10,280,000 — — (950,000) (9,330,000) —
2007C ZTTEFR 17,020,000 — — — — 17,020,000
2009 (Note) ZETNF (M) — 20,400,000 — (440,000) — 19,960,000
Total “Et 52,323,000 20,400,000 (12,111,000) (1,942,000)  (20,400,000) 38,270,000
Exercisable at end of the year  AFE 4R 7] F171F 13,204,000
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Weighted average exercise SR MEFHTEE
price per share 15.29 6.40 6.32 13.33 18.50 1177
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. BRI NRRZ @)

(continued)

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued) —EENFERETEI(B)

Note: During the year ended 31st December 2009, 20,400,000 share st B2 _TTENF+_A=+—HLFE -
options were newly granted as replacement for the cancelled AN A) 7 9% 20,400,000 17 B8 A% 4 - LAER
share options under option types of 2007A and 2007B and RZZZLFRE ST LFLBERER
this is accounted for as a modification of the original share BIET O H B - W AME SRR
options. 2R -

In respect of the share options exercised during the vear, MEANDITERERENS - SFTEBHZ

the weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is MEFHRER149BL(ZETNF

HK$14.99 (2009: HK$11.05). 11.05%87T) °

During the year ended 31st December 2009, share option EEE-_ZTNF+-_A=+—HULFE

was granted on 3rd March 2009. The estimated fair values of N AREIRZEEZNF=-A-ARLE

the option granted on that date was as follows: fetE - RZBRH ZEREZ G AFE
LU

Grant date Fair value

wEBAH AFE

HK$

BIT

2009 3.3.2009 0.98

—EThEF —ETNEF=A=H

The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately ARRBROREE—ZZNAF=A=A7I

before 3rd March 2009 is HK$5.78. 2B RS 78B T
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37.

38.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)

These fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes
pricing model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

37.

BRI Z ()

—EENFRREE ()
WERAFEDR AN -SR] ST
ERAGFE - KAZBAZ2HFOT

2009 2007A 2007B 2007C 2006 2005

“ITHhE —TTHEFR —TTLEZ —TTHEFR  —TTAE —ZTRAE

Share price on grant date REHBH 2 RE HK$5.53 HK$33.80 HK$33.80 HK$43.80 HK$13.15 HK$12.15

Adjusted share price on REH B ERERE HK$5.53 HK$16.90 HK$16.90 HK$21.90 HK$6.58 HK$6.08

grant date

Exercise price 18 HK$6.40 HK$37.00 HK$37.00 HK$37.00 HKS$12.74 HK$12.32

Adjusted exercise price ERETEE HK$6.40 HK$18.50 HK$18.50 HK$18.50 HK$6.37 HK$6.16

Expected volatility BRI 55.26% 32% 32% 32% 30.71% 32.47%

Expected life T EH 1510 2610 1610 15t0 5.5 years 8.5 years
35years 4.6 years 3.6Yyears 3.5years

Risk-free rate ERERFIE 0.57%to0 4.09% to 4.03% to 381%to0 4.55% 4.18%
1.27% 4.23% 4.16% 4.00%

Expected dividend yield BHkEX 4.34% 1.22% 1.22% 1.22% 2.52% 2.73%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price in the preceding year.
The expected life used in the model has been made, based
Oon management’s best estimate and take into account

the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised an expense in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income of approximately
HK$15.4 million (2009: HK$48.2 million) for the year ended
31st December 2010 in relation to share options granted by
the Company.

RESERVES

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s
PRC subsidiary is required to maintain a statutory surplus
reserve fund. Appropriation to such reserve is made out of
net profit after taxation as reflected in the statutory financial
statements of the PRC subsidiary while the amounts

and allocation basis are decided by its board of directors
annually. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used
to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in
conversion into capital by means of capitalisation.

38.

BHRIEARARRENBEFEZESL
MIREETE - RIRAPEAZEFHIIC
REEERKEETAIEEN  TERS R
TRERARREL 2 &EBEHEHTE

REE_ZT-—ZTF+-_A=+—HLFE "
REEFARRARE L ERER2EREE
R X 49 15,400,000 T ( — ST A4 ¢
48,200,000/87T) °
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39. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS 39.
During the year ended 31st December 2009, the Group
completed the acquisition of 100% interest in Leadplus
International Limited (“Leadplus”) from an independent third
party, for a consideration of HK$282,835,000. Major assets
of Leadplus are investment properties under construction
situated in PRC and as such, the acquisitions have been
accounted for as acquisitions of assets rather than
businesses.

Net assets of the Leadplus acquired are as follows:

WEREE
BE-TEAET-A=+—RILFER
AEEE TR G HIE =T WEEME R
BERARTEMD) 22885 REA
282,835,000/ 7T * M2 ¥ BEE AR
PE 2R RAYE - Fitk - R R
EEWBANE - MIREE MR -

PR BEFEWT

Leadplus
B
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR 30
Investment properties under construction TEEPIREYE 420,280
Other receivables H b fEMGRIE 3,426
Bank balances and cash RITEETF RIRS 1,280
Trade and other payables JE AT BR R e L A< SRR (142,181)
282,835
Satisfied by: LTRHFREZ
Cash consideration HERE 13,000
Settlement of outstanding loans and interest HEEREWETSEEREREER
receivables due from Borrower Group (Note) EFE (M) 269,835
282,835
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: U B EE A~ T4 SR EE ¢
Cash consideration paid BENEERE 13,000
Bank balances and cash acquired Frus g sR1T 47 MRS (1,280)
11,720

Note: Please refer to note 29(a) under the section “Notes to the
consolidated financial statements” in the Company’s 2009
Annual Report for details.
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40. DISCOUNT ARISING ON ACQUISITION OF 40.

ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

In February 2010, the Group's 60% owned subsidiary, Hebei
Xuyuan, entered into an equity interest transfer agreement
and a debt transfer agreement with a4t 5o X T 5= b & A 3%
BREEAT] ("Xiantianxia”), whereby (i) Xiantianxia agreed
to transfer to Hebei Xuyuan its 100% equity interest in 4t
E@EEE S AR AR (“Beijing Huitong”) at a consideration
of RMB100.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$113.7
million) and its major asset is investment in Beiren Group and
(i) Xiantianxia agreed to transfer to Hebei Xuyuan an account
receivable of RMB246.5 million owing by Beijing Huitong for a
consideration of the same amount. Following the completion
of the aforesaid transfer of equity interest, the Group's equity
interest in the Beiren Group has been increased to 49%.

An amount of HK$114.6 million, representing the excess of
the Group's share of net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the acquisition, is recognised
in profit or loss.

Wis —xEE QAR ENMERE
2 HTE

—E—ZTF R AEBEHBOBBEEY
B AR EIR - B4 A X T B E
AEBEREARABTERTET 7
i RpE RERERGZ  BIL0)T
ATREZEZE TV EREN I R ERE
EEBS5ERAR(ILRER]) Z100% A
& KR8 A& AR 100,000,000 7T (0 E #
#9113,700,000/8 L) MEA X EEE AR
AEBEZHEERMARTREERZGT
JbTER At mEEB R T 2 B ER RA R
246,500,000 * R{EHEEZESEMER - 7T
B L Pk ssiE s - REBEIEASED
A B 1 = 49% o

{E18.114,600,00078 7T (X R AN B £ B 14
ARAEENBEZFAFEREERAR
B EFR) IR FER o

41. OPERATING LEASES 41, BEHEY
The Group as lessee REBEREBEA
2010 2009
—EB-EF —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Minimum lease payments paid under Lilalins S witkOIRE N
operating leases during the period: =R L FE -
Other assets Hh&EE 12,272 12,826
Leasehold land and buildings HE L REF 2,043,250 2,114,873
2,055,522 2,127,699
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIPEHELEER  AEBG A BUEL
commitments for future minimum lease payments under BN FERER G REBOZENT -

non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2010 2009

—E-EF ZETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FAxT

Within one year —FA 157,596 151,148
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFENT (BIEEEMT) 600,693 585,325
Over five years HBiBhF 1,297,233 1,391,226
2,055,522 2,127,699
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41. OPERATING LEASES (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for leasing commercial properties and other assets

which represented machineries. Leases are generally
negotiated for an average term of one to five years and
rentals are fixed for an average of two years except the
following:

(@ Lease of Shanghai Joinbuy Cityplaza by Shanghai
Ongoing Department Store Limited, a non-wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company, for the period from

1st October 2004 to 30th September 2024, with an
option to renew for a further 10 years.

(b)  Lease of the Amazon, No. 12 Salisbury Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon by Sogo Hong Kong Company
Limited, with Hong Kong Island Development Limited

for the period from 30th September 2005 to 29th

September 2020, with an option to renew for a further

5 years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted

with tenants for the following future minimum lease

41.

KERN
KEBERFEA (F)
GERNZRERAEERARRNEYER
HinEE (RE)EN2ES - AH—R
BTHUHER-EREHE  HeTHE
MFETE - AT S ERIBRIN

(@ ARFFREMBLRRLEAXBE
BRABIMAIZER LBABHTE
S MK AT TNE+A—
BFE-_Z-NFAA=1TH  FE#E
E—SERTF -

) E=X(BEBEBEBRAFEFTSH
RABER ARG BBAERDER
TEFE 125 0B H o HY - S
H-_ZEERFNA=THE-_ZT-F
FNAZ+NAE @ A#EEE—SER
hF o

AEBEERHBA
RBEHRELEER  ARECRBEFTH
B R REBLRIAWT -

payments:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —FR 73,023 40,390
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFAF (BEEEMT) 111,909 58,378
Over five years HBBRF 7,917 —
192,849 98,768

Leases are generally negotiated for an average term of one

to five years.

In addition, the Group had contracted with its concessionaire
to receive contingent rentals based on the concessionaires’

turnover for an average term of one to two years.
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42. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 42. ERR HARE
2010 2009
—ZT-ZF —TTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of the BREBEAYE BENM
acquisition of property, plant BEZEARMAY
and equipment
— Authorised but not contracted for — BEEERETY 1,584,400 2,954,400
— Contracted for but not provided in — BRTHHER R R & B 7%
the consolidated financial statements R 390,500 13,800
1,974,900 2,968,200
43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43. AREE

44.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At 31st December 2010, the Group has pledged certain
leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong with carrying
values of HK$1,547.3 million (2009: HK$1,591.6 million),
together with certain shares of the Company’s subsidiaries,
to secure the banking facilities of HK$4,000 million (2009:
HK$4,000 million) granted to the Group of which HK$4,000
million (2009: HK$3,350 million) has been utilised.

Pursuant to two sales and purchase agreements entered
into among the subsidiaries in 1985 and 1996, certain
properties were transferred within the Group. The
assignments of these properties have not been executed.
If no exemption for stamp duty is granted under the Stamp
Duty Ordinance, upon execution of the assignment of the
properties, the Group will be subject to an aggregate stamp
duty of approximately HK$38.9 million.

In addition, certain of the Group's property, plant and
equipment in the PRC and Group's financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss with carrying value of
approximately HK$1,500.8 million (2009: HK$1,317.2

million) and HK$154.4 million (2009: nil) respectively have
been pledged to secure loan facilities in the amount of
approximately RMB390.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$460.2 million) (2009: HK$443.4 million) and USD20.0
million (equivalent to HK$155.4 million) (2009: nil)
respectively.

44,

REMBRARBR—NANREFR—LAR
FRINZMNEERE  BTWEREKSE
EAARIMEE  ZEVEERZSD
RINTT o W R BEIR IR EDTE T 15 171 7B %A 20 )
TER - AIAEEREEZEWER - BA
SIS A H4938,900,000 8 TTENFER

EEER
RZE—ZF+ZA=1+—H  &x5H
1% Bk m® & 41,547,300,000/8 L ( — T =
1 4F 1 1,591,600,0005 7T ) il R E B 2
ETHELHWEEFT ERARQFMN
BARETRMHER EAXAEEE
% 4R 17 Bt & %54,000,000,0007% 7T ( — &
= 7, 4F : 4,000,000,00058 7T ) 2 i 1#
H #4,000,000,000% 7t ( Z & F N F:
3,350,000,00077T) B8 °

3o 7R & B BR E E %91,500,800,000 7
(= Z T A % :1,317,200,000% 7T ) Z
MRAFEMNME - BER&HLEEE
154,400,000 TL(Z T T NF - ) 2%
AFEFABREZEREECHIAAR
390,000,000 7T ( #7 #8 & 7 460,200,000
BEIL) (ZZEZT N ¢ 443,400,000 7T) M
20,000,000 2 T (#8 & 74 155,400,000/ 7T )
ZETNG &) EREEREER
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for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE—ZE—ZTF+—_A=+—HI-FE

45. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
(@) Transactions

During the year, the Group had entered into the
following significant transactions with the following

related parties and connected parties:

45. EBREALIKRE

@ X%

FRAEEZTEATBREALR
BEANTETTIINEARS !

2010 2009
—E2-EF —TTNEF
Nature of transaction HK$'000 HK$'000
REME FERT FET
Name of related parties
EHEATER
Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza Co. Ltd. Rental and management 212,720 180,214
(“Property V") fee paid (note 1)
EEnERTESERAT BENHeREEE (1)
(ImEEERE])
Name of connected parties
BEALERE
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Co., Ltd. Income from concessionaire 14,170 11,999
("CTF Jewellery”) sales (note 2)
AARBHELTERAR ([AARHKE]) B EEHERA (H:E2)
AREHRE 21T (EHMN) BRAT Income from concessionaire 4,000 1,520
sales in Suzhou store (note 2)
RERMNERRTEEHE A (M322)
Income from concessionaire 3,247 2,370
sales in Shanghai store (note 2)
R EEERFTEEEERA (H:E2)
TRAXERESTERAT Income from concessionaire 315 —
sales in Dalian store (note 2)
RAREERFTEEEE R (M3E2)
Rental income in Tianjin store 101 —
(note 2)
RRZEESWA (FF5E2)
Hong Kong Island Development Limited Rental, vetting fee, 54,212 49,245
("Hong Kong Island”) air-conditioning charges and
BEERERAR(ES]) management fee paid (note 2)
ENiEE -  BHER =RHER
EEE(MT2)
Pollution & Protection Services Limited Cleaning service fee paid (note 3) — 3,549

("PPS")
B sREERAR ([EEHS])

ENBERRBEER (H:E3)
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45. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued)
Transactions (continued)

(@)

Notes:

M

Property JV is a jointly controlled entity in which the
Group has a 50% interest.

CTF Jewellery, FIAT@EMIRE @ L REIARIRE
and Hong Kong Island are companies in which Datd
Dr. Cheng Yu-tung and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry,
directors of the Company, have beneficial interests.

PPS was a company in which Dato6 Dr. Cheng Yu-
tung and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry, directors of the
Company, had beneficial interest in 2009. During the
year, the abovementioned directors ceased to have
any beneficial interest in PPS.

At 31st December 2010, concessionaire sales payable
included amounts of approximately HK$20,147,000,
HK$10,406,000 and HK$1,157,000 (2009:
HK$27,289,000, HK$5,550,000 and HK$nil) aged within
30 days due to CTF Jewellery, A Af@#x/1EAE and
1t R ERABERE respectively in which related parties,
Dat6 Dr. Cheng Yu-tung and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun,
Henry, directors of the Company, have beneficial
interests. The amount was trading in nature and
related to payables arising from concessionaire sales.
These trading balances are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable according to the terms of the
concessionaire dealership agreement.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of executive directors during the
year was determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of the individuals

and market. Details of which together with the other 4

highest paid management personnel are disclosed in
note 14 above.

45. EEEATEE @)
@ x8@E
I

() DERLEER/REEERSS0%E
w2 FRIEHIEEE -

@ BAXEKRE  BABHMIKRE It
RAXRREREERARAES
SESRYBLEERAB LIRS

BRI AT -

Q)  HEIISAREAREREEINEY
BERBREBE LR _ZEZNFH
BERERNAT - RNAFE - £
MEBRKIFEERSZEAE

iR °

@ WKR-ET—ZTF+-A=+—8"
ENBAEEEERBEREER
MRIKXAZFFFHEBEAL
AREHRENBAREHMNKE
MIERBAREBHRE ZRED
#920,147,0007 7T + 10,406,000/ 7T
1,157,000 w( = T T N F -
27,289,000 7T * 5,550,000 7T &
TIL) c ARBEETEEBHRLE
TREBRGETHEZEAAER
e ZENEBE S MY - B
FrENESHE FTE A R RIEAERE -
LWEERERERAEER 2B KA
RS EBEEHRIGERER -

(b)) FEEEAEHMH
FA-WTEFZME I HFENEE
SRERNKBELTHERAEE @ KF
ZMEREBRNARRBAETIERE
BB Z B FHB I LS RE 14 B05E -
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 46. FEMB L AFEE
At 31st December 2010 and 2009, the details of the RZE—TFR_TTNFT_A=1+—
Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: A ARBEEMBRARIZHBRT :

Place of incorporation

and operation Issued and fully paid Attributable equity
Name of company Date of incorporation share capital interest of the Group ~ Principal activities
SMRIREEGHEUAR
DREH ERERAH BRTREHRE FREEERTER FTEER
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-2F ZEENE ZE-BE | ZTTNE
Ample Sun Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60% Investment holding
BREBERAT 17th August 2007 10,0007 | 1000057 REAR
ik
ZITEE\A+EA
Congenial Company Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 | HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  General trading and property
24t April 1981 10,000,000% 7T | 10,000,000/57C holding
i —REFRNERE
—“AM-ERAZTNA
Eastlord Development Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100% Property holding and leasing
MEERBRAR 21st August 1987 500,000 %7 500,000 T MEREREE
i
“NWEENAZT-H
Everwin Worldwide Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100%  Property leasing
KERRBRAR 17th November 2000 2B7x 2AT nEES
i
ZITEREF-A14H
Fine Shine Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100%  License holder
BRERAT 11th September 2003 287 2B BHEREA
6
ZEEZENAT-H
Forceworld Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100% Property holding
EREBRAT 15th July 1988 500,000 | 500,000/ VESSE
Eh
“NWEEA+RR
Future Develop Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$3 US§3 100% 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong KES KET RERR
12th December 2003
EEERREE /B
ZET=FTZATZH
Glory Line Management Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Provision of property security and
BEEEGRAT 5th September 1995 500,000%7 | 500000770 management services
ik RUMERT REERE
—“WNVEEAATEA
Grand Kinetic Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100% Property holding and leasing
BZERDA 7th February 2001 28T 25T NEHERES
i
—ZE-5_A+H
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  46.

FEMB QTS @)

(continued)
Place of incorporation
and operation Issued and fully paid Attributable equity
Name of company Date of incorporation share capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
MR E AR
DRER A A BRAREARS rEERERTER TEER
2010 2009 2010 2009
—3-%F “ITNE ZB-BF | ZZTNE
Pacific Trump Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
MEERERAT 6th July 1995 287 28T NERELRES
Eh
—WAREEARA
Public Might Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 HK$1,000 100% 100%  Property investment and provision
HEERAT 30t August 1984 1,000%7 100087 of building management
Eh services
—“AWBENAZHA NERERFEAREERS
Ronson Kwok Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 |  HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Building management and club
5th October 1993 1,000,000 7 | 1,000,000/ operator
Eh ANEEEREMEE
-W=5TAEA
Sogo Hong Kong Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 |  HK$4,000,000 100% 100% Retailing business
SX(FE)EEERAA 23rd September 1983 4,000,000 7 | 4,000,000 7T TEEK
Bk
—“WMZEAAZT=H
Superlite Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 US$1 100% 100% Property holding
Hong Kong 157 1% VESSE
3rd April 2001
ERERRES /BB
“2T-4mA=A
LEAKEEERAR People’s Republic US$12,000,000 | US$12,000,000 65% 65% Retalling business
(Shanghai Ongoing of China 12,000,000 5% | 12,000,005 7% TEEK
Department Store Limited) 26th July 2004
HEARAA
e S I S =
Wingold Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60% Investment holding
20th April 2007 10,0007 | 100007 RAER
Eh
“TTLEMAZTA
EREREEBRAR People’s Republic US$94,762,988 | US$74,990,000 100% 100%  Property holding
of China 94,762,988 %7t | 74,990,000 T NERE
1st December 2006
HEARHLA
ZTTRETZA-A
BEREEEARAT People’s Republic US$74,990,000 |  US$74,990,000 100% 100%  Property holding
of China 74,990,000 7T | 74,990,000% T kS
12th March 2007
hEARLME
“2ZrEZATCR

fiEmnensRAn —z2—255% JOI



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #7585 2R 3% M 5F @

for the year ended 31st December 2010 HE—ZE—ZTF+—_A=+—HI-FE

* a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC.

** g wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the reporting period.
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  46. = EMB A BB &)
(continued)
Place of incorporation
and operation Issued and fully paid Attributable equity
Name of company Date of incorporation share capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
SREIREEBEINR
NRER EauAAzR ] BRAREARE REEEERTER FTEER
2010 2009 2010 2009
—B-%% “ITNF ZB-3F | ZZTAF
TlEES BN ARQE People’s Republic RMB600,000,000 | RMBE00,000,000 100% 100% Property holding and leasing
Lifestyle Plaza (Suizhou) of China AR% ARE MEFERES
Co,, Limited 1st March 2007 600,000,000 | 600,000,007
HEA\RLAE
—ETt5=A-H
AXBEEHEMARAF People’s Republic US$12,000,000 | US$12,000,000 100% 100% Retaling business
of China 12,000,000 | 12,000,007 TEEH
17th January 2008
HEARAR
ZTT)\E-A++A
BEAREEREER A People's Republic RMB277,500,000 | RMB190,328,983 100% 100% Property holding
of China AR% AEH VESSE
20th June 2006 277,500,000 7T | 190,328,983 7T
MENRAAE
ZZTERAZTH
MR (KE) BRAR People’s Republic US$45,000,000 | US$45,000,000 100% 100% Retailing business
of China 45,000,000 %7 | 45,000,000 7T TEEH
9th October 1993
HEARHLN
-AWW=FTANA
HEEEE (K2 BRAT People’s Republic US$40,000,000 | US$40,000,000 100% 100% Property holding
of China 40,000,0005 7 | 40,000,000% T ESX]
7th August 1996
hEARHLME
—WAAENRER
REHE(ER)ERAF People’s Republic RMB225,000,000 | RMB225,000,000 100% 100% Praperty holding
of China AR N nEHE
315t December 1995 225,000,000 70 | 225,000,0007C
EARLR
—“MAFTZA=+-H
BRENEEEARAR People’s Republic US$18,000,000 | US$18,000,000 100% 100%  Property holding
of China 18,000,000 % ¢ | 18,000,000% 7T MERE
16th October 1995
MEARAR
—WARETA+AR

* R BIRS 2 P IME B EE
o RPBERIZ 2INERE

MEBARNREHREE B HEEND %

7B °



47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 47.

RN B ISR &

THE COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of R EMMLEER AR BHKLERE
the reporting period includes: o
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current asset EMEBEE
Interest in subsidiaries NGIEPNGIE E 4,194 4,194
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables H e U R IE 1,580 1,304
Financial assets at fair value through profit BAFEFTAEBZZ S/
or loss BE 10,925 —
Tax recoverable JEURFR IE 1,398 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG B e 5,559,753 3,612,585
Bank balances and cash RITRERRS 5,172 25,836
5,578,828 3,639,725
Current liabilities mE A
Other payables H A 5008 1,927 2,941
Amounts due to subsidiaries R I EPNGIE 2,004,592 —
Tax payable FEBTLIE — 2,926
2,006,519 5,867
Net current assets MBEEFE 3,572,309 3,633,858
3,576,503 3,638,052
Capital and reserves BEARRFE
Share capital A& A 8,395 8,368
Reserves & 3,568,108 3,629,684
3,576,503 3,638,052

Profit for the year ended 31st December 2010 of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$420,759,000 (2009:
HK$255,570,000).

Under the Company Law (2009 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to shareholders subject to
the provisions of its memorandum or articles of association
and provided that immediately following the distribution

of dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. The Company’s
reserve available for distribution as at 31st December
2010 consisted of share premium of approximately
HK$1,424,231,000 (2009: HK$1,916,411,000) and retained
profits of approximately HK$1,984,505,000 (2009:
HK$1,563,664,000).

HEe—T—Z=F+-_A=+—RHILEE"
RN T 2 5% R 49 4 420,759,000 T (— &
T4 : 255,570,000 7T) °

RIEFASES R RE(2009185]) « AAH
2 B (B A AR IR A R AR AR EE AR KA Sk
MANZIRE - IR TFRESAEAKRE M
RIRE - EEEREDIKE  ARFAES
NN ERABEKBIEF B E -
RZE—FTF+-A=+—H ARFAIZ
A] 95 R 5 18 R IR 19 0 (B 49 1,424,231,000
BIT(ZZEZHF :1,916,411,00008 7T) &
1R B8 % F #91,984,505,0008 T ( —EZE 1
& 1 1,563,664,000787T) 4K ©
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

IERENERE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31st December

meazmEkER

HE+-_A=1T—HILFE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“E-ZF| Z2TNE ZZT)\E —TTF —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AL THEL FET AT
(Restated)
(E31)
Turnover EEE 4,317,465 3,756,208 3,521,633 3,112,368 2,581,962
Profit attributable to owners ADAHE AEG
of the Company BF 1,407,534 1,142,468 927226 1,024,085 740,170
Earnings per share (HK cents) BREM (EL)
— Basic —H AR 83.9 68.5 54.5 60.2 437
— Diluted — & 834 68.1 54.3 59.8 437
Total dividends per share BhkoGE
(HK cents) (7B10) 33.7 28.0 24.0 240 178
consolidated Statement of Financial Position FEMBEMRRE
At 31st December R+=—A=+—H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-EF “EENF ZZENF - “ETSE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Fhr FiEn Fhr Thr
Total assets BEBE 13,872,956 12,301,402 10,562,218 10,434,243 6,279,003
Total liabilities hEEE (5,969,902) | (5618395  (4707.235) (5216563 (2,420094)
Total net assets AEFELE 7,903,054 6,683,007 5,854,983 5217,680 3,858,909
Non-controlling interests FEERREER (686,170) (561,538) (677,271) (560,962) 4929
Total net assets attributable to RARERAES
owners of the Company AEFELE 7,216,884 6,121,469 5,177,712 4,656,718 3,853,980
Net assets per share (HKS) BREEFE(GET) 47 399 350 306 228
Net assets per share attributable to NG PN L
owners of the Company (HKS) SREEFE(ET) 430 366 309 273 22
Number of shares issued BETRMHEE 1,678,985,000| 1673620000 1673965500  1,705,083,000  1,695,936,000
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Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
20/F,, East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
MiEEREEBR AR
BB B E5555

R AT L201E

Telephone: (852) 2833 8338

Facsimile: (852) 2831 2972
info@lifestylehk.com.hk
www.lifestylehk.com.hk
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